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Mitsubishi Corporation International (Europe) Plc

Directors’ report

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013

Principal actwvities

The company's principal activities are those of trading in a broad range of commodities, industnial and consumer
products, and the provision of services, including financing

Business review

Turnover for the year ended 31 March 2013 amounted to £478 milhon (2012 £599 miilion) and the gross profit
percentage was 4 76% (2012 3 62%) The decrease In lurnover was mainly due to the reduction 1n aluminium
transactions and the company’s decision to transfer the business covered by the Chemcal division tn London to the
company s subsidiary in Germany effective 1 July 2011 Profit for the year ended 31 March 2013 after taxation
amounted to £20 1 ulhion (2012 £58 6 million), this included dividend income of £10 2 mulion (2011 £502
mullion) from the company’s European subsidianes The company continued to perform well given the market
conditions that continue to be challenging and the profits were primanly driven by the aluminium business within the
Metal division

Other operating income net of expenses for the current year amountedto £15 3 million which 15 higher than last year
(2012 £13 4 million) There was an increase 1n service and management fee income and other income The
company has recognised foreign exchange gains of £0 8 mullion (2012 losses £0 2 mullion) as a result of favourable
enchange rate changes

The stock holding level has increased by approaimately £24 milhon to £174 mullion as at 31 March 2013 compared to
the prior year (2012 £18 mullion to £150 nulhion) The amount held in stock at any one time wil} vary depending
upon the imings of deliveries The proportion of current habilities to current assets 1s 88% which has increased
compared with the previous year (2012 79%)

In order to reduce the funding deficit and risk 1n the company s defined benefit pension scheme, the management
decided to purchase bulk annuities and deferred annuities to cover pensions in payment and deferred penstons  This
was funded by a combination of the sale of other scheme investments and a single company contribution of

£8 mullion 1n December 2012 The £8 mullion insurance buy-1n was recognised in the statement of total recogmsed
gains and losses and has no impact on the company s profit for the year

The company has recogmsed a full provision for impairment of approximately £1 mullion against the investment in
Seabased AB, a Swedish company which develops *sea wave™ technology for power generation due to a delay n the
underlying project

During the year, the company nvested a total of approximately £17 million representing 80% of the share capital ina
company called MC Engine Leasing Limited (MCELL) which specialises 1n awrcrafl engine leasing

The total dividend income recerved during the year amounted to £13 million (2012 £52 9 milhon)

Overall, the directors are pleased with performance this year and expect that the company will continue to perform
well under the prevailing difficult market conditions  The directors remain committed to further strengthening
internal conirols and compliance to manage the risks to which the company 1s exposed to

Going concern

The directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources to continue in operational
ewistence for the foreseeable future  Accordingly the company continues to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements

Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in note 1 to the financial statements




Mitsubishi Corporation International (Europe) Plc

Directors’ report (continued)

Future prospects

While the directors do not anticipate any significant changes 1n the business 1n the near future, the current economic
environment does present a challenge to the company 1in maintaining this strong performance  This will not be an
easy tash and 1t 15 eapected that market conditens and the prevailing economic environment wall continue to present
the company with new challenges

The company has invested 1n different industries such as aircraft engine leasing, power transmission projects and
renewable energy The company transferred its Chemucal business to the company’s subsidiary 1n Germany 1n 2011
to enhance Mitsubishi group s chemical business as a whole This reflects the company’s flexibility to take up new
challenges and adapt 1o changes It 1s considered that the company 15 in a good position to deal with these
challenges The company will contimue to strengthen 1ts trading groups from the company s as well as the group's
perspective as a whole Internal controls that 1dentify and manage risk exposures and good relationships with
customers will continue to be fundamental management 10ols in the day-10-day business operations

Financial nsk management objectives and pohicies

Because of the nature of the company’s trading and business model, 1t 15 exposed 10 various nisks, all of which are
monitored and controlled However these rishs could potentially have a material impact on the company’s
performance The principal areas of nsk relate to credit risk, foreign enchange currency nisk, interest rate risk, price
risk and liguidity nisk  These are briefly discussed below and in detail under note 20

Credt risk
Credit 11sk 15 the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other
party to incur a financial loss

Credit nsk pnmanly arises since trade 1n most cases requires extending credit to customers without which many
would not trade with the company

This nsk 1s managed through taking out credit insurance wherever possible and also having nigorous monitoring and
investigation carned out by the risk management department

Currency risk
Currency risk 1s the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 1n foreign exchange

rates
The company trades in many products in many countries in different currencies and 1s exposed to currency risk

To manage this, the company has established and follows a strict policy of entering into forward exchange contracts
to match sales and purchases in different currencies, wherever this nisk exists

Interest rate risk
Interest rate nisk 15 split into two different types of risks - cash flow interest rate nsk and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk 1s the risk that the future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of |
changes in market interest rates  As the company has variable rate bank deposits and leans, 1t 15 exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk

Fair value interest rate risk 1s the nsk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates

A sigmficant propertion of activity centres around funding made available to customers, for which interest 1s charged
at a market rate Funding for this 1s borrowed and so a potential nisk of movements 1n interest rates anses on both the
borrowing and lending side

As a matter of policy risk 1s managed by ensuring that lending 1s on the same basis as borrowing so movements on
one side are matched by movements on the other side




Mitsubishi Corporation International (Europe) Pic

Directors’ report (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies {confinued)

Price risk
Price risk 1s the nisk that commodities that are bought at market price will fall in value before the company has been
able to scll them

By the nature of its trading the company 1s exposed to price risk - This risk 15 managed and controlled in different
ways Where possible the company enters into back-to-back transactions so that the buying price and selling price are
fined at the same ime  Also for some of the commodities that are traded, there 15 a commodities exchange market In
this instance commodity futures are bought and sold to hedge physical trading positions

Liguudiy risk
Liquidity risk 1s the risk that the company will have insufficient short-term assets to finance short-term habilities
The company has sigmficant levels of short-term habilities 50 1t 1s open to liquidity risk

The risk 1s managed by effective cash management and continual monttoring of short-term funding requirements and
an enhanced risk management system te 1dentify any potential problems early with the realisation of liquid assets
The company also has quick access to short-term funding from group sources

The use of derivatives 1s governed by the company’s policies approved by the board of directors, which provides
written principles on the use of financial dertvatives '1he company wishes to strictly control nisk positions that are
taken All foreign exchange risk should be hedged Where price nisk occurs this needs to be within pre applied limits
and the company will use futures to hedge that exposure  The overall position 1S constantly monitored to ensure
adherence to agreed limits

Dividends

The directors have recommended and paid an interim dividend of £29,275,000 during the year The company has not
declared a final dividend at the end of March 2013 (2012 interim and final dividend £14,336,000)

Directors

The current directors are shown on page | The directors who served throughout the year. except as noted, and up to
the date of this report werce

H Hayashi  (appointed 9 Apn) 2013)
T Terada (resigned 9 April 2013)
Y Kitagawa

S Twai {appointed 15 March 2013)
T Aiba (resigned 15 March 2013)
T Nambu

S Masuda  (resigned | Apnl 2013)

N fwabuchi  (appointed | April 2013 and resigned 28 June 2013)
J Kitaguchi  (appointed 28 June 2013)

K Suzuki (resigned 1 April 2012)

K Morooka (resigned 1 Apnii 2012)

J Utsukt (appointed 1 Apnl 2012)

S Kowase  (appointed 1 Apnl 2012)

Y Koike (resigned 14 April 2012)

S Shimada  (appointed 8 May 2012)




Mitsubishi Corporation International (Europe) Plc

Directors’ report (continued)

Chanitable contributions

Contributions made to charities during the year amounted to approsimately £250,000 (2012 £14 000)

Supplier payment policy

The company's policy 1s to settle terms of payments with suppliers when agreeing the terms of each transaction and
then to adhere to these terms During the year average payment terms were 32 days (2012 28 days)

Auditor

Each of the persons who 15 a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that

* 50 far as the director 15 aware there 1s no relevant audit information of which the company s auditor 1s unaware,
and

* the director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director 1n order to make himself/herself
aware of any rclevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditor 1s aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be nterpreted 1n accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006

Deloitte LLP have expressed their willingness to continue in office as auditor and a resolutton to reappoint them will
be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Approved by the Board of Directors
and signed by order of the Board

Hayashi
Managing Director

28" June 2013
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements 1n accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (Umted Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) Under company law the directors
must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that penod In preparing these financial statements,
the directors are required to

e seleet suttable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
¢ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

» state whether apphcable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropnate to presume that the company
will continue 1n business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient 10 show and explain the
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial posttion of the company and
to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They arc also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and ntegrity of the corporate and financial information included on |
the company s website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissermination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions




Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Mitsubishi Corporation International (Europe) Ple¢

We have audited the financial statements of Mitsubishi Corporation International (Europe) Ple for the year ended ,
31 March 2013 which comprise the profit and loss account the statement of total recognised gains and losses the balance

sheet and the related notes 1 to 24 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 15

applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Thus report 1s made solely to the company s members, as a body, 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006  Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company s members those
matters we are required to state to them n an auditor™s report and for no other purpose  To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body
for our audit work. for this report or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors Responsibiliues Statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view  Qur responsibthity 1s to audit and
€xpress an opinion on the financial statements 1n accordance with applicable law and Internaticnal Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Audiung Practices Board's Ethical Standards for
Auditors

Scope of the audit of financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error
This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropniate to the company”s circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting esimates made by the
directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial
information in the annual report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements 1 we become
awarc of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements

+ gveatrue and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 March 2013 and of uts profit for the year then
ended, |
s have been properly prepared in accordance with Unmited Kingdom Generally Aceepted Accounting Practice, and

¢  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on matter preseribed in the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information 1n the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared 15 consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing 10 report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you

if 1n our opinton

e  adequate accounting records have not been kept. or returns adequate for our audit have not been recerved from
branches not visited by us, or

e the financial statements are not 1n agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

e certain disclosures of directors remuneration specified by law are not made, or

*  we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Anthony Morms (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Lendon, United Kingdom

2-3 4_) %2013




Mitsubishi Corporation International (Europe) Plc

Profit and loss account
Year ended 31 March 2013

2013 2012
Notes £000 £'000
Turnover 1,2 471,777 598,544
Cost of sales (455,055)  (576,878)
Gross profit 22,722 21.666
Administrative expenscs (28,740} (30,955)
Other operating income net of expenses 5 15,273 13,453
Operating profit 4 9,255 4 164
Dividend income from shares in group undertakings 13,001 52,883
Profit on transfer of the chemical business 6 - 2,550
Interest receivable and sumilar income 7 3611 2,049
Impairment of fixed asset investment 947) -
Interest payable and sumilar charges B (2,153) (1,660}
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 22 767 59,986
Tax charge on profit on ordinary activities 9 (2,695) (1,436)
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation and profit
for the financial year 17 20,072 58,550

All of the company’s operations for both the current and the preceding financial years fall into the category of
* Continutng Operations™ as defined in Financial Reporting Standard 3

It 1s not posstble to determine the difference between the profit on ordinary activities (before and after taxation) and
their historical cost equivalents Given the nature of the business and the use of fair value accounting under the
requirements of FRS 26, the historical cost equivalent 15 not meaningful




Mitsubishi Corporation International (Europe) Plc

Statement of total recognised gains and losses
Year ended 31 March 2013

Profit for the financial year

Actuanal loss on pension scheme

UK current tax rehef attributable to the pension buy-in
UK deferred tax attributable to actuanal loss
Movement on cash flow hedges

UK deferred tax attributable to cash flow hedges

Fair value movement on investment

Total recogmsed gains and losses since the last annual report and financtal
statements

Notes

21

21

21

20

12

2013 2012
£000 £'000
20072 58550
(6,513) {475)
655 -
870 114

53 1
(13) -
160 (13)
15,284 58,177




Mitsubishi Corporation International (Europe) Plc

Balance sheet
As at 31 March 2013

Intangible assets
Tangible fixed assets
Investments

Current assets
Stocks
Debtors '
Due within one year
Due after more than one year
Cash at bank and 1n hand

Creditors amounts falling due within one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current habilittes

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Net assets excluding pension asset

Pension asset

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Called up share caputal
Hedging reserve
Revaluation reserve
Profit and loss account

Shareholders’ funds

Notes

10
1
12

14
14

21

16, 17
17
17
17

2013 2012
£'000 £7000
465 814
114 114
116,513 98 678
117.092 99,606
173,641 149 848
243,276 276,987
6,089 2,751
2,537 1,511
425.543 431,097
(373,644)  (341,987)
51,899 89,110
168,991 188,716
(1,680) (6,165)
167,311 182,551
3133 1,884
170,444 184 435
120 658 120.658
41 1
622 462
49.123 63,314
170,444 184,435

The financal statements of Mitsubisht Corporation Internationa) (Europe) Plc registered number 02214224 were

approved by the Board of Directors on 28" June 2013
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directars

C Y

H Hayashi
Managing Dhrector




Mitsubishi Corporation International (Europe) Plc

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 31 March 2013

1 Accounting policies

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with apphcable Umted Kingdom law and accounting
standards They have all been applied consistently throughout the current year and preceding year

The financial statements have been prepared on the hustorical cost basts, cxcept for the revaluation of certain
financial instruments and stock The principal accounting policies are set out below

Group accounts

These financial statements present information about the company as an individual undertaking and not about
1ts group Consolidated financial statements have not been prepared as the company 15 a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Mitsubisht Corporation, a company incorporated in Japan and so 1s therefore exempt by virtue of
5401 of the Companies Act 2006 from the requirement to prepare and deliver group accounts

Cash flow statement

The company has not prepared a cash flow statement under the FRS | exemption on the basis that the ulumate
parent company produces publicly available consolidated accounts, which include 2 cash flow statement. into
which the company’s accounts are fully consohdated

Going concern

The company has policies in place to ensure the nishs mentioned in the directors report and note 20 are within
management’s scrutiny and control The company has strong risk management and treasury functions to
oversee the current trading environment to mumimise the impact of such risks  In addition the company has
financing sources both from the group as well as third party banks

As discussed 1n the business review section of the directors report. the company has continued to perform
well during the year ended 31 March 2013

The company has a strong balance sheet with positive net current assets and shareholders’ funds  Of the total
borrowings of the company as at 31 March 2013 of £328 3 mulhon £326 7 mullion {2012 £ 301 08 mullion,
£298 41 million) (bank loans overdrafts and intergroup balances — see note 15) are short-term facilities

These are matched to a significant extent against amounts receivable from other group companies of £145 6
million (2012 £196 00 million) (see note 14) which are on terms simular to the borrowings and stock of

£173 64 mullion (2012 £149 85 mullion) (see note 13), a large portion of which relates to commodities that are
traded on international exchanges and therefore considered to be liquid and easily convertible to cash  While
the bank borrowings and faciliies are current and uncommitted, the directors are of the opinion that these will
remain available to the company for the foreseeable future

Based on the above factors, and after making enquiries, the directors have reasonable expectation that the
company has adequate resources to continue 1in operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingty
the company continues 1o adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual report and accounts

Intangible fixed assets

Software assets are valued at cost on acquisition and are amortised 1n equal annual amounts over their useful
economic lives esumated to be approximately three years Provision 15 made for any impairment

Tangble fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation Depreciation s provided against cost in
equal annual 1nstalments over the estimated useful hfe of the asset Office equipment has an estimated vseful
Iife of four years and IT equipment has an estimated useful life of three years, all other assets have an
estimated useful life of four years

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset 1s determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and 1s recogmised 1n the profit and loss account




Mitsubishi Corporation International (Europe) Plc

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 31 March 2013

1.

Accounting policies (continued)
Stocks

Stocks except aluminium are stated at the lower of cost and net reahisablc value Cost represents invoiced
price together with, as appropriate, directly related overheads Cost 1s calculated using the weighted average
method Net realisable value represents the esumated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and
cost to be 1ncurred 1n marketing, selling and distribution  Provision 1s made for obsolete, slow-moving or
defective 1tems where appropriate

All aluminium stocks are revalued at the quoted price of aluminum at the London Meta! Exchange (LME) at
the balance sheet date, plus the approximate market premwm/discount published by the Metal Bulletin at that
date less costs to sell

Thus 15 a departure from the requirement of SSAP 9 ‘Stocks and long-term contracts’ and the directors believe
that this 15 necessary to give a truc and fair view  Under SSAP 9 stock would normally be valued at the lower
of cost and net realisable value This prescribed treatment would not give a true and fair view as aluminium 15
a traded commodity 1n a hiquid market so 1s casiy convertible into cash  In addition the company holds futures
contracts with the London Metal Exchange against this aluminium stock  These contracts are held at farr value
with gains and losses being recognised through the profit and loss account  Under the SSAP 9 prescribed
treatment, the corresponding gain or loss on the physical stock held would not be recognised, thus creating a
mismatch 1n the accounts and causing profits to fluctuate significantly from period to period The impact of
this departure 1s disclosed under note 13 to the financial statements

Turnover

Turnover represents amounts recetvable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net
of trade discounts, VAT and other sales-related taxes

“urnover 1s recognised at the point where delivery of goods 1smade  For those transactions where the
company takes sigmificant risk n terms of stock, pricing or credit turnover is recognised as principal  Where
no sigmificant risk passes to the company and the company acts as either agent or broker then only the
commussion receivable 1s recorded as turnover

Interest income 1s recognised on a time basss, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the eftective
interest rate applicable, which 1s the rate that exactly discounts estimated cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset s net carrying amount

Other operating income consists mainly of fees charged for non-trading services and are recognised on an
accruals basis

Dividend 1ncome from 1nvestments 15 recogmsed when the shareholders rights to receive payment have been
established

Foreign exchange

The company’s financial statements are presented in pounds sterling which 1s the currency of the primary
cconomic environment tn which it operates and 1s deemed 1o be 1ts functional currency

Monetary assets and hiabiliies denominated in foreign currencies have been translated into sterling at the rates
of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date  Transactions denominated 1n foreign currencies are translated at
the rates prevailing on the dates of the transactions Resulting differences on translation are charged or
credited to the profit and loss account

In order to hedge 1ts exposure to certam foreign exchange nshs the company enters nto forward contracts See
below for details of the company policy on such dervatives and financial instruments

12




Mitsubishi Corporation International (Europe) Ple

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 31 March 2013

1 Accountmg policies (continued)
Leases

Rental costs under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account 1n equal annual amounts over the
period of the leases For operating leases where the company acts as lessor, rental income 15 credited to the
profit and loss account 1n equal instalments over the period of the lease

Pension costs
The company operates both a defined benefit and a defined contribution penston scheme

For defined benefit schemes the amounts charged to operating profit are the current service costs and gains and
losses on settlements and curtailments  They are included as part of staff costs Past service costs arc
recognised immediately 1n the profit and loss account 1f the benefits have vested If the benefits have not
vested immediately the costs are recogmsed over the period until vesting occurs The interest cost and the
expected return on assets are shown as a net amount of other finance costs or credits adjacent to interest
Actuarial gans and losses are recogmsed immediately 1n the statement of total recognised gains and losses

Defined benefit schemes are funded with the assets of the scheme held separately from those of the company.
in separate trustee admimistered funds Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and habilities are
measured on an actuanal basis using the projected unit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the
current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent currency and term to the scheme

habilities The actuarial valuations are obtained at least trienmally and are updated at each balance sheet date
The resulting defined benefit asset or hability, net of the related deferred tax, 1s presented separately after other
net assets on the face of the balance sheet

For defined contribution schemes the amount charged to the profit and loss account in respect of pension costs
and other post-retirement benefits 1s the contribution payable in the year Difterences between contributions
payable in the year and contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments in the balance
sheet

Taxation

Current tax. including UK corporation tax and foreign tax, 1s provided at the amounts expected to be paid
using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred taxation 1s provided n full on timing differences that result 1n an obligation at the balance sheet date
to pay more tax or a right to pay less tax, at a future date, at rates expected Lo apply when they crystallise
based on current tax rates and law  Timing differences anise from the nclusion of items of income and
expenditure 1n taxation computations in periods different from those in which they are included in the financial
statements

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that 1t 1s regarded as more hikely than not that they will be
recovered Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial hiabilities are recognised 1in the company’s balance sheet when 1t becomes a
principal party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

Trade recevables

Trade recervables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method  Appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recogmsed in the profit and loss when there 1s objective
evidence that the asset 1s impaired The allowance recognised 1s measured as the difference between the

asset s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest
raie

13
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Notes to the accounts
Year ended 31 March 2013

1 Accounting policies {continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Investments

Investments are stated at cost less any provision for impairment in al cases where the ulumate holding
company holds a majority stake, as the company has no control of the cash flows or the eventual selling price
All other investments, including investments held as current asscts, are classified as available-for-sale and are
stated at fair value unless this cannot be measured reliably in which case the investment 15 stated at cost less
provisions for impairment  Changes in fair value are recogmised directly in equity, until the investment 15
disposed of or 1s determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recogmsed in
equity is included in the net profit or loss for the period Provistons for impawrment are recognised 1n the profit
and loss account

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and demand deposits and other short-term tghly hiquid investments
that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insigmficant risk of changes 1n
value

Bank borrowings

Interest bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded as the proceeds are recerved, net of direct 1ssue costs
Finance charges, mcluding premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct 1ssue costs, are
accounted for on an accruals basis in the profit or loss using the effective mnterest rate method and are added to
the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled 1n the period in which they anse

Trade payables
Trade payables arec measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method
Equity instruments

Equity instruments 1ssued by the company are recorded when the proceeds are recerved net of direct 1ssue
costs

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The company’s activitics eapose 1t primarnily to the financial nisks of changes in price and changes n foreign
currency exchange rates The company uses foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge its foreign exchange
exposure and uses futures as traded on the London Metal Exchange to manage against any pnce risk exposure
on its alumimum trading operations However. the company does not apply hedge accounting under FRS26
(Financial Instruments recogmition and measurement) for these denvauves used to manage price risk on
commodities The company only uses derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes to a hmited
extent with board approval

Derivatives are imtally recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract 1s entered into and are
subsequently re-measured to their fair value at each balance sheet date  The resulung gain or 10ss 15
recogmsed 1n profit or loss immediately unless the derivative 15 designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, i which event the uming of the recognition n profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge
relationship  The company designates certain derivauves as hedges of hughly probable forecast transactions or
hedges of foreign currency nisk of firm commitments (cash flow hedges)

A derivative 1s presented as a non-current asset or a non-current hability 1f the remaiming maturity of the
wnstrument 1s more than 12 menths and 1t 1s not expected to be reatised or settled within 12 months  Other
denvatives are presented as current assets or current habilities
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1 Accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Hedge accounting

The company designates certain hedging instruments, which include derivatives, as cash flow hedges Hedges
of foreign exchange risk on firm commutments are accounted for as cash flow hedges

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entty documents the relationship between the hedging
instrument and the hedged 1tem, along with its risk management objectives and 1ts strategy for undertaking the
various hedge transactions Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis the company
documents whether the hedging instrument that 1s used 1n a hedging relationship s highly effective in
offsetting changes in cash flows of the hedged item

Note 20 sets out the details of the fair values of the derivative instruments used for hedging purposes
Movements in the hedging reserve 1n equily are also detailed in the statement of total recogmsed gains and
losses and note 17

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of denvatives that are designated and qualhify as cash flow
hedges are deferred in equity  The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately 1n
the profit and loss account

Amounts deferred 1n equity are recycled 1n profit or loss 1n the periods when the hedged 1tem 1s recognised in
profit or loss, in the same line of the profit and loss account as the recogmsed hedged item However when the
forecast transaction that 1s hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial hability,
the gains and losses previously deferred :n equity arc transferred from equity and included in the nitial
measurement of the cost of the asset or liability

The company also hedges the foreign currency exchange risks on certain long-term investments (the ‘hedged
item’) that are denominated 1n US dollars Such invesiments are hedged agamst loans 1n the same foreign
currency of the same value and similar matunity profile (the *hedging instrument’)

TFair value hedges that meet the hedge accounting criteria are accounted for as follows

- The gaint or loss from re-measuring the hedging instrument at far value 1s recognised in the profit or loss
account, and

- The carrymng amount of the hedged item 15 adjusted through the profit or loss account for the gain or loss
on the hedged item attributable to the hedged nsk

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or
no longer qualifies for hedge accounting At that time, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging mnstrument
recogmised 1n equity 1s retamned 1n equity until the forecasted transaction occurs If a hedged transaction 15 no
longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss recogmsed 1n equuty s transferred to net profit or loss
for the year
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2.

Turnover
Turnover represents

e gross sales with respect to transactions in which the company 1s named as principal,

e commission recetvable for transactions in which the company acts as a disclosed settlement agent, and

¢ brokerage commussion receivable

Turnover cOmprises

2013 2012

£000 £000

Principal 468,988 587 131
Agency 4,439 3,476
Brokerage 4,350 7.937
477 777 598,544

1n the opinion of the directors 1t 15 seriously prejudicial to the interests of the company to give an analysis of
turnover, profit or net assets by geographical area The directors are also of the opinion that the company’s

trading business constitutes one class of activity

Information regarding directors and employees

2013 2012
£000 £°000
Directors’ emoluments*
Emoluments 2.352 2170
Company contributions to money purchase pension scheme - 3
2,352 2,173
The number of directors who
No. No
Are members of a money purchase pension scheme - -
£°000 £°000
Remuneration of the highest pmid director 1282 992
No No
Average number of persons employed (including directors)
Trading and admunistration 165 164
£1000 £°000
Employee costs (excluding directors’ emoluments)
Wages and salanes 8085 7 046
Social secunty costs 912 912
Pension costs 846 654
Cost 1n respect of parent company s employees on secondment 7307 6331
17 150 14,943
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4 Operating profit

Operating profit 1s siated after charging the following amounts

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Amortisation of intangible fised assets
Net rentals payable under operating leases - property

Fees payable 1o the company s auditor for the audit of the company’s annual

accounts

Fee payable to the company 's auditor and their associates for services to the

company

— other services pursuant to legislation
— services relating to tax

— Japanese SOX audut

5 Other operating income net of expenses

Other operating income and expenses
Service and management fees and other income
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses)
Various other operating income and expenses

2013 2012
£000 £000
70 123
490 374
1560 1,660
181 176
100 98
180 194
118 s
2013 2012
£'000 £'000
14 694 13978

781 (226)

(202) (299)
15,273 13,453

Service and management fees include management and IT recharges to various group companies for services

provided

6 Profit on transfer of the chemical business

In the prior year, the company made a profit of £2,550,000 on the transfer of the chemical business in July

2011 This resulted 1n a tax charge of £663,000 at a tax rate of 26%

7. Interest receivable and similar income

Interest receivable from group undertakings
Interest receivable from associates
Bank and other interest receivable

2013 2012
£000 £°000
1,509 971
400 449
1.702 629
36l 2,049
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8 Interest payable and similar charges

Interest on bank loans and overdrafis

Interest payable to group undertakings

Net interest on pension habihities less expected return on pension assets
Other interest payable

9. Tax charge on profit on ordinary activities

(i} Analysis of tax charge on ordinary activities

United Kingdom corporation tax at 24% (2012 26%)
Adjustment in respect of prior years
Group taxation rehief

Deferred tax
Timuing differences ongination and reversal

() Factors affecting tax charge for the current year

2013 2012
£000 £7000
97 81
1,838 1,510
218 36
- 33
2153 1.660
2013 2012
£2000 £7000
2,439 1,678
339 (221)
y (269)
2.778 1,188
(83) 248
2,695 1,436

The tax assessed for the year 15 lower than that resulung from applying the standard rate of corporation tax in

the UK at 24% (2012 26%) The differences are explained below

Profit on ordinary activities before tax

Tax at 24% (2012 26%) thereon

Effects of

Exapenses not taxable/income not deductible for tax purposes
FRS 17 Pension adjustment

Reclassify current tax to STRGL 1n relation to the pension buy-in
Capital allowances 1n excess of depreciation

Foreign tax suffered

United Kingdom dividend income

Group rehef for prior year

Prior year adjustments

Current tax charge for the year

2013 2012
£000 £7000
22.767 59 986
(5464)  (15,596)
(65) (142)
680 323
(655) -
(29) 20
(26) (33)
3.120 13 750
- 269
(339) 221
(2.778) (1.188)
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9

10.

Tax charge on profit on ordinary activities (continued)
(ti}  Factors that may affect the future tax charge

The company has recogmised deferred tax assets in respect of accelerated caprtal allowances, pension deficit
under FRS 17 (sce note 21) and the cash flow hedges deferred to equity

Deferred tax

£'000
Deferred tax hatulities (13)
Deferred tax assets 1633
1620
Deferred tax 15 provided as follows
At At
1 April Recogmised Recognised 31 March
2012 mincome in equity 2013
£000 £000 £000 £'000
Accelerated tax depreciation and timing difterences 345 76 - 421
Deferred tax in relation to the pension buy-in - - 1,212 1,212
Others - - (13) (13)
345 76 1,199 1,620

Under UK GAAP, deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rate that has been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date The Finance Act 2012, which provides for 2 reduction in the main rate of corporation tax
from 24% to 23% effective from 1 April 2013, was substantively enacted on 3 July 2012 The 23% rate has
been applied 1n the calculation of deferred tax

The Government has announced that 1t intends to introduce further reductions to the corporation tax rate to
20% by 1 Apnil 2015 These further reductions to the tax rate have not been subsiantively enacted at the
balance sheet date and are therefore not reflected in these financial statements

Intangible assets

Software Total
£°000 £000
Cost
At 1 Apnil 2012 2,103 2103
Additions 149 149
Disposals )] )]
At 31 March 2013 2243 2,243
Accumulated amortisation
At Aprd 2012 1,289 1289
Charge for the year 490 490
Disposals (1) )
At 31 March 2013 1,778 1,778
Net book value
At 31 March 2013 465 465
At 31 March 2012 814 814
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1

12

Tangible fixed assets

Cost

Atl April 2012
Additions
Disposals

At 31 March 2013

Accumulated depreciation
Atl Aprl 2012

Charge for the year
Disposals

A131 March 2013

Net book value
At 31 March 2013

At 31 March 2012

Investments

Cost

Al 1l Apnil 2012

Addimons

Disposals

Fair value movement
Foreign currency revaluation

At 31 March 2013

Provision
At1 April 2012
Additions
Disposals

At 31 March 2013

Net book value
At 31 March 2013

At 31 March 2012

Furniture,
fixtures Office

Vehicles and fittings equipment Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

20 2,048 466 2,534

- 40 31 71
- n (38) (59)

20 2,067 459 2,546

6 2024 390 2,420

5 26 39 70
- 2n 37 {58}

i1 2,029 392 2,432

) 38 67 114

14 24 76 114

Shares 1n Shares
subsidiary  other group Investment Other

undertakings undertalings 1n associate nvestments Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £000 £°000
87,010 3578 3469 5,254 99 311

16 841 1307 - - 18,148
- M - (82) (89)

- - - 160 160

409 - 152 - 561
104,260 4878 3621 5332 118,091

- - - 633 633

- - - 947 947
3 2

- - - 1,578 1,578

104,260 4,878 3,621 3,754 116,513
87.010 3578 3.469 4,621 98,678

20




Mitsubishi Corporation International (Europe) Plc

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 31 March 2013

12

Investments (continued)
Shares m subsidiary undertaking

The shares 1n subsidiary undertakings represents the five Western European subsidiaries of the company
located in Germany Spatn, Italy, Netherlands and France The subsidiaries principal activities relate to
general trading of commodities and the provision of services

In addion, during the year the company has invested approsimately £17 million (US$26 mithon) for an 80%
sharcholding in a newly formed company called MC Lrgine Leasing Linited (MCELL) which will specialise
in aircraft engine leasing  To hedge aganst foreign currency movements, the company has a designated loan
of the same amount as a fair value hedge of this investment

Sharcholdings in subsidianies are as follows

Country of Shareholding
Company name incorporation Yo £000
Mitsubishi International G m b H Germany 100 59.312
Mitsubishi France § A France 100 15,072
Mitsubishi Italia S p A Italy 100 1,468
Mitsubishi Nederland B V Netherlands 100 7.292
Mutsubishi Espana § A Spain 100 3,866
MC Engine Leasing Limited Untted Kingdom 80 17,250
Total 104,260
In the opimion of the directors, there 1s no impairment to the carrying value of the subsidraries
Shares m other group undertakings
Country of Shareholding Principal
Company name Incorporation % £ Class business activity
Princes Limited United Kingdom 10 700,000 Ordinary Trading 1n canned
foods
Tnland Metals Limited United Kingdom 909 1431,764 Ordinary Metal brokerage
Green Power Development Netherlands 012 87,262 Development of
wind power projects

Mutsubishi Corporation LT Germany 21 67 156,282 Ordinary Logistic services

Europe Gm B H
Diamond UK Transmisston  United Kingdom 10 2.502,299 Ordinany Offshore wind

Corporation Lunited power transmission

4,877 607

During the year the company has further invested £1 3 mllion in Diamond UK Transmmssion Corporauon
Limited (DUTC) which resulted in total investment of £2 5 million The remaining 90% of the share capital 1s
owned by Mitsubishi Corporation 1n Japan DUTC mnvests 1n offshore wind power transmission projects

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the shares held in other group companies cannot be reliably
measured because these investments do not have an active market The company holds a minority share 1n
these companes with the majonity being held within the wider Mitsubishi group and as a result the company
does not have any control over the cash flows or eventual selling price of these investments The directors are
of the opinion that 1t 1s not reasenable to assume a willing buyer exists for these investments given the above
ownership circumstances As a result it 15 not possible to determune fair value or a range of possible estimates
within which fair value 1s expected 1o lie and as such the directors approxuimate the fair value to be equal to the
carrying vatue
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12.

13

Investments {continued)
Investment in associates

This represents an investment of £3 6 mullion (USS$5 Smullion) man Irsh joint venture, Deucalion MC Engine
Leasing Ltd (DMCELL) specialising in aircraft engine leasing in which the company has a 40% sharcholding
To hedge agamst foreign currency movements, the company has a designated loan of the same amount as a
fair value hedge of this investment

The campany has given a charge over is investment 1n DMCELL 1n conjunction with a third party bank
facility provided to DMCELL  The total value of this facility 15 approximately US$15m of which US$9 9m 1s
drawn down at year end

All the above investments are unlisted
Other investments

The majority of other mvestments relate to the £3 6 million (US$5 5 milion) nvestment in the hedge fund
management companies — Capula Management Ltd ( CML?) and Capula Investment Management LLP

( CIM ) The mvestment in CML 1s treated as an available-for-sale investment and 1t 1s held at fair value with
fair value changes recognised in equity while the investment in the CIM 15 accounted for in a manner similar
to equuty accounting

Also included within other investments 1s a £1 million investment in Seabased AB, a Swedish company which
develops “sea wave” technology for power generation A full provision for impairment has been recognised
against this investment 1a 2013 due to delays in the underlying project The company will continue to monitor
and review the investment on quarterly basis

During the year the company has disposed of 1ts total shareholding n Telehouse International Corporation

Al other investments represent minority shareholdings 1n a number of compames that the company nvesied 1
to augment 1its trading activities The directors estimate the carrying amount of these investments to bea
reasonable approxiumnation of the fair value

Stocks
2013 2012
£°000 £°000
Finished goods and goods f{or resale 173 641 149 848

As stated mn the accounting policies certain ttems of stock are carned at fair value on the balance sheet date
The lower of cost and net realisable value of the total stock at 31 March 2013 would have been

£173,641 (2012 £149.848) There 1s no impact of this on the financial statements as the fair value was equal
to the net realisable value which was below cost
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14, Debtors

Amounts due within one year
Trade debtors
Less allowance for doubtful receivables

Amounts owed by parent company and fellow subsidiary undertakings
Amount owed by associates

Loans to third parties

Corporation tax receivable

Deferred tax assets (note 9)

VAT recetvable

Prepayments and accrued income

Derivative assets (note 20)

Amounts due after more than one year
Amount owed by associates

Dervative assets — non current (note 20)
Other receivables

Total debtors

2013 2012
£000 £000
70,071 58,621
(1,885) (1818)
68,186 56,803
145,645 196,001
4,988 4.139
7,543 7.403
- 2207
1633 345
1,756 -
1,175 1,049
12 350 9,040
243.276 276,987
1,581 2671
4,490 62
18 18
6089 2.751
249,365 279 738

All trade debtors that are due within one year have a maturity of nine months or less and are non-interest

bearing and therefore do not expose the company to interest rate risk

The loans to fellow subsidiary undertakings have no fixed repayment terms  The loans carry interest at
LIBOR plus an approprate margin for group finance In the opinion of the directors the carrying amount 1s a
reasonable approximation of fair value The long-term loan to the associated company carries interest at the
company’s borrowing rate plus an appropriate margin The longest term of the loan expires in December

2014

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting 1n financiat

foss to the company

Credit nisk also arises from trade receivables due to the fact that trading in most cases requires extending of
credit to customers which otherwise may not trade with the company The company's principal customers
suppliers and financial institutions with whtch 1t conducts business are spread across diverse geographical

areas
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Debtors (continued)
Credit risk management (continued)

The company has stringent policies in place, managed by a specialist risk management team, which govern the
management of credit risk, including the establishment of counterparty credit imits and speaific transaction
approvals 1n line with the company’s delegation of authority - The company limits the credit risk by evaluating
the potential counterparties before entering into transactions with them and continues 1o monitor and assess
their creditworthiness after transactions have been iniiated  Creditworthiness 1s assessed using information
from various sources, an tnternal credit rating system and qualitative and quantitative data The system of
internal credit rating 1s based on statistical analysis, with customers being individually rated

The company attempts to mitigate credit risk by using credit insurance wherever possible and rigorous
monttoring of recervables  Depending on the creditworthiness of the counterparty the company may require
collateral 1n the form of guarantees, letters of credit and cash  As at 31 March 2013 the company has credit
exposure of £10 8 million (31 March 2012 £5 4 milhon) covered by parent and third party guarantees in
relation to 11s trade recervables  Credit exposure to any low rated single non-related counterparty or any group
of counterparties having similar characteristics 1s not considered to be significant  The company defines
counterparties as having sumilar charactenisucs if they are connected entities

Included in the company's trade receivables balance are debtors with a carrying amount of £0 08 mullion
(31 March 2012 £0 14 mullion) which are more than 30 days overdue at the reporting date for whuch the
company has not provided since there has not been a stgmficant change n credit quahity and the company
believes that the amounts are still recoverable

Below 1s the table showing the movement in the provision agamst doubtful receivables which aged from
current to over one year Specific provisions are made against receivables where the prospect of collection 15
forescen as unhkely

Movement in the allowarice for doubtful recervables

2013 2012

£'000 £000

Balance at the beginning of the year 1818 1,771
Exchange difference 56 23
Provision charged during the year 369 188
Provision used during the year (179) 27)
Provision reversed duning the year (179 (137)
Balance as at end of the year 1,885 1,818
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15 Creditors

Amounts falling due within one year

Bank loans and overdrafts (unsecured)

Trade creditors

Amounts owed to parent company and fellow subsidiary undertakings
Corporation tax

Other taxation and social security

Derivative habilities {note 20)

Accruals and deferred income

Amounts falling due after more than one year
Amount owed to fellow subsidiary undertakings
Deferred Income

Derivative habilities (note 20}

Other payable

Total creditors

2013 2012
£000 £000
8,764 12,551

37,792 35,117
317 969 285,860
241 -

364 923

1.922 2,121

6,592 5,415

373,644 341,987
I,581 2,672
22 49

7 74

70 3,370
1,680 6,165
375,324 348,152

All trade creditors and amounts owed to the parent for trading transactions are due within one year and are
non-interest bearing and therefore do not expose the company to interest rate risk The long-term payable to
fellow subsidiary undertakings has a matching long-term receivable from the associate (see note 14) The

payable carries interest rate based on interest swap rates + approximately 1%

Bank loans and overdrafis (Unsecured)
The borrowings are repayable as follows
On demand or within one year

Analysis of borrowings by currency

31 March 2013
Bank loans

31 March 2012
Bank loans

2013
£000

8,764

EUR
£000

38

2,880

2012
£000

12,551

USS
£000

8,726

9,671

In the opinion of the directors the contracted interest rates for borrowings are not materially different from the
effective interest rates and accordingly the carrying amount of bank loans and overdrafts and amounts owed to
parent company and feltow substdiary undertakings 15 a reasonable approximation of fair value Further

information 1n respect of interest rate nsk 1s presented in note 20 to the financial statements
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17

18.

Called up share capital

Called up, allotted and fully pad

120.658,154 (2012 120,658,154) ordinary shares of £1 each

Reconcihation of movements in shareholders’ funds

At 1 Apnl 2012

Aggregated gains on cash flow
hedges (note 20)

Actuanial loss on pension scheme
(note 21)

Fair value movement on mnvestment
(note 12)

Profit after tax for the year

Dividend paid (note 24)

Deferred tax on items recogmsed 1n
equity (notes 21 and %)

At 31 March 2013

Contingent habilities

Contingent liabilities at the year end incurred 1n the ordinary course of business are as follows

2013 2012

£'000 £'000

120,658 120.658

Profit
Share and loss Hedging Revaluation

capital account reserve reserve Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
120,658 63,314 1 462 184 435
- - 53 - 33

- (6,313) - - (6,513)

- - - 160 160

- 20072 - - 20,072
- (29.2735) - - (29.275)

- 1525 (13) - 1,512
120,658 49,123 41 622 170,444
2013 2012

£000 £000

21 36

Commitments to honour the repayment of loan obhgauons

The Company 15, from time to time, party to legal proceedings and claims 1n respect of product hability and
other matters which anse in the ordinary course of business The directors are aware of only one claim and
based on legal advice are of the opimion that the Company has meritorious defence available and 1s therefore
able to defend its position sn this matter While 1t 1s not possible to quantify the financial impact or predict
with certainty the outcome, the Directors do not anticipate that the claim will have a material adverse effect
upon the Company's financial position or resulls

As disclosed 1n note 20 the company acts as agent for other group companies in contracling foreign exchange
forward contracts Please refer to note 20 for further details
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20

Operating lease commitments

At 31 March 2013, the company was commilted to making the following payments during the next year in |
respect of operating leases

Land and buildings

2013 2012
£000 £°000

Leases which expire
after more than five years 2,521 2 455

Derivatives and financial instruments
Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the cniteria for recognition, the
basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recogrised in respect of each class of |
financtal asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed 1n note 1 to the financial statements

Financial risk management objectives ‘

The company’s treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and
international financial markets and monitors and manages the financial nisks relating to the operations of the
company through internal nsk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnutude of sk These risks
melude market nsk (including currency risk fair value interest rate risk and price nisk) credit nsk hquidity
risk and cash flow interest rate risk

The company seeks to mimimise the effects of these rnisks by using derivative financial instruments to hedge
these risk exposures The use of financial derivatives 1s governed by the company s policies approved by the
board of directors, which provide written principles on foreign exchange nisk, interest rate risk, credit risk, the
use of financial derrvatives and non-derivative financial instruments Compliance with policies and exposure
limuts 1s reviewed by management on a continuous basts It 1s not the policy of the company to enter mto these
derivative positions on a speculative basis except to a very lumited eatent with board approval, and firm rules
and procedures are 1n place to ensure that the company follows these policies and that the company nisk
position 1s properly managed

The company has entered into a number of financial instruments as part of 1ts trading portfolio, which are used
as hedging tools to match the nisks that the company 1s exposed to 1t 1s the company pohicy to use these
financial instruments and derivatives to hedge outstanding asscts and hiabilities or transactions that have not
yet been undertaken but to which there 1s a firm commitment or highly probable forecast transaction

The company 1s exposed to certain risks and applies the appropriate hedge 1o match that nsk Where trading
exposes the company to foreign exchange risk, forward exchange contracts are entered into 1o hedge the risk
If the company 1s exposed to credit risk 1t will, where appropnate, take out credit msurance 1o help manage
that isk Where 1t trades in commodities physically that are also traded on terminal markets it will use futures
contracts to hedge any price exposure that it may have
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Derivatives and financial instruments (continued)

Fmancial risk management objectives (continued)

A summary of the financial instruments of the company, by category, meludimg the estimate of fair value 1s as

follows
At 31 March 2013

Financial assets

Trade and other
recewvables

Non-derivative assets

Dernivatnive assets

Availabte-for-sale
nvestments

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial habilities
Trade and other payables
Non-derivative liabilities
Denvative hiabilities

Bank overdrafts and
other loans

Current

Non current

At 31 March 2012

Financial assets

Trade and other
recervables

Non-dernvative assets

Derivative assets

Available-for-sale
vestments

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabalities

‘I rade and other payables
Non-derivative [iabilities
Denvative habilites

Bank overdrafts and
other loans

Current

Non current

Loans and
receivables
£000

227,961

2,537

Loans and
recervables
£7000

267,035

1,511

Available-
for-sale
£000

Avallable-
for-sale
£000

Amortised
cost
£000

(107,900

{256,832)
(1,581}

Amortised
cost
£'000

112,121y

(230.241)
(2,672)

Designated
hedging
relationships
£000

53

Designated
hedging
relationships
£000

Held for
trading
£°000

16,840

Held for
trading
£000

9,101

(2,19;)

Total
carrymg
value
£000

227,961
16,893

8,632
2,537

(107,900)
(1,929)

(256,832)
{1,581)

Total
carrymg
value
£000

267,035
9,102

8,199
1,511

(112,121)
(2,195}

(230,241)
(2,672)

Fair value
£000

227,961
16,893

8,632
2,537

(107,900)
(1,929)

(256,832)
(1,581)

Fair value
£'000

267,035
9,102

8,199
1,511

(112,121)
(2,195)

{230,241}
(2,672)

Please refer to note 12 for further disclosure on the fair value on available-for-sale investments In the opinton

of the directors, the carrying values of the financial mstruments above approximate to the fair values
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20. Derivatives and financial instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives (continued)

The fair value of the denivative financial instruments at the balance sheet date was as follows

Assets

Current dertvative assets

- Currency derivatives

- Alummum commodity contracts

Non-current derivative assels
- Currency derivatives
- Alumimum commodity contracts

Liablities
Current derivative hiabihities

- Currency denvatives

- Aluminium commodity contracts

Non-current derivative habilities
- Currency derivatives
- Aluminium commodity contracts

2013 2012
£:000 £°000
1,568 810

10,782 8,230

12,350 9 040

6 22
4,484 40
4490 62

10 277
1912 1,844
1,922 2,121

- 1

7 73

7 74

The fair values for currency derivatives were calculated using the closing price published sn The Financial

Times on the last working day of the month and forward point adjustment from Reuters atso on the last

working day The fair values for commodity contracts were calculated using the applicable closing rates on

the London Metal Exchange and the market premium published by Metal Bulleun

Hedge accounting

The hedging transactions the company undertakes that are not recognised through the profit and loss account
are cash flow hedges in respect of foreign exchange forward contracts and other financial instruments used to
hedge variations in cash flows likely to anise out of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and commodity

prices for highly probable forecast future transactions and firm commitments

In addition, the company also fair value hedge accounts for 11s investiment 1n associate  The only risk hedged
1s foreign currency risk as thts investment 1s US dollar denomunated and 1s hedged by equivalent borrowings
also denominated 1n US dollar The total exchange gain recognised i the profit and loss account on this

nvestment during the year as a result of this fair value hedge was £561,000 (2012 £27,000). offset by a loss

of a simular amount on the loan
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Derivatives and financial instruments (continued)
Hedge accounting (continued)

Below 1s a summary of the aggregate gains and losses that are recogmised directly m equity

2013 2012

£000 £000

Aggregated gans on foreign exchange hedges 54 1
Aggregated losses on foreign exchange hedges - -
Net gain on foreign exchange hedges 54 1
Gains for the year deferred to equity 54 1
Recycling of amounts from hedging reserve to profit and loss (1) -
Net gain/(loss) for the year (note i7) 53 1

As at 31 March 2013, there were three designated and effective cash flow hedges which have been deferred in
equity

The following table details the forward foreign currency contracts outstanding as at the year end designated for
cash flow hedges

Outstanding contracts Foreign currency Contract value Fair value

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Cash flow hedges
Buy US dollars $°000 $°000 £000 £°000 £°000 £000
Less than three months 1,465 578 911 364 54 1

More than three months - - - - - -

1,465 578 911 364 54 1

Effectiveness testmg 1s carried out on each cash flow hedge on inception and at the reporting dates
Management have assessed the above hedges to be highly effective

Market risk

The company s activities expose 1t to the financial nsks of changes 1n commodity price and foreign currency
exchange rates The company enters imto a vaniety of derivative financial instruments to manage 1ts exposure
to commodity price and foreign currency nisk, including

s  forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the exchange rate risk, and

e futures as traded on the exchanges to hedge against any price risk exposure on its aluminum and sugar
trading operations

The major commodity iraded in the current year was alummum The company s nsk management objective
and strategy for undertaking the hedge 1s to eliminate any commodty price risk within a transaction 1n line
with the company and departmental guidelines and rules concerning the internal nsk position

Marhet nsk exposures are measured using sensitivity analysis disclosed below There has been no change to
the company ‘s exposure to market nishs or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk over the last
financial year
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20 Derivatives and financial instruments (continued)
Commodity price risk exposure

The company utilises derivative contracts to hedge price fluctuation on aluminium The company buys and
sells commodity futures on the commodity exchanges as a means to hedge its price risk exposure  The futures
are traded on a bach-to-back basis with each physical contract and as a result very few speculative positions
are held

Al the balance sheet date, the total notional amount of outstanding future commodity contracts was as follows

Alumimum

£000 £000

Long Short
31 March 2013 343,602 500,809
31 March 2012 186,481 321784

These futures contracts cover a variety of settlement periods beyond the balance sheet date, the latest cne
being due for settlement in December 2015

The ranges that have been used 1n the fair value of the material commodity derivatives are as follows
Aluminium US$1,883 — US$2,107 per metne ton (2012 US$2,094 — US$2 260 per metric ton)

The sensitivity analysis demonstrates the difference and nisk that could affect the company’s profit due to the
market and price risk associated with aluminium trading  The following sensitivity analysis has been carried
out on the fair values of the commodity derivatives

2013
Impact on profit
and loss account
Lowest case Highest case

(loss) (profit)

£°000 £ 000

Aluminium futures 2447 2.106

Total 2,447 2,106
2012

Impact on profit
and loss account
Lowest case Highest case

(loss) (profit)
£000 £ 000
Aluminium futures 3,836 1410
Total 3,836 1410

The highest and lowest cases were piched up from the highest and lowest monthly average premium,
contango/backwardatton and published market price data from the last three years This 1s consistent with the
data and calculations used by management in their internal risk management process
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Denivatives and financial instruments (continued)
Foreign currency risk management

The company’s treasury department will undestake cash management to ensure the foreign currency cash
balances are maintained as working capital based on the estimate of future needs  When a transaction resuits
in a foreign exchange exposure 1n any currency then this exposure 15 hedged by the trecasury department
Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy parameters utthsing forward foreign exchange
contracts

A significant portion of the company’s earnings are denomunated 1n foreign currencies  Consequently the
company has sigmficant risk in the translation of these earnings to is functiona! currency n sterling The
foreign currency profits before tax by mayor currency (other than sterling) for the company are

2013 2012

£'000 £7000

US Dollar 22,295 15,603
Euro 885 466
Japanese Yen 1,226 4,772

The company manages the foreign currency risk by regularly monitoring the net foreign currency earnings
against current exchange rates to stering  Additionally any changes to budgeted earmings figures are also
taken 1nto account Where required, hedging action is undertaken and a report on the outstanding positions
and valuations 1s presented 1o the management at each month end

Monetary assets and liabilities by mayor foreign currency at the balance sheel date

Monetary habilities Monetary assets

2013 2012 2013 2012

£'000 £000 £:000 £°000

US Dollar 283,052 270,776 179 118 189 995
Euro 13.955 12 682 31.145 56 650
Japanese Yen 646 1,094 2.139 3,249

(v Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The following table shows the company’s sensivity to a 10% increase and decrease 1n Sterling against the
relevant foreign currencies The sensitivity analysts demonstraies the impact to the company profit and loss as
the result of the change 1n foreign currency exchange rate based on the earnings and the value of foreign
currency monetary assets and habilities shown above

Sensitivity analysis profit/(loss) impact

10% weakemng 1n £ 10% weakening in £
agamnst other currency against other currency
2013 2013 2012 2012
£000 £000 £000 £'000
On net On net
monetary On  monetary On
items earnings 1tems earnings
US Dollar (11.548) 2477 (8.976) 1734
Euro 1719 98 4397 52
Japanese Yen 166 136 239 530
Total impact (loss)/profit (9 663) 2711 (4 340) 2316

For a 10% strengthening of Sterling against the relevant currency there would be an almost equal and opposiie
impact on the earnings and on the monetary riems in the balance sheet
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Derivatives and financial instruments (continued)
Foreign currency risk management (continued}
(a1} Currency risk exposure

The company utilises currency derivatives to hedge significant future transactions and cash flows The
company 1s a party to a variety of foreign currency forward contracts 1n the management of 1ts exchange rate
exposure The instruments purchased are primanly denominated 1n the currencies of the commodity or the
market place that the physical transaction takes place in

Al the balance sheet date, total notional amount of outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts that the
company has committed to are as below

GBP usp EUR
£000 £000 £000
31 March 2013 149,947 84,667 23,180
31 March 2012 154,629 83,628 22,783

These arrangements are designed to address significant exchange exposures that the company has for
contracted comrmutments The vast majority are due to mature within one to s1x months of the balance sheet
date A very small number extend beyond then, the latest one maturing in October 2015

At 31 March 2013 the fair value of the company s currency derivatives 1s estimated to be a net asset of
£1,564,000 (2012 net asset of £554,000) These contracts are valued using pricing techniques involving
assumptions based on observable market data to determune the expected settlement amount, which 1s the
present value of the difference between the contract rate and the current forward rate multiphed by the notional
currency amount This comprises £1,564,000 (2012 £554,000) relating to booked transactions, being
accounts recervable and short-term borrowing and this year the amount of effective cash flow hedges which
have been deferred 1n equity was £54,000 (2012 £1,000) as discussed above under hedge accounting

Listed below are the exchange rate ranges used in calculating the fair value as at 31 March 2013 for the key
currencies held as denvatives

US Dollars — Eure 1284112973 (2012 13289-13339)
US Dollars — Sterling 15185—15176 (2012 15843 -15851)
Sterhing — Euro 0 8456 {2012 0 8384 —0B387) |

The company also acts as agent for 1ts fellow subsidiaries and parent company 1n contracting foreign exchange
forward contracts These foreign exchange contracts are not included on the company”s balance sheet on the
basis that the company 1s only acting as agent and does not carry any risk or reward in such instruments other
than the fixed agency commussion that 1s recognised as income as eamed The fair value of such contracts as at
31 March 2013 was a gain of £74,301 770 (2012 gain of £40,878,240)

Interest rate risk management

The company 1s exposed 1o interest rate nisk given its underlying financing requirements  There are two
aspects of interest rate risk

1 sk ansing from possible mismatch of fixed interest rate bearing assets and Labilities, and
2 sk ansing from possible mismatch of floating interest versus fixed rate assets and liabihties

The company s treasury policy sets out operational guidelines with respect to interest rate risk management
Interest rate gaps are monitored on a regular basts and hedging action 15 undertaken if the gaps conflict with
the company’s interest rate view and 1s material Longer-term material assets over one year are normally
systematically hedged either by matched funding or interest rate swaps
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Derivatives and financial instruments (continued)
Interest rate risk management (continued)
(n) Interest rate swaps

From time to time the company uses interest rate swaps to manage its exposure (o interest rate movements on
its borrowtngs  As at 31 March 2013 the company has no outstanding interest rate swaps contracts
(2012 £mil)

(n)  Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk 15 split into two different types of risks — cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate
nsk

Cash flow iterest rate rnisk 1s the risk that the future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because
of changes 1n market nterest rates. As the company has variable rate bank deposits and debt, 1t is exposed to
cash flow interest rate nsk

Fair value interest rate risk 1s the risk that the value of financial mstruments will fluctuate because of changes
in market inlerest rates  Most of the financial assets and Liabiliies carry nterest at vaniable rates and as a
result management 1s of the option that fair value interest rate risk 1 not si gmificant

The only signtficant interest bearing reccivables or payables that the company has, are loans In order to
manage cash flow interest rate risk and fair value cash flow risk the company has a policy to ensure that where
fixed or floating rate loans are made the funding for them 15 secured on the same bas1s

The table below summariscs the contractual matunty dates of the company’s financial instruments. from the
vear end, which are exposed to cash flow inicrest rate nsk

Between Between More Non-
Less than one and two and thap five mterest
As at 31 March 2013 one year two years five years years  bearing Total
£000 £°000 £7000 £000 £000 £°000
Assets
Cash at bank and in hand 2 537 - - - - 2 537
Loans to third parties 7.543 - - - - 7.543

Amounts owed by parent company
and fellow subsidiary

undertakings 47,917 - - - 97.728 145 645
Amount owed by associates 4,899 I 581 - - 89 6.569
Liabilihes
Bank Joans and overdrafis 8764 - - - - 8 764

Amounts owed 1o parent company
and fellow subsidiary
undertahings 243,068 1.581 - - 69901  319.550
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DPerivatives and financial instruments (continued)

Interest rate risk management {continued)

{m) Interest rate risk {continued)
Less than
As at 31 March 2012 one year
£'000
Assets
Cash at bank and in hand 1,511
Loans to third parties 7.403
Amounts owed by parent company
and fellow substdiary
undertakings 87.821
Amount owed by associates 4,040
Liabilities
Bank loans and overdrafts 12,551
Amounts owed to parent company
and fellow subsidiary
undertakings 217,690

Contracted interest rates on cash at bank and deposit placed range from nil% to 0 23%

Between
one and
two vears

£000

Between
two and
five years

£°000

2,671

2,672

More
than five
years

£°000

Non-
mterest
bearing

£000

108,180
99

68,170

Total

£000

1,511
7 403

196,001
6,810

12,551

288,532

Contracted mterest rates on loans to third parties and amounts owed by parent company and fellow subsidiary
undertakings range from Libor +0 40% to Libor + 0 50%

Contracted nterest rates on bank leans and amounts owed to parent company and fellow subsidiary

undertakings range from Libor -0 125% to Liber +1 00%

The directors are of the opinion that the above contracted interest rates are a fair approximation of the effective

Interest rates as at 31 March 2013
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20 Derivatives and financial instruments (continued)
Fair value measurements recognised in the balance sheet

The following table provides an analyss of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to imtial
recogmition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree (o which the fair value 1s observable

e Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
1dentical assets or habilities,

e Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from mputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that arc observable for the asset or iabihty either directly (1 e as prices) or indirectly (1 ¢ derived
from prices), and

e Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

2013
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

£000 £000 £000 £1000
Financial assets at FVTPL
Derivative financial assets - 16,840 - 16,840
Available-for-sale financial assets
Unquoted equities - - 8.632 8.632
Total - 16,840 8,632 25,472
Financial habilities at FVTPL
Derivative financial liabihties - 1,929 - 1,929
Total - 1,929 - 1,929

2012
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

£'000 £000 £'000 £000
Financial assets at FVTPL
Dertvative financial assets - 9,102 - 9,102
Available-for-sale financial assets
Unquoted equities - - 8.199 8199
Total - 9.102 8199 17.301
Financial habilities at FYTPL
Denvative financial lrabilities - 2,195 - 2195
Total - 2,193 - 2,195
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Derivatives and financial instruments (continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measuremeants of financial assets

Available-for-sale
Unquoted equities

2013 2012
£°000 £'000
Opening balance 8,199 6,988
Total gams or losses
- impairment loss 1n profit and loss (947) -
- fair value movement in statement of total recognised gains and losses 160 (13)
- purchases less disposals 1,220 1,224
Closing balance 8,632 8,199

The table above only includes financial assets  There werc no financial liabihues subsequently measured at
fair value on Level 3 fair value measurement bases  All gains and losses included in the statement of total
recognised gams and losses relate to unquoted equities held at the balance sheet date and are reported as fair
value movement 1n investment (note 12)

Liguidity risk management

The financing requirements of the company are predominantly short-term 1n nature and therefore iquidity
management 15 one of the key risks that the company faces The company manages its financing requirement
and hence 1ts hquidity risk with the a:d of a cash-flow forecast that 1s continuously updated to reflect the actual
requirement 1n each currency Where appropriate the company seeks to match the duration of liabilities to the
underlying assets so as to minimise liquidity risk

The company meets its financing requrements mainly through a combination of inter-group loans and
reserves  The company also has access to uncommutted facilities from a range of banks
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20, Dervatives and financial instruments (continued)
Liquidity risk management (continued)

An analysis of the hquidity profile of the company’s financial llabities 15 as follows

Between Between
Within on¢ and two and
one year  two years five years Taotal
2013 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Bank loans and overdrafis (8,764} - - (8 764)
Other loans (248,068} (1,581} - (249,649)
Related interest (202) ()] - (208)
Trade and other payables (107,308) (92) - (107,900)
Derivative liabilities {1,922) N - (1,929)
Total (366,764) (1,686) - (368,450)
Between Between
Within one and two and
oneyear twoyears five years Total
2012 £000 £7000 £'000 £'000
Bank loans and overdrafts (12551) - - (12,551)
Other loans (217,690} - (2,672)  (220,362)
Related interest (350) - (15) (365)
Trade and other payables (108,702) (3,300) (i (112,121
Derivative iabihities {2121) 4) - (2,195)
Total (341,414) (3,374) (2,806)  (347.594)
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21.

Pension scheme
Defined benefit scheme

The Mitsubishi Corporation Retirement Benefits Scheme (“the defined benefit scheme™) 15 a funded defined
benefit pension scheme operated for the benefit of the employees of Mitsubish: Corpoeration Intemational
(Europe) Plc

The charge for the year in the profit and loss account represents the current service cost, interest cost and
expected return on assets as measured through the actuarial valuation for the year

An actuarial valuation 1s performed every three years, the latest as at 1 April 2012 This revealed a funding
deficit versus the actuanial provisions for the Scheme’s habilities of £5,565,000 Following this the Trustees of
the Scheme reviewed their investment policy in consultation with the company 1t was decided to reduce risks
n the scheme by purchasing bulk annuities and deferred annuities to cover pensions i payment and deferred
penstons  This was funded by a combination of the sale of other scheme investments and a single company
contribution of £8 0 million 1in December 2012 The contribution was part of a Recovery Plan dated 3
December 2012 that was designed to both eliminate the funding deficit revealed 1n the April 2012 valuation
and to substantially cover the additional cost experienced by the Scheme 1n purchasing annuities

The Standard Contribution Rate™ increased from 25 8% of basic salaries to 47 8% from 1 April 2012
A new actuanal valuation will be performed as at 1 Apnl 2015
The penston charge for the pertod in respect of employees was £659,224 (2012 1,496,156)

An interim valuation for this reporting peniod (for accounting purposes) was carried out by a qualified actuary
The major assumptions used for this valuation were

2013 2012
Discount rate (pre and post retirement) 4 50% 4 85%
Rate of increase n salaries 4 60% 4 50%
RPI price inflation 3 60% 3 50%
CPI price inflation 240% 230%
Rate of increase for pensions in payment (LPI minimum 3% pa
where CPI1s used from Apnl 2011} 335% 335%
Rate of increase for pensions in deferment 240% 230%
Expected Return on scheme assets 400% 297%
Life expectancy at age 60
Current pensioners - Men 278 280
- Women 306 294
Future pensioners now aged 40 - Men 294 292
- Women 322 305
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Pension scheme (continued)

Defined benefit scheme (continued)
Based on the above assumptions the surplus/(deficit) in the scheme at each assessment date was

2013 2012

£000 £°000

Fair value of scheme assets 14,382 47,166
Value of Insured annuiies 31,399 326

Total Value of scheme assets 45,781 47,492
Present value of funded obligations (including insured annuities) {41,713) (35,929)

Surplus mn the scheme 4,068 11,563
FRS 17 limit on surplus recognition - (9,084}
Pension asset recognised 4,068 2,479
Related deferred tax hiabihity (935) {595)

Net pension asset 3,133 1,884

The farr value of the scheme’s invested assets at the beginning and at the end of the period are set out below

along with the expected rate of return for each class at each assessment date

Value at Value at
31 March Expected 31 March Expected
2013 return 2012 return
£000 % pa £000 % p.a
Bonds 14,293 293 43,024 315
Cash 89 0350 4,142 095
Insurance annuity 31,399 4 50 326 485
Total 45,781 400 47,492 297
Total expense recognised in profit and loss
2013 2012
£000 £000
Current service cost 354 234
Interest on pension scheme habilities 1,737 1,664
Expected return on pension scheme assels (1,519} {1,628)
Total expense 572 270
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21.  Pension scheme (contmued)
Defined benefit scheme (continued)

Annual return on scheme assets

Actual return on scheme assets

Changes m the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows

Opening defined benefit obligation
Current service cost

Employee contributions

Interest cost

Actuanal losses

Benefits paid

Closing defined benefit obligation

Changes 1n the fair value of scheme assets are as follows

Openming fair value of Scheme assets
Expected return

Sponsor contnibutions

Employee contnibution

Actuarial (losses)/gains

Benefits paid

Closing fair value of scheme assets

2013 2012
£000 £000
(9 375) 7,115
2013 2012
£°000 £000
35,929 30,775
354 234

82 31
1,737 1,664
4,703 4208
(1,092) (1,123)
41,713 35,929
2013 2012
£°000 £:000
47,492 39,908
1,519 1,628
8,674 1,511
82 81
(10,894) 5.487
(1,092) (1123)
45,781 47,492
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Pension scheme (continued)
Defined benefit scheme (continued)

Analysts of recognised loss 1n statement of total recogrsed gams and losses (STRGL)

2012 .
£7000 I

5,487
(123)
(4,175)
(1,664)

(475)

114

2013

£000

Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets (10,894)
Experience gains and losses arising on the scheme liabilities (1,027)
Changes 1n assumptions underlying the present value of the scheme habilities (3,676)
Eftect of FRS 17 limit on surplus recogmtion 9084
(6,513)

Current tax on the pension buy-in 655
Deferred tax 870
Actuarial loss recogmised in STRGL (4,988)

(361)

The cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses recogmsed in the statement of total recogmsed gains and

losses since the adoption of FRS 17 15 a loss of £8,613 700 (2012 loss of £3 626,000)

‘Ihe company’s best esumate of the contributions 1o be paid in respect of the scheme during the financial year

ending 31 March 2014 1s £705,000
History of experience gans and losses
Details of experience gains and losses for the year to

2013 2012 2011 2010

£000 £°000 £000 £000

Experience gamns and losses on scheme
liabilities

Amount (£7000) (1027) (123) 391 (1,075)

Percentage of the present value of the scheme

lrabilities (2 5%) (0 3%) 13% (3 5%)

Difference between the expected and actual
return on scheme assets
Amount (£ 000) (10,894) 5,487 449 1,466

Percentage of scheme assets (23 8%} 11 6% 11% 4 2%

Total amount recognised in statement of total
recogmsed gains or losses

Amount (£000) (6.513) (475) (4,209) {2.078)

Percentage of the present value of the scheme

habilities {15 6%) (13%) (13 7%) (6 7%)

2009
£000

(162)

(0 7%)

(560)
(1 8%)

(239

(1 0%)

The company also operates a defined contribution scheme which began on 1 April 2003 The charge for the
year (being the contributions made by the company) was £491,881 (2012 £423,310) No amounts were

accrued or prepaid as at 31 March 2013
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23

24

Immediate and ultimate parent company

In the opimon of the directors, the company s ultimate parent company and controlling entity 15 Mutsubishi
Corporation. a company incorporated 1n Japan Thus 15 the smallest and largest group in which the company 15
consolidated T'he immediate parent company is MC Europe Holdimgs NV

Copies of the group financial statements of the ulumate parent company can be obtained from Mitsubishi
Corporation, Department PC-B, 3-1 Marunouchi 2-Chome Chiyoda-hu Tokyo 100-8086 Japan and are also
available on Mitsubishu Corporation’s website (www mitsubishicorp com) The immediate parent company
does not prepare group financial statements

Related party transactions

At 31 March 2013 £4,899,000 and £1,581,000 were owed by Deucalion MC Engine Leasing Ltd (DMCELL),
the company’s associated company (note 12) as short-term and Jong-term recetvables (note 14) The company
has recognised interest income of £400,000 {note 7)

During the year the company has acquired an 80% subsidiary called MC Engine Leasing Limited  The
company has recognised £640,000 of interest income as guarantce of aloan At 31 March 2013 the guarantee
loan balance was £76 milhion

The company has taken advantage of the exemption from other related party disclosures available tn Financial
Reporting Standard No 8 - Related Party Disclosures, for transacuions with other wholly owned group
companies

Equity dividends
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year
2013 2012
£'000 £'000
Interim dividend for year ended 31 March 2013 of £29 3m (2012 £7 17m) 29275 7,168
Final dividend for year ended 31 March 2013 of mil (2012 £7 17m) - 7.168
29,275 14,336
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Mitsubishi Cerporation (Mitsubishu Shoj Kabushiki Kaisha):

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Mitsubishi Corporation
(Mitsubishi Shoj Kabushiki Kaisha) and 1ts subsidiaries (the "Company"), which comprise the
consolidated balance sheets as of March 31, 2012 and 2013, and the related consolidated
statements of income, comprehensive income, equity, and cash flows for each of the three years
1n the penod ended March 31, 2013 (all expressed 1n Japanese yen), and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management 1s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements 1n accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits We conducted our audits 1n accordance with auditing standards generally accepted i the
Urited States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from matenal
misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures 1n the consohidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the nisks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error In making those nisk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropnate in
the aircumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 1n accordance with attestation
standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants on the effectiveness
of the Company's internal control Accordingly, we express no such opinion An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinmion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all matenal
respects, the financial position of Mitsubishi Corporation and its subsidianes as of March 31, 2012
and 2013, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended March 31, 2013 1n accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 1n the
United States of America

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited




Emphasis of Matter

As discussed 1n Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, the accompanying consolidated
financial statements with respect to the year ended March 31, 2012 have been retrospectively
adjusted for the change in accounting related to the investment that qualified for the equity
method of accounting during the year ended March 31, 2013 Our opinion 1s not modified with
respect to thus matter

Other Matter

Our audits also comprehended the translation of Japanese yen amounts into United States dollar
amounts included 1n the consolidated financial statements with respect to the year ended March
31, 2013 and, 1n our opinion, such transiation has been made in conformty with the basis stated
in Note I Such United States dollar amounts are presented solely for the convenience of readers
outside Japan

Deboitle Trrche Tofomalin LLC

June 21, 2013

NOTE TO READERS

Notwithstanding the second paragraph in "Auditors' Responsibihity” section of the Independent
Auditors’ Report, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu LLC ("DTT") has performed an audit of management's
report on nternal control over financaial reporting ("ICFR") under the Finanaal Instruments and
Exchange Act of Japan A translated copy of management's report on ICFR along with a translated
copy of DTT's report 1s included within this annual report as information for readers.




Supplementary Explanation

Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting 1 Japan

The Financial Instruments and Exchange Act mn Japan ("the Act™) requires the management of
Japanese public compamnies to annually evaluate whether internal controls over financial reporting
("ICFR") are effective as of each fiscal year-end and to disclose the assessment to investors in a
"Management Intemnal Control Report " The Act also requires that the independent auditor of the
financial statements of these companies report on management's assessment of the effectiveness
of ICFR 1n an Independent Auditor’s Report ("indirect reporting”) Under the Act, these reports
are required for fiscal years beginmng on or after April 1, 2008

We have thus evaluated our internal controls over financial reporting as of March 31,2013 in
accordance with "On the Revision of the Standards and Practice Standards for Management
Assessment and Audit concerning Internal Contro! Over Financial Reporting {Council Opinions)”
published by Business Accounting Council on March 30, 2011

As a result of conducting an evaluation of nternal controls over financial reporting in the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2013, we concluded that our internal contrel system over financial reporting
as of March 31, 2013 was effective and reported as such in the Management Internal Control
Report

Our Independent Auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu LLC, performed an audit of the
Management Internal Contro] Report under the Act

An Enghsh translation of the Management Internal Control Report and the Independent Auditor’s
Report filed under the Act 1s attached on the following pages

Mitsubishi1 Corporation




Management Internal Control Report (Translation)

NOTE TO READERS

Following 15 an Enghish translation of management's report on wnternal control over financial reporting
("ICFR") filed under the Financta! Instruments and Exchange Act in Japan This report 1s presented
merely as supplemental information

There are differences between the management assessment of ICFR under the Financial Instruments and
Exchange Act ("ICFR under FIEA") and one conducted under the attestation standards established by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("AICPA")

In the management assessment of ICFR under FIEA, there is detailed guidance on the scope of
management assessment of ICFR such as quantitative guidance on business location selection and/or
account selection In the management assessment of ICFR under the attestation standards estabhshed by
the AICPA, there 1s no such detailed guidance Accordingly, based on the quantitative gmdance which
provides an approximate measure for the scope of assessment of internal control over business processes,
we used a measure of approximately 70% of total assets and income before income taxes for the selection
of significant locations and business units

(TRANSLATION)
1 [Matters relating to the basic framework for internal control over financial reporting}

Ken Kobayashi, President and CEQ, and Shuma Uchino, Director and Executive Vice President, are responsible
for desigming and operating effective internal contro! over financial reporting of Mitsubisht Corporation (the
"Company") and have designed and operated internal control over financial reporting 1 accordance with the basic
framework for internal control set forth in "On the Revision of the Standards and Practice Standards for
Management Assessment and Audit concerming Internal Control Over Financial Reporting (Council Opinons)”
published by Busmess Accounting Council on March 30, 201

The internal control 1s designed to achieve its objectives to the extent reasonable through the effective function and
combination of its basic elements Therefore, there 15 a possibility that misstatements may not be completely
prevented or detected by internal control over financial reporting

2 [Matters relating to the scope of assessment, the basic date of assessment and the assessment procedures]

The assessment of intemal control over financial reporting was performed as of March 31, 2013, which is the end
of this fiscal year The assessment was performed 1n accordance with assessment standards for internal control
over financial reporting generally accepted in Japan

In conducting this assessment, we evaluated internal controls which may have a material effect on our entire
financial reporting 1n a consohidation ("company-level controls") We appropnately selected business processes to
be evaluated, analyzed these selected business processes, identified key controls that may have a matenial impact
on the reliability of the Company’s financial reporting, and assessed the design and operation of these key controls
These procedures have allowed us to evaluate the effectiveness of the internal controls of the Company




We determined the required scope of assessment of internal control over financial reporting for the Company, as
well as 1ts consolidated subsidiaries and equity-method affihated companies, from the perspective of the
matenality that may affect the rehability of the Company’s financial reporting The materiality that may affect the
rehiability of the financial reporting 15 determined taking into account the matenality of quantitative and quahtative
umpacts We confirmed that we had reasonably determined the scope of assessment of internal controls over
business processes in hght of the results of assessment of company-level controls conducted for the Company, 1ts
consolidated subsidiaries and equity-method affihated companies We did not include those consohidated
subsidianes and equity-method affiliated companies which do not have any matenal impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the scope of assessment of company-level controls

Regarding the scope of assessment of mternal control over busmness processes, we accumulated locations and
business units in descending order of total assets (before elimination of intercompany accounts) and income before
income taxes (before elimmation of mtercompany transactions) for the prior fiscal year, and those locations and
business units whose combined amount of tota) assets reaches approximately 70% of total assets on a consohdated
basis and those locations and business units whose combined amount of income before income taxes reaches
approximately 70% of consolidated income before income taxes on a consolidated basis were selected as
"significant locations and business umts "

At the selected sigmificant locations and business units, we included, n the scope of assessment, (1) those business
processes leading to sales or revenue, accounts recervable and inventones, and those leading to investments and
loans, as significant accounts that may have a material impact on the business objectives of the Company, and (11)
those business processes leading to other quantitatively-matenial accounts Further, not only at selected sigmificant
locations and business umits, but also at other locations and busmess umts, we added to the scope of assessment, as
busmess processes having greater materiality considering their impact on the financial reporting, (1) those business
processes relating to greater hkelihood of material misstatements and significant accounts involving estimates and
the management's judgment, and {11) those business processes relating to businesses or operations dealing with
high-risk transactions

3 [Matters relating to the results of the assessment|

As aresult of the assessment described above, we concluded that the Company's internal control over financial
reporting was effective as of the end of this fiscal year

4 [|Supplementary information]
Not apphcable
5 [Special information)

Not apphicable




Independent Auditor’s Report filed under the Financial Instruments
and Exchange Act in Japan (Translation)

NOTE TO READERS

Following 1s an Enghsh translation of the Independent Auditor’s Report filed under the Financial
Instruments and Exchange Act in Japan This report 15 presented merely as supplemental information

There are differences between an audit of internal control over financial reporting (“ICFR™) under the
Financial Instruments and Exchange Act (“ICFR under FIEA™) and one conducted under the attestation
standards established by the Amencan Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“"AICPA™)

In an audit of ICFR under FIEA, the auditor expresses an opmion on management’s report on ICFR, and
does not express an opimion on the company’s ICFR directly In an audit of ICFR under the attestation
standards established by the AICPA, the auditor expresses an opimon on the company’s ICFR directly

Also in an audit of ICFR under FIEA, there 1s detailed guidance on the scope of an audit of ICFR, such as
quantitative guidance on busmess location selection and/or account selection In an audit of ICFR under
the attestation standards established by the AICPA, there 1s no such detailed gmdance Accordingly, based
on the quantitative guidance which provides an approxunate measure for the scope of assessment of
internal control over business processes, we used a measure of approximately 70% of total assets and
income before income taxes for the selection of significant locations and business units

{TRANSLATION)
Independent Auditor’s Report
(filed under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act in Japan)

June 21, 2013

To the Board of Directors of Mitsubishi Corporation

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu LL.C

Designated Unlimited Liability Partner,
Engagement Partner,
Certified Public Accountant Shigeo Og1

Designated Unlimited Liability Partner,
Engagement Partner,
Certified Public Accountant Kohei Kan

Designated Unlimited Liability Partner,
Engagement Partner,
Certified Public Accountant Kazuaki Furuuchi

Designated Unlimited Liabilsty Parner,
Engagement Partner,
Certified Public Accountant Hideo Shirata

Designated Unhimited Liability Partner,
Engagement Panner,
Certified Pubhic Accountant Masayuki Yamada




< Audt of Financial Statements >

Pursuant to the first paragraph of Article 193-2 of the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act, we have audited
the consolidated financial statements included in the Financial Section, namely, the consolidated balance sheet of
Mitsubishi Corporation (the “Company™) and 1ts consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2013, and the related
consohdated statements of income, comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the fiscal year
from Apnl 1, 2012 to March 31, 2013, and the related notes

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management 1s responsible for the preparatton and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the Unuted States of America, pursuant to the
provisions of Article 95 of the Regulations Concerning Terminology, Forms, and Preparation Methods of
Consclidated Financial Statements, and for such internal control as management determines 1s necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error

Auditor’s Responsibihity

Our responsibihty 1s to express an opimon on these consohidated financial statements based on our audit We
conducted our audit 1n accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consohidated financial statements The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s yjudgment, including the
assessment of the nsks of matenial misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error [n making those nisk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements 1n order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate 1n the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opmmon on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estumates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion

Audit Opmmon

In our opimon, the cansolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, 1n all matenal respects, the
financial position of the Company and 1ts consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2013, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for the year then ended 1n accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted 1n the United States of America

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed 1n Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, during the year ended March 31, 2013, the
Company entered into a shareholders' agreement concerning the management of Anglo Amerncan Sur, S A
(“Anglo Sur”, a Chilean copper mining and smelting company) With the execution of the shareholders' agreement,
the Company 1s able to exert significant influence over Anglo Sur and thus for the year ended March 31, 2013, the
Company accounts for its investrnent 1n Anglo Sur under the equity method Accordingly, the Company has
retrospectively adjusted 1ts investment in Anglo Sur and the retained earnings of the Company

Our opinion 1s not qualified in respect of this matter




< Audit of Internal Control >

Pursuant to the second paragraph of Article 193-2 of the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act, we have audited
management’s report on mntemnal control over financial reporting of the Company as of March 31, 2013

Management’s Responsibihity for the Report on Internal Control

The Company’s management 15 responsible for designing and operating effective internal control over financial
reporting and for the preparation and fair presentation of its report on internal conirol in accordance with
assessment standards for internal control over financial reporting generally accepted in Japan There 1s a possibility
that misstatements may not be completely prevenied or detected by internal control over financial reporting

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility 15 to express an opimon on management’s report on internal control based on our wternal
contro! audit We conducted our internal control audit in accordance with auditing standards for internal control
over financial reporting generally accepted i Japan Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether management’s report on nternal control 1s free from material
misstatement

An internal control audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the results of the
assessment of internal control over financial reporting mn management’s report on internal control The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the sigmificance of effects on rehability of financial reporting
An nternal control audit includes examining representations on the scope, procedures and results of the
assessment of internal control over financial reporting made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of management’s report on internal control

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamed 15 sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for cur audit
opmion

Audit Opinion

In our opmnion, management’s report on mternal control referred to above, which represents that the internal
control over financial reporting of the Company as of March 31, 2013 1s effectively mamtained, presents fairly, n
all material respects, the results of the assessment of mternal control over financial reporting 1n accordance with
assessment standards for internal control over financial reporting generally accepted in Japan

Interest

Our firm and the engagement partners do not have any nterest in the Company for which disclosure 1s required
under the provisions of the Certified Public Accountants Act

(The above represents a translation, for convenience only, of the original report 1ssued m the Japanese language )



Consolidated Balance Sheets
Mutsubishi Corporation and Subsichanes
| March 31, 2012 and 2013

Millwons of
U S Dollars
[ Millions of Yen (Note 1)
ASSETS 2012 2013 2013
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 5 and 12) ¥1,252,951 ¥1,345,755 $14.317
Time deposits 116,024 123,654 1,316
Short-term investments (Notes § and 12) 19,327 26,880 286
'@ Notes receivable—irade 363,130 341,810 3,636
Accounts receivable—trade 2,379,899 2,505,518 26,655
Loans and other recervables 389,678 455,373 4,844
Recervables from Affiliated compames 250,469 288,113 3,065
[nventories 965,057 1,202,295 12,790
Advance payments to suppliers 157,817 145,270 1,546
® Deferred income taxes (Note 15) 45,780 62,135 661
Other current assets (Notes 8, 11, 12 and 16) 258,953 358,374 3,812
Allowance for doubtful receivables (Note 7) (23,809) (28,917) (308)
Total current assets 6,175,276 6,826,260 72,620
® Investments and noncurrent receivables
Investments in and advances to Affiliated companies (Notes 3, 6 and 12) 2,097,976 2,554,161 27,172
Jomnt investments 1n real estate 62,290 31,393 334
Other investments {(Notes 3, 5, 9 and 12) 1,414,584 1,497,521 i5,931
Noncurrent notes, loans and accounts receivable—trade (Notes 9 and 23) 549,712 663,884 7,062
Altowance for doubtful receivables (Note 7) {30,508) (29,528) (314)
° Total mvestments and noncurrent recervables 4,094,054 4,717,431 50,185
Property and equipment (Notes 8, 9 and 23)
Real estate held for development and resale 90,004 44,973 478
Land 335,731 348,014 3,702
Buildings and structures 794,497 908,286 9,663
@ Machinery and equipment 964,503 1,102,476 11,728
Aurcraft and vessels 475,285 643,596 6,847
Mineral nghts 394,206 459,168 4,885
Projects in progress 211,154 446,218 4,747
Total 3,265,380 3,952,731 42,050
Less accumulated depreciation (1,294,466)  (1,465,267) (15,588)
[ ] Property and equipment—net 1,970,914 2,487,464 26,462
Goodwll (Note 10) 60,498 60,859 647
Other intangible assets—net (Note 10) 107,086 123,401 1,313
PY Other assets (Notes 3, 11, 12, 15 and 16) 180,492 195,250 2,078
Total assets ¥12,588,320 ¥14,410,665 $153,305
See notes 1o consohdated financial statements
® {Conunued)




Milhons of

U § Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 1)
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2012 2013 2013
Current iabilities
Short-term debt (Notes 9 and 14) ¥886,431 ¥799,983 $8.510
Current maturities of long-term debt (Notes 9 and 14) 435,221 590,976 6,287
Notes and acceptances payable-—trade 206,049 199,954 2,127
Accounts payable—trade 2,108,171 2,230,074 23,724
Payables to Affiliated companies 186,094 227,354 2,419
Advances from customers 160,795 136,416 1,451
Accrued 1ncome taxes 32,360 56,345 600
Other accrued expenses (Note 16) 118,877 126,867 1,350
Other current habihities (Notes 11, 12, 15, 17 and 23) 331,968 360,144 3,831
Total current habilities 4,465,966 4,728,113 50,299
Nencurrent habihities
Long-term debt, less current matunties (Notes 9 and 14) 3,760,101 4,498 683 47,858
Accrued pension and severance liabihities (Note 16} 51,345 57,702 614
Deferred income taxes (Note 3 and 15) 199,051 264,616 2,815
Other noncurrent habilities (Notes 11, 12, 17 and 23) 285,080 305,501 3,250
Total noncurrent habilities 4,295,577 5,126,502 54,537
Total habilities 8,761,543 9,854,615 104,836
Commitments and contingencies (Note 26)
Mitsubishy Corporation sharcholders’ equity (Notes 18, 19 and 28)
Common stock—authonzed, 2,500,000,000 shares,
1ssued, 2012— 1,653,505,751 shares and
2013—1,653,505,751 shares,
outstanding, 2012— 1,646,172,919 shares and
2013— 1,647,157,995 shares 204,447 204,447 2,175
Additional paid-in capital 262,039 262,705 2,795
Retained earmings
Appropnated for legal reserve 44,133 44,933 478
Unappropnated (Note 3) 3,300,588 3,563,056 37,905
Accumulated other comprehensive mncome (losses)
Net unrealized gains on available for sale secunties 230,362 305,447 3,249
Net unrealized losses on dervatives (Note 3) (8,433) (4,768) {(51)
Defined benefit pension plans (Note 3) (78,303) (87,887) (935)
Foreign currency translation adjustments (Note 3) (426,450) (90,265) (960)
Subtotal (282,824) 122,527 1,303
Less treasury stock—at cost, 7,332,832 shares in 2012
and 6,347,756 shares in 2013 (20,565) (17,970) (191)
Total Mitsubishi Corporation sharcholders’ equity 3,507,818 4,179,698 44,465
Noncontrolling interest 318,959 376,352 4,004
Total equity 3,826,777 4,556,050 48,469
Total liabihities and equity ¥12,588,320 ¥14,410,665 $153,305
{Concluded)
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Consolidated Statements of Income
Mitsubisty Corporation and Subsidianes
Years Ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013

Millions of
U S Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 1)
2011 2012 2013 2013
Revenues (Notes 11, 12 and 21)
Revenues from trading, manufacturing and other acuvities ¥4,590,888 ¥4.944 801 ¥5,376,773 $57,200
Trading margins and commuissions on trading transactions 615,985 621,031 592,001 6,298
Total revenues 5,206,873 5,565,832 5,968,774 63,498
Operating transactions (Notes | and 21)
2011—¥19,233,443 mulhon,
2012—¥20,126,321 mulhon,
2013—%20,207,183 mullhon—$214,970 milhon
Cost of revenues from trading, manufactuning and other
activities (Notes 11 and 12) 4,056,971 4,437,972 4,939,117 52,544
Gross profit (Note 21) 1,149,902 1,127,860 1,029,657 10,954
Other expenses {income)
Selling, general and admmistrative (Note 16) 824,622 £50,214 889,955 9.467
Provision for doubtful receivables (Note 7) 9139 6,524 5,827 62
Interest expense (net of interest income of
2011—¥33,077 mullion,
2012—¥38,633 muthon,
2013—¥37,241 mlhon—3$396 million) (Notes 11 and 21) 6,699 3,202 5,990 64
Dividend income (Note 3) (120,601) {111,236) (144,593) (1,538)
Gain on marketable secunties and investments—net
(Notes 4, 5,11, 12 and 21) (53,439) (21,968) (34,132) (363)
Loss on property and equipment—net (Notes 8 and 10) 2,557 7 085 24,436 260
Other income—mnet (Notes 4, 10, 11 and 22} (49,180) {60,669) (55,032) (585)
Total 619,797 673,152 692,451 7,367
Income before income taxes and equity in earmings of Affiliated
companies and other 530,105 454,708 337,206 3,587
Income taxes (Notes 15 and 21)
Current 168,581 130,551 120,552 1,282
Deferred (Note 3) 30,099 37,779 (7.066) (75)
Total 198,680 168,330 113,486 1,207
Income before equity 1n eamings of Affiliated companies
and other 331,425 286,378 223,720 2,380
Equity 1n eamnings of Affiliated companies and other
(Notes 3, 6 and 21) 167,002 192,418 164,274 1,748
Net income (Note 3) 498,427 478,796 387,954 4,128
Less net income attnbutable to the noncontrolling interest (33,884) {26,452) (27,966) (298)
Net income attnbutable to Mitsubishi Corporation (Note 3) ¥ 464,543 ¥452 344 ¥360,028 $3,830
Yen U S Dollars
(Note 1)
Net income atinbutable to Mitsubishi Comporation per share
(Notes 3 and 20)
Basic ¥282 62 ¥274 91 X218 66 $233
Diluted 28187 274 30 21818 232

Sec notes to consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Mitsubishu Corporatten and Subsidranes
Years Ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013

Mitlions of
U S Dollars
Matlions of Yen {Note 1)
2011 2012 2013 2013
Net income ¥498 427 ¥478,79% ¥387,994 $4,128
Other comprehensive mcome (loss), net of tax
Net unrealized (losses) gains on available-for-sale secunties
{Notes 5 and 19) (25,558) (8,176) 76,992 819
Net unrealized gains (losses) on denvatives
{Notes 3, 11 and 19) 12,493 (33,349 3,036 32
Defined benefit pension plans (Notes 3, 16 and 19) 910 1,225 (16,171) (108)
Foreign currency translation adjustments (Notes 3 and 19) (77,648) (32,722} 351,518 3,740
Total other comprehenstve (loss) mcome, net of tax (89,803) (73,022) 421,375 4,483
Comprehensive income 408,624 405,774 809,369 8,611
Comprehensive income atinbutable to the noncontrolling 1
nterest (26,770) (22,129) (43,990) (469) !
Comprehensive income attributable to Mitsubishu Corporation ¥381 854 ¥383 645 ¥765 379 $8.142

See notes to consohidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Equity

Mitsubishs Corporation and Subsidiaries
Years Ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013

Millions of
U § Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 1)
2011 2012 2013 2013

Common stock
Balance, beginning of year—shares 1ssued
2011—1,696,686,871 shares
2012—1,697,268,271 shares
2013---1,653,505,751 shares ¥203,228 ¥203,598 ¥204,447 $2,175
Issuance of common stock and reclassification adjustment
from additional paid-in capital upon exercise of stock

options

2011—581,400 shares

2012-—475,700 shares

2013— 0 shares (Note 24) 370 396
Issuance of common stock upon conversion of convertible

bond

2011— 0 shares

2012—761,780 shares

2013— 0 shares (Notes 14 and 27) 453

Balance, end of year—shares 18sued
2011—1,697.268,271 shares
2012—1,653,505,751 sharcs

2013—1,653,505,751 shares (Note 18) ¥203,598 ¥204,447 ¥204,447 $2,175
Additional paid-in capital

Balance, beginning of vear ¥254,138 ¥256,501 ¥262,039 $2,788

Compensation costs related to stock options (Note 24) 1,240 1,256 1,006 11

Issuance of common stock and reclassification adjustrent
to common stock upon exercise of stock options

(Note 24) 122 (116)
Sales of treasury stock upon exercise of stock options

(Note 24) {636) (925) (10)
Issuance of common stock upon conversion of convertible

bond {(Notes 14 and 27) 452
1.osses on sales of treasury stock )]
Retirement of treasury stock (Note 18) {9)
Equity transactions with the noncontrolling interest and

others 1,002 4,591 585 6
Balance, end of year ¥256,501 ¥262,039 ¥262,705 $2,795

Retained earnings appropriated for legal reserve

Balance, beginning of year ¥43189 ¥43 670 ¥44,133 5465
Transfer from unappropnated retained earnings 481 463 800 9
Balance, end of year ¥43,670 ¥44,133 ¥44,933 $478

(Continued}
-13-




Milhons of

U S Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 1)
2011 2012 2013 2013
Unappropnated retained eamings
Balance, beginmng of year ¥2,708,547 ¥3,095,348  ¥3,300,588 $35,113
Net income attributable to Mitsubishi Corporation
{Note 3) 464,543 452,344 360,028 3,830
Total 3,173,090 3,547,692 3,660,616 38,943
Deduct
Cash dividends paid to Mitsubishi Corporation’s
sharcholders (annual rate per share of
2011—¥47 0
2012—¥71 0
2013—¥580—%$062) (77,261) (116,802) (95,503) (1,016)
Transfer to retained earmings appropmated for legal
reserve (481) (463) (800) (9
Sales of treasury stock upon exercise of stock options
(Note 24) (1,237) (1,257) (13
Losses on sales of treasury stock (n
Retirement of treasury stock (Note 18) (128,601)
Total {77,742) (247,104) {97,560) {1,038)
Balance, end of year ¥3,095,348 ¥3,300,588  ¥3,563,056 $37,905
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax
Balance, beginning of year ¥(131,436) ¥(214,125) ¥(282,824) $(3,009)
Net unrealized (losses) gains on available-for-sale
secunties (Notes 5 and 19) (24,505) (6,430) 75,085 799
Net unrealized gains (losses) on derivatives
(Notes 3,11 and 19) 12,445 (32,787 3,665 39
Defined benefit pension plans (Notes 3, 16 and 19) 833 1,251 (9,584} (102)
Foreign currency translation adjustments (Notes 3 and 19) (71,462) (30,733) 336,185 3,576
Balance, end of year ¥(214,125) ¥(282 824) ¥122,527 $1,303
Treasury stock
Balance, beginming of year ¥(151,572) ¥(151,650) ¥(20,565) $(219)
Sales of treasury stock upon exercise of stock options
(Note 24) 2,491 2,578 28
Purchases and sales—net (Note 18) (78) (16) 17
Retirement (Note 18) 128,610
Balance, end of year ¥(151,650) ¥(20,565) ¥(17,970) $(191)
Total Mitsubishi Corporation shareholders’ equity ¥3.233,342 ¥3,507,818  ¥4,179,6598 $44,465
Noncontrolling interest
Balance, beginning of year ¥306,174 ¥316,603 ¥318,959 $3,393
Cash dividends paid 1o the noncontrolhng nterest (21,050} (20,870} (14,584) (155)
Equity transactions with the noncontroiling interest and
others 4,709 1,097 27,987 298
Net income attnbutable to the noncontrolling interest 33,884 26,452 27,966 298
Net unreahized (losses) gains on available-for-sale
securities, net of tax (1,053) (1,746) 1,907 20
Net unreahized gains (losses) on denvatives, net of tax 438 (562) (629) €))]
Defined benefit pension plans, net of tax 77 (26} (587) (6}
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of tax (6,186) (1,989) 15,333 163
Balance, end of year ¥316,603 ¥318,959 ¥376,352 $4,004
(Continued)
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Milivons of

U § Dollars
Milhons of Yen {Note 1)
2011 2012 2013 2013
Total equity

Balance, beginning of year ¥3,232,268 ¥3,549,945  ¥3,826,777 $40.710
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock options 492 280
Sales of treasury stock upon exercise of stock options 618 396 4
Compensation costs related to stock options 1,240 1,256 1,006 11
Issuance of common stock upon conversion of convertible

bond 905
Losses on sales of treasury stock (1) m
Net income 498,427 478,796 387,994 4,128
Cash dividends paid to Mitsubishi Corporations’

shareholders (71,261) (116,802) (95,503) (1,016)
Cash dividends paid to the noncontrolling nterest {21,050) (20,870) (14,584) (155)
Net unrealized (losses) gains on available-for-sale

securities, net of tax (25,558) (8,176) 76,992 819
Net unrealized gains (losses) on denvatives, net of tax 12,493 {33,349) 3,036 32
Defined benefit pension plans, net of tax 910 1,225 (10,171) (108)
Foreign currency translatson adjustments, net of tax (77,648) (32,722) 351,518 3,740
Purchases and sales—net of ireasury stock {78) (16) 17
Equity transactions with the noncontrolling interest and

others 5711 5,688 28,572 304
Balance, end of year ¥3,549,945 ¥3.826,777  ¥4,556,050 $48,469

See notes 1o consohdated financial staternents
{Cocluded)

-15-



Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Musubistu Corporation and Subsidiaries
Years Ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013

Milhions of
U S Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 1)
2011 2012 2013 2013

Operaung activities
Net income ¥498.427 ¥478,796 ¥387,994 $4,128

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by operauing activities

Depreciation and amortization 143,819 145,428 157,405 1,675
Provision for doubtful recervables 9,139 6,524 5,827 62
Accrued pension and severance costs, less payments (3,746} 5,955 (2,354) (25)
Gain on marketable secunties and investments—net (53,439) (21,968) {34,132} (363)
Loss on property and equipment—net 2,557 7,085 24,436 260
Equity in earnings of Affthated compames and other,
less dividends recetved (19,979) (48,277) (29,658) (316)
Deferred mcome taxes 30,099 37,779 (7,066) (75%)
Changes 1n operating assets and labhties
Short-term investments—trading securiies (127) (360) 638 7
Notes and accounts recervable—trade (164,364) (285,469) 64,760 689
Inventones (163,488) (95,387) (100,478) (1,069)
Notes, acceptances and accounts payable—trade 74,431 255,880 5,150 55
Advance paymenis to suppliers 27,012 40,420 6,355 68
Advances from customers (40,272) (38,644) {19,260) (205)
Other receivables 10,865 (6,188) (17,106) (182)
Other payables (15,765) 57,593 53,034 564
Other accrued expenses 11,046 8,722 (230} (2)
Other current assets 24,628 23,151 (22,566) (240)
QOther current Liabilities 22,803 31,389 (2,232) {24)
Other noncurrent liabilities 600 12,271 (11,798) (126)
Other—net (63,042) (64,006) (55,408) (590)
Net cash provided by operating activities 331,204 550,694 403,313 4,291
Investing activiies
Expenditures for property and equipment (228,654) (412,991) (577,961) (6,149)
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment 44,366 49,038 45,304 482
Investments 1n and advances to Affihated companies and
other (106,214) (842,725) (408,551) (4,346)
Proceeds from sales of investments 1n and collection of
advances to Affiliated companies and other 38,686 87,122 164,057 1,745
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired (35,548) (57,076) (12,439) (132)
Proceeds from sales of businesses, net of cash divested 3,844 21,546 2,063 22
Purchases of available-for-sale secunties (242,201) (34,273) (19,792) 21
Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities 50,068 20,831 65,602 693
Proceeds from matunties of available-for-sale secunties 263,738 55,263 21,537 229
Purchases of other investments (48,510) (109,955) (61,027) (649)
Proceeds from sales of other investments 65,481 95,494 82,736 880
Increase 1n loans receivable {2717,529) (118,644) {198,252) (2,109)
Collection of loans receivable 206,397 162,888 148,503 1,580
Net decrease (increase) 1n tme deposits 3,475 (17,431) (4,257) (45)
Net cash used 1n investing activiues (262,601)  (1,100,913) (752,477) (8,005)
(Continued)
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Financing activities

Net increase {(decrease) i short-term debt 127,216 257,898 {147,553) (1,570)
Proceeds from long-termn debt—net of 15suance cost 574,254 995,932 1,385,319 14,738
Repayment of long-term debt (526,435) (532,937) (728,347) (7,748)
Payment of dividends (77,261) (116,802) (95,503) (1,016)
Payment of dividends to the noncontrolling interest (21,050) (20,870) (14,584) (155)
Payment for acquisition of subsidiary’s mterests from the

nonconirolling interest (6,620) (2,440} (893) (10)

Proceeds from sales of subsidiary's interests to the

noncontrolling interest 6,172 17,385 2,858 30
Proceeds from 1ssumg common stock upon exercise of
stock options 492 280
Net (increase) decrease 1 treasury stock (19) 613 390 4
Net cash provided by financing activities 76,749 599.059 401,687 4,273
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (17,154) (4,631) 40,281 428
Net increase 1n cash and cash equivalents 128,198 44,209 92 804 987
Cash and cash equivalents, beginmng of vear 1,080,544 1,208,742 1,252,951 13,330
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ¥1,208,742 ¥1,252,951 ¥1,345,755 $14317
See notes to consolidated financial statements
{Concluded)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Musebishi Corporation and Subsidiartes

1 NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND BASIS OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nature of Operations—

Mitsubishi Corporation (the “Parent™), together with its consolhidated domestic and foreign subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Company™), 1s a diversified orgamzation engaged in a wide vanety of business activities, providing varions types of products and
services on a global basis Through the Company’s domestic and overseas network, the Company 1s engaged n general trading,
mcluding the purchasing, supplying and manufacturing of a wide range of products related to energy, metals, machinery, chemicals
and living essentials, 10 addition to natural resources development, infrastructure-related businesses and financial businesses The
Company is also engaged n the development of new business models 1n the new energy, environmental and new technology fields

Basis of Consolidated Financial Statements—

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are stated in Japanese yen, the currency of the country in which the Parent1s
incorporated and principally operates The translation of Japanese yen amounts into United States (U S )} dollar amounts with
respect to the year ended March 31, 2013 1s included solely for the convemence of readers outside Japan and has been made at the
rate of ¥94=8%1, the rate of exchange as of March 31, 2013 Such translatien should not be construed as a representation that the
Japanese yen amounts could be converted into U S doliars at this or any other rate

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared tn accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted 1n the Umited States of Amenca (“U 8 GAAP”) Because the Parent and 1ts subsidianes maintain their records and prepare
therr financial statements 1n accordance with accountng principles generally accepted in the countries of their respective domiciles,
certamn adjustments and reclassifications have been incorporated in the accompanying consolidated financal statements m order to
conform with U S GAAP These adjustments have not been recorded in the statutory books of account

“Operating transactions,” as presented m the consolidated statements of mcome, 1s a voluntary disclosure commonly made by
Japanese trading compames [t represents the gross transaction value of sales contracts 1n which the Company acts as a principal or as
an agent Transactions i which the Company’s role 1s hmited to that of broker are recorded net and included 1n operating
transactions Operating transactions are not meant to represent revenues in accordance with US GAAP and should not be construed
as equivalent to, or a substitute or proxy for, revenues However, as management believes operating transaction information 1s useful
to users of the consohdated financial statements, a voluntary disclosure 15 made 1n the consohdated statements of income

-18-




2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Significant accounting policies applied 1o the preparation of the accompanying consohidated financial statements are summanzed
below

Consolidation and Investments in Subsidianes and Affiliated Companies—

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Parent and 1ts majonity-owned domestic and foreign subsidiaries
that the Parent controls In addition, the Company consolidates vanable wmterest entihies (“VIEs”) for which the Company 1s the
primary beneficiary Unincorporated joint ventures, in which the Company holds an undivided interest in the assets and 15
proportionately liable for the habihties, are proportionately consolidated by the Company All significant mtercompany accounts and
transactions have been efliminated

Investments 1n companies and corporate Joint ventures over which the Company 15 able to exert significant influence over the
operating and financial decisions (“Affiliated companies™) are accounted for using the equity method of accounting If a dechine in
fair value of investments in Affilhiated compames accounted for using the equity method 1s determined to be other-than-temporary, an
impatrment loss 1s recognized equal to the difference between the mvestments® carrying amount and their fair value Certain
majority-owned entities are also accounted for using the equity method where the minonty shareholder or shareholders have
substantive participating nights All sigmficant intercompany profits have been eliminated i proportion to mterests in Affiliated
companies

The accounts of certain subsidiaries with a fiscal year end on or after December 31, but prior to the Parent’s fiscal year end of March
31, are consohidated on the basis of the subsidianes’ respective fiscal year end There were no significant events that occurred during
the interveming period that would require adjustment to or disclosure 1n the accompanying consolidated financial statements n the
years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013

Foreign Currency Translation—

The assets and iabihities of foreign subsidianies and Affihated companies are translated into Japanese yen at the respective year-end
exchange rates All income and expense accounts are translated at average rates of exchange The resulting translation adjustments

are included 1n accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (“AOCI”} Monetary assets and habihities denominated 1n a foreign
currency are translated into Japanese yen at year-end exchange rates with the resulting exchange gams or losses recogmzed 1in “Other
mcome—-net” in the consohdated statements of mcome

Cash Equivalents—

Cash equivalents are defined as short term with original maturities of three months or less, highly liquid investments, including
short-term time deposits, commercial paper, debt securities and ceruficates of deposit which are readily convertible into cash and
have ne sigmnificant nisk of changes i value

Investments 1n Marketable and Nonmarketable Securities—

Investments 1n debt and marketable equity securities are classified as either trading securities or available-for-sale securities
according to the purpose of investment Trading securities are accounted for at fair value with unrealized gains and losses included 1n
earmings Available-for-sale securities are accounted for at fair value with unrealized gans and losses excluded from earnings and
reported, net of tax, 1n AOCI until realized

Investments in nonmarketable secunties include investments i unaffiliated customers, suppliers and certain financial institutions, as
well as investments in preferred stock, and are carmied at cost (“cost method investments™) as their far value 15 not readily
determinable Investments in nonmarketable securities are included in “Other Investments™ in the consolidated balance sheets

The appropnateness of the classification 1s reassessed at each balance sheet date The cost of marketable secunties sold 15 determined
based on the moving-average cost method

The Company reviews mvestments in marketable and nonmarketable secunties for impairment on a regular basis to determine 1f the
fair value of any individual investment has declined below 1ts cost and if such dechine 1s other-than-temporary

For investments in marketable equity secunties classified as available-for-sale secunties, other-than-temporary declines m fair value
are evaluated based on vanous faclors, such as the length of the time and the extent to which the market value 1s less than cost, the
financial condition and near-term prospects of the 1ssuer, and the Company’s intent and ability to retain the investment for a period of
tume sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery 1n market value If the decline in fair value 1s determined to be
other-than-temporary, the cost basis of the investment 15 wnitten down to fair value The resutting impairment loss 1s included m
eamnings n the penod i which the dectine was deemed to be other-than-temporary

For investments tn debt securtties classified as available-for-sale securities, an other-than-temporary impairment 1s recogn:zed 1n
eamings equal to the entire difference between the fair value and the amortized cost when the farr value has declined below cost and
(1) the Company has the intent to sell the secunty, (2) 1t 15 more-tikely-than-not that the Company will be required to sell the secunty
before recovery, or (3) the Company does not expect to recover 11s entire amortized cost basis of the secunty However, 1f the
Company does not intend to sell the secunty and it 15 not more-likely-than-not that 11 wall be required to sell the secunity before
recovery, but the secunty 1s considered to have suffered a credst loss, the impairment charge wili be separated into the credit loss
component, which 1s recorded 1n earnings, and the remainder of the imparment charge, whach 1s recorded 1n other comprehensive
income
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For mvestments mn nonmarketable equity secunties, 1f there are :dentified events or circumstances that have a sigmficant adverse
effect on the fair value of an investment, the farr vatue 1s presumed to have dechined 1f such dechine 15 considered to be
other-than-temporary, the investment is written down to tts estimated fair value The resulting impairment loss 1s included
earmngs i the penod m which the decline was deemed to be other-than-lemporary

Allowance for Doubtful Recervables—

An allowance for doubtful receivables 1s an estimate of losses from uncollectible receivables and ts established based upon pnmanly
the Company’s past credit loss expenence and an evaluation of the probability of future defaults When 11 1s probable that the
Company will be unable to collect all amounts according Lo the contractual terms of the receivables agreement, the receivables are
considered to be impawred The unpairment amount of such recervables is measured based on the present value of expected future
cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective mterest rate or, alternatively, at the observable market price of the receivable or the fair
value of the underlying collateral

Inventories—
Inventones, which manly consist of commodiues and matenials, are stated at the lower of cost (based, principally, on the
average-cost method or the specific-identification method) or market (based on current replacement cost)

Investments 1n Real Estate Subject to Joint Controi—
Investments 1n real estate that are subject to joint control by the owners are accounted for using equity method Such mvestments are
presented as "Joint investments 1n real estate” in the consolhidated balance sheets

Property and Equipment—

Property and equipment are stated at cost Depreciauien of property and equipment other than mineral nghts 1s calculated principally
using the straight-line method for buildings and structures, the straight-line or dechning-balance method for machinery and
equipment, and the straight-line method for arcrafi and vessels mainly over the following esttmated useful lives

Butldings and structures 5 10 40 years
Machinery and equipment 5 to 40 years
Aarcraft and vessels 13 10 25 years

Mineral nghts are amortized using the unit-of-production method based on the proven or probable reserves Leasehold
improvements are amortized over the lesser of the useful life of the improvement or the term of the underlymg lease Significant
renewals and additions are capitalized at cost Mantenance repairs, minor renewals and betterments are charged 1o eamings as
mcurred

Leases—

The Company leases as a lessor properties under arrangements which are classified as direct financing leases and operating leases
For direct financing leases, uneamed income 15 amortized to income over the lease term at a constant penodic rate of return on the net
mvestment. Operating lease income 1s recognized over the term of underlying leases on a straight-line basis

The Company 1s also a lessee of various assets For capital leases, the Company measures capital lease assets and capital lease
obligations inmtially at the amount equal to the present value at the beginning of the lease term of mimimum lease payments Rental
expenses under operating leases are recogmzed over the respective lease terms using the straight-lime methed

Impatrment of Long-lived Assets—

The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying,
amount of an asset may not be recoverable Recoverability of assets to be held and used 1s measured by a companson of the carrying
amount of an asset to the estimated undiscounted future net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset If the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its estimated discounted future cash flows, an impairment loss 1s recognized m the amount by which the carrying
amount of the assets exceeds the far value of the assets These impairment losses are included in “Loss on property and
equipmnent—net” in the accompanying consolidated statements of income A long-hved asset to be disposed of by sale 1s reporied at
the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs 1o sell and s no longer depreciated A long-lived asset to be disposed of other
than by sale 1s considered as held and used until disposed of

Busmess Combinations—
Business combinauons are accounted for by the acquisibon method The Company separately recognizes and reports acquired
intangible assets as goodwill or intangible assets

Goodwll and Other Intangibie Assets—
Goodwll and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment at least annually and when
an event occurs or circumstances change such that 1t 1s more likely than not that impairment may exist

The Company tests goodwill for impairment by first comparing the carrying value of net assets to the fair value of the related
operations If the fair value 15 determined to be Jess than carrying vatue, a second step 1s performed to compute the amount of the
impairment [n this process, a fair value for goodwll 15 esumated based, m part, on the fair value of the operations, and 1s compared
1o 1ts carrymg value The shortfall of the fair value below carrying value represents the amount of the impairment
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Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives mainly consist of trade names, nghts to use land and customer relationships The
Company tests these intangible assets for impairment by companng their carrying value to current projections of discounted cash
flows attnbutable to the trade names, nghts to use land and customer relationships Any excess carrying value over the amount of
discounted cash flows represents the amount of the impairment.

Intangible assets with definite useful lives mainly consist of software, manufactunng, sales and service licenses and trademarks,
ntellectual properties related to feasibility studies and customer relationships These assets are amortized over their respecuive
estimated useful hives using the straght-line method

O1l and Gas Exploration and Development—

O1l and gas exploration and development costs are accounted for using the successful efforts method of accounting The costs of
acquinng properties, dnlling and equipping exploratory wells, development wells and related plant and equipment are capitalized
and amortized using the unit-of-production method Should the efforts to produce commercial reserves be determined unsuccessful,
the exploratory well costs are charged to expense Other exploration costs such as geological and geophysical costs are expensed as
mcurred Proved properties are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes n circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may not be recoverable Ifthe proved properties are determined to be impaired, an impaiment loss is recognized based on the
fair value Unproved properties are assessed at least annually for impatrment with any impairment charged to expense

Mining Operations—

Mining exploration costs are charged to expense as incurred until the mining project has been established as commercially viable by
a final feasibihty study Once established as commercially viable, costs are capitalized as mineral nghts and are amortized using the
umit-of-production methed based on the proven and probable reserves

The stnpping costs mncurred durning the productien phase of a mine are accounted for as vanable production costs and are included in
the costs of the mventory produced dunng the penod that the stnpping costs are incurred

Employee Benefit Plans—

The Company has defined benefit pension plans, defined contribution pension plans and unfunded severance indemmity plans The
costs of defined benefit pension plans and unfunded severance indemnaty plans are accrued based on amounts determined using
actuarial methods

The Company amortizes the pnior service cost pnncipally over the average remaiming service penod of employees expected to
recelve related benefits

The Company amortizes the net actuarial loss principally over the average remaiming service pertod of active employees expected to
receive benefits

Asset Retirement Obhigations—

The Company records the fair value of a habihity for an asset reurement obligation in the period 1n which 1t1s mcurred in case the fair
value 1s reasonably esumable When a abihity 1s 1n1tially recorded, the Company capitalizes the related costs by increasing the
carrying amouni of the long-lived asset Over time, the Liability 15 accreted to its present value each peniod and the capitahized cost 15
depreciated over the useful fe of the related long-lived assets

Stock-based Compensation—

Stock-based compensation cost 1s measured at the grant date, based on the estimated fair value of stock-based awards made to
directors other than outside directors, executive officers and employees, and 15 recognized on a straight-line basis over the
employee’s requisite service penod The fair values of stock options are esimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model

Revenue Recognition—
The Company recogmzes revenues when there 1s persuasive evidence of an arrangement, the goods have been delivered or the
services have been rendered to the customer, the sales price 1s fixed or determinable, and collectability s reasonably assured

The Company manufactures a wide vanety of products, such as metals, machinery, chemicals and general consumer merchandise
and develops natural resources The Company also trades a wide vaniety of commodities and may take ownership nsk of such
inventory or merely facilitate the Company’s customer’s purchase and sale of commodiues and other products, where 1t eams a
commussion for this service

The Company acts as a pnincipal or agent 1n its acuvities for earning revenues The Company presents revenue transactions with
corresponding cost of revenues on a gross basts as “Revenues from trading, manufactunng and other acuviies” 1n the consclidated
statements of income for transactions traded as a pnmary obligor in manufactenng, processing and service rendening for sales with
general inventory risk before customer orders For transactions traded as agent, the revenues are presented as “Trading margins and
commissions on trading transactions” in the consolidated statements of income on a net basis

The Company acts as a principal seller in manufactuning and other activities It also acts as a principal 1n various trading transactions
where the Company cames commedity inventory and generates a profit or loss on the spread between bid and ask pnces for
commodities Delivery in these transactions 1s considered to have occurred at the pomt i time when the dehvery conditions as
agreed to by customers have been met This 1s generally when the goods have been delivered 1o and accepted by the customer, title to
the goods has been transferred, or the implementation testing has been duly completed
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The Company also enters mto long-term construction contracts as part of its manufactuning business Revenues from long-term
construction projects are accounted for using the percentage-of-completion method in cases where the estimated costs to complete
and extent of progress toward completion of long-term contracts are reasonably dependable and there 15 an enforceable agreement
between the parties who can fulfill the obligations, otherwise, the completed contract method 1s used

‘The Company also performs other activities, which consist of services and rental or leasing activities Service-related activities
tnclude performance of vanous services such as financial and logistics services, information and communications, technical support
and other service-related activines The Company 1s engaged i certain rental activities or leasing of properties, including office
buildings, awrcraft and other industrial assets Revenues from service-related activities are recogmzed when the contracted services
have been rendered to third-party customers pursuant to the agreement For revenues from rental or leasing activities, please refer to
the accounting policy of leases described before

The Company acts as an agent and records revenues eamed from margins and commissions related to vanous trading transactions 1n
which it acts as an agent Through these trading activities, the Company facilitates its customers’ purchases and sales of commodities
and other products and earms a commission for this service The trading margins and commussiens are recognized when all other
revenue recognition cnteria have been met

Advertsing Costs—
Adverusing costs are charped to expense when incurred Advertising costs for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 were
¥14,153 mulhion, ¥13,762 millon and ¥14,420 oullion ($153 mullton), respectively

Research and Development Costs—
Research and development costs are charged to expense when incurred Research and development costs for the years ended March
31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 were ¥4,542 million, ¥4,980 million and ¥5,367 million ($57 milhon), respectively

Income Taxes—

The provisien for mcome taxes 1s computed based on “Income before income taxes and equity m earnings of Affilhated compamies
and other” in the accompanying consolhidated statements of income The tax effects of temporary differences between the financiat
statement and income tax bases of assets and Labilities, as well as operating loss carryforwards, are recogmized using enacted tax
rates applicable to the periods 1n whach the differences are expected to affect taxable income A valuation allowance 15 provided for
any portion of the deferred tax assets where 1t 1s considered more-likely-than-not that they wll not be realized

The Company recognizes the financial statement effects of 1ax positions when they are more-hikely-than-not, based on the technical
ments, that the tax positions will be sustained upon examination by the tax authonties Benefits from tax positions that meet the
more-likely-than-not recognitron threshold are measured at the largest amount of benefit that 15 greater than 50% hkely of bemg
realized upon settiement Interest and penalties accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits are ncluded in income taxes in the
consolidated statements of iIncome

The Parent and its wholly owned domestic subsidianes file a consolidated corporate income tax return as a consolidation group

Denvatives—

The Company utilizes derivative instruments primanly to manage interest rate risks, to reduce exposure to movements 1n foreign
exchange rates, and to hedge the commodity price rnisk of various inventory and trading commutments All derivative instruments are
reported 1n the balance sheet at fair value as assets or habilities

Generally, on the date on which the denvative contract 15 executed, the Company destgnates such dervative as either a fair value
hedge or a cash flow hedge to the extent that hedging critena are met

Fair Value Hedge—

Denivauve instruments designated as fair value hedges primanly consist of interest rate swaps used to converi fixed-rate assets or
debt obligations to floating-rate assets or debt Changes 1n fair values of hedging derivative mstruments are recognized in earnings,
offset agamst the changes in the far value of the related assets, liabilities and firm comrmitment, and are included i “Other
income—net *

Cash Flow Hedge—

Denivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges include 1nterest rate swaps to convert floating-rate habihittes to fixed-rate
liabilities, and forward exchange contracts to eliminate vanability in functional-currency-equivalent cash flows on forecasted
foreign-currency-denominated sales transactions Additionatly, commodity swaps and futures contracts which qualify as cash
flow hedges, are utihized to hedge the fluctuation of commodity pnce nsk Changes m the farr values of denvatives that are
designated as cash flow hedges are deferred and recorded as a component of AOCI Denvative unrealized gains and losses
nctuded in AQC] are reclassified inte earnings at the ume that the associated hedged transactions affect the 1ncome statement

Hedge of the Net Investment in Foreign Operations—

The Company uses foreign exchange contracts and nondenvatve financial instruments such as foresgn-currency-denominated
debt w order to reduce the foreign currency exposure in the net investment 1n a foreign operation Changes 1n fair values of
hedgmg instruments are included in foreign currency translation adjustments within AQCI
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Denvative Instruments Used for Other than Hedging Activities—

The Company enters 1nto denvative istruments as part of its brokerage services in commodity futures markets and 11s trading
activities The Company clearly disunguishes denvatives used for brokerage services and trading acuivities from denvauves used
for nsk management purposes As part of its mternal control policies, the Company has set stnct Limits on the posiions which can
be taken 1n order to manage potential losses for these denvative transactions, and periodically monitors the open positions for
compliance

Changes m fair value of derivatives not designated as hedging instruments and held or 1ssued for trading purposes are recorded 1n
eamings The Company offsets the fair value amounts recognized for cash collateral aganst the fair value of amounts recogmzed for
denvative instruments that are executed with the same counterparty under the same master netung arrangement.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements—

The preparation of consolidated financial statements 1n conformity with U 8§ GAAP requires management to make estmates and
assumphions that affect amounts reported therem Due to the inherent uncertainty involved mm making estimates, actuat results could
differ from those estimates Sigmficant estimates underlying the accompanying consohdated financial statements include the
allowance for doubtful accounts, valuation of investments, valuation of long-lived assets, pension, asset retirement obligations and
uncertain tax positions

Earnings per Share (“EPS™)}—

Basic EPS 1s computed by dividing net income attributable to Mitsubisha Corporation by the weighted-average number of common
shares outstanding duning each year Diluted EPS 1s computed by using the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding
adjusted to include the potentially dilutive effect of stock options and convertible bonds that were outstanding duning the year

Guarantees—
The Company recognizes, at the inception of a guarantee, a habihity for the fair value of the obligation undertaken for the guarantee

Fair Value Measurements—

Certain assets and habihities are required to be recorded at fair value The estimated fair values of those assets and habilities have
been determined using market information and valuation methodologies There are three levels of inputs that may be used to measure
fair value

Level l—Quoted pnces for identical assets and habilities 1n active markets,

Level 2—Quoted prices for similar assets and liabihties in aciive markets, quoted prices for idenuical assets or lhabilities in markets
that are not active, and model-denved valuations i which all significant inputs and significant value dnvers are observable in active
markets, and

Level 3—Valuahon denved from valuation techmques in which one or more sigmificant inputs or significant value dnvers are
unobservable

Farr Value Option—
The Company has not adopted the option to measure certan financial assets and finaneial habilities at fair value which were not
required to be measured at fair value

Certain Physical Commodity Swap Transactions Related to Precious Metals—

The Company accounted for certain physical commodity swap transactions related to precious metals as product financings from the
year ended March 31, 2013 Prior to March 31, 2013, the Company accounted for these transactions as sales and purchases of
physical commodities instead of product financings As the result, inventories and other current habdities mcreased by ¥69,113
million ($735 mullion), respectively for the year ended March 31, 2013

The Company did not restate the balances 1n connection with such transactions in the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2012, as the amounts did not matenally affect the Company’s consolidated financial statements

Subsequent Events—
The Company assesses the necessity of accounting for and disclosures of events that occur after the consohdated balance sheet date
but before the consolidated financial statements are 1ssued

New Accounting Standards—
Recently adopted accounting pronouncements

Effective Apnl 1, 2012, the Company adopted Accounting Standards Update ("ASU"™) No 2011-08, “Testing Goodwall for
impairment ” ASU No 2011-08 provides enuties with the opuon of performing a qualitative assessment before performing the
quantitative goodwill impairment test Only 1f an entity determmnes in the qualitative assessment that 1t 1s more likely than not that the
farr value of the reporting unit 1s less than the carrying amount including goodwill, an entity 15 required 10 perform the two-step
guantitative goodwill impairmeni test ASU No 2011-08 does not change how goodwill 1s calculated or assigned to reporting units,
nor does 1t revise the requirement to test goodwall at least annually for imparrment The Company did not elect the option of
performing a qualitative assessment and thus the adoption of ASU No 2011-08 did not have impact on the Company's consolidated
financial position and results of operations in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013
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Recent accounting pronouncements not yet adopted

In December 2011, Financial Accounting Standards Board (the "FASB") 1ssued ASU No 2011-10, “Property, Plant, and
Equipment-Derecogmtion of mn-substance Real Estate a Scope Clanfication  Under the ASU No 2011-10, the reporting entity
should apply the gurdance in ASC Subtopic 360-20 “Property, Plant, and Equipment - Real Estate Sales™ to determine whether 1t
should derecogmize the 1n-substance real estate when the reporting entity ceases to have a controlling financial interest in the
subsidiary that 1s in-substance rcal estate as a result of a default on the subsidiary’s nonrecourse debt ASU No 2011-10 does not
revise ASC Subtopic 360-20 itself but clarifies the scope 1t covers ASU No 2011-10 1s effective for fiscal years, and internim periods
within those years, beginning on or after June 15, 2012 and 15 required to be adopted prospectively by the Company no later than the
first quarter beginning Apnl 1, 2013 The adoption of ASU No 2011-10 15 not expected to matenally impact the Company’s
consolidated financial position or results of operations

In July 2012, the FASB 1ssued ASU No 2(12-02, “Testing Indefimite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairment ™ ASU No 2012-02
provides entities with the option of performing a qualitative assessment before performing the quantitative indefinite-lived intangible
assets impairment test Only 1f an entity determines 1n the quahitative assessment that 1l 15 more likely than not that the fair value of
the indefinite-lived intangible assets 15 less than the carrymg amount, an entity 15 required to perform the quantitative indefinite-lived
intangible assets impatrment test ASU No 2012-02 does not change how indefinite-lived intangible assets are calculated, nor does 1t
revise the requirement to test imndefinite-lived intangible assets at least annually for impairment ASU No 2012-02 1s effective for
annual and internim impasrment tests performed for fiscal years beginmng after September 15, 2012 and 15 required to be adopted by
the Company no later than the first quarter begmming Apnl 1, 2013 The Company will not elect the option of performing a
qualitative assessment

In February 2013, the FASB 1ssued ASU No 2013-04, “Obhgations Resulting from Joint and Several Liability Arrangements for
Which the Total Amount of the Obligation Is Fixed at the Reporting Date ” ASU No 2013-04 provides entities with the guidance for
the recognition, measurement, and disclosure of obligations resulting from joint and several habihves arrangements for which the
total amount of the obligation 1s fixed at the reporting date ASU No 2013-04 1s effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within
those years, beginming after December 15, 2013 The Company 1s currently evaluating ASU No 2013-04 to determine 1ts impact on
the Company's consolhidated financial position and resalts of operations

In March 2013, the FASB 1ssued ASU No 2013-05, “Parent's Accountmng for the Cumulative Translation Adjustment upon
Derecogmtion of Certain Subsidiaries or Groups of Assets within a Foreign Entity or of an Investment in a Foreign Entity ™ ASU
No 2013-05 provides entities with gmidance for the treatment of the cumulative translation adjustment upon derecognition ASU
No 2013-05 15 effective prospecuvely for fiscal years, and intenim penods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2013
The Company 1s currentty evaluating ASU No 2013-05 to deterrune 1ts impact on the Company's consohidated financial position and
results of operations

In June 2013, the FASB 1ssued ASU No 2013-08, “Amendments to the Scope, Measurement, and Disclosure Requirements ” ASU
No 2013-08 changes the approach to the mvestment company assessment mm ASC Topic 946, clarifies the charactenstics of an
mvestment company, and provides comprehensive guidance for assessing whether an enuty 1s an investment company ASU No
2013-08 also amends the measurement critena for noncontrolling ownership interests in other investment compamies and provides
additional drsclosure requirements ASU No 2013-08 15 effective for fiscal years, and interum periods within those years,
beginning afier December 15, 2013 The Company is currently evaluating ASU No 2013-08 to determune 1ts impact on the
Company's consolidated financial position and results of operations
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3 RETROSPECTIVE ADJUSTMENT OF PRIOR YEAR’S CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Company entered nte a shareholders' agreement, concerning the management of Anglo
Amencan Sur, S A ("Anglo Sur”, a Chitean copper mining and smelting company), with Anglo Amencan plc and the other
shareholders The Company had held an equity interest in Anglo Sur since the year ended March 31, 2012, and had previously
apphied the cost method for the investment

With the execution of the shareholders' agreement, the Company 1s able to exert sigmficant influence over Anglo Sur, and thus for
the year ended March 31, 2013, the Company accounts for 1ts investment 1n Anglo Sur under the equity method

Accordingly, the Company has retrospectively adjusted its investment 1n Anglo Sur and the retained earnings of the Company The
effect of the retrospective adjustment on the consolidated financiat statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2012 15 as
follows

Millions of Yen
2012
As Ongmally  As Adjusted
Reported
Consolidated Balance Sheets
Investments 1n and advances to Affiliated compamies ¥1,660,383 ¥2.097.976
Other mvestments 1,854,619 1,414,584
Other assets 178,243 180,492
Noncurrent habilities-Deferred income taxes 197,734 199,051
Retamed eamings-Unappropriated 3,302,093 3,300,588
Net unrealized losses on denvatives (8,421} (8,433)
Defined benefit pension plans (78,318) {78,303)
Foreign currency translation adjustments {426,442} (426,450)
Consolidated Statements of Income
Dividend mncome 115,498 111,236
Deferred income taxes (38,627) (37,779)
Equity in earnings of Affiliated companies and other 190,509 192,418
Net mncome 480,301 478,796
Net mcome attributable to Mitsubish: Corporation 453,849 452,344
Yen
2012
As Ongnally  As Adjusted
Reported
Earmings per share
Net income attnbutable to Mitsubishi Corporation per share
Basic ¥27583 ¥274 91
Diluted 27522 274 30
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4 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Significant business combinations for the year ended March 31, 2012 and recogmzed adjustments for the year ended March 31, 2013
were as follows

Acquisition of Chuo Kagaku Co , Ltd

On October 26, 2011 {the acquision date), the Company acquired through 2 tender offer an addiional 46 25% of votung nghts in
Chuo Kagaku Co, Ltd (“Chuo Kagaku™) whose business involves the manufacture and sale of plastic food packaging products

These nghts, added to 1ts previously held equity interest, raised the Company’s ownerstup of Chue Kagaku to 60 59% of voting
nights As a result, Chuo Kagaku became a subsidiary of the Company as the Company obtained control of Chuo Kagaku The
acqusition of Chuo Kagaku 1s expected to expand the earmings pewer of the Company n the plastics business and its scope of
business in China

The following table summanizes the estimated fair values of consideration paid, previously held equity interest and noncontrolling
interest, as well as the assets acquired and habiliies assumed at the date of the acquisiion

Millions of Yen

2012
Fair value of consideration paid ¥3,597
Fair value of previously held equity interest 1,115
Fair value of noncontrolling interest 3,064
Total ¥7,776
Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed
Current assets ¥271,11
Investments and noncurrent receivables 1,712
Property and equipment 17,759
Other assets 2,072
Current habilities (32,079)
Noncurrent habilities (3,500)
Net assets ¥13,685

Upon remeasunng the fair value of its previously held equity interest, the Company recorded a gamn of ¥75 million m “Gain on
marketable securities and investments-net” for the vear ended March 31, 2012

This business combination resulted 1n a bargain purchase transaction because the fair value of assets acquired and hiabilities assumed
exceeded the total of the fair value of consideration paid, the fair value of previously held equity interest, and the fair value of
noncontrolling interest by ¥5,909 millhien The Company has recognized the amount as a gain for the year ended March 31, 2012 and
recorded the amount 1n “QOther income-net”

The fair value of the previously held equity interest and noncontrotling interest in Chuo Kagaku, a listed entity, are measured at
quoted market price

Pro forma resulis of operations for the above business combination have not been presented because the effects are not matenal to the
consolidated financial statements

The results of operations of Chuo Kagaku since the acquisition date included in the consolidated statements of income for the year
ended March 31, 2012 were as follows

Mlkions of Yen

2012
Revenues ¥16,026
Net mcome attnbutable to Mutsubishi Corporation ¥681
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Acguwsitron of Crosslands Resources Lid and Oakajee Port and Rail

On February 20, 2012 (the acqsition date), from Murchison Metals Lid, the Company acquired an additional 50% of interests in
Crosslands Resources Ltd (“CRL"), which 15 the owner of the Jack Hills iron ore deposit, and Oakajee Port and Rail (“OPR™) which
15 engaged 1o the associated rail and port infrastructure project in the mud-west region of Western Australia

These interests, added to its previously held equity interest, raised the Company’s ownership of CRL and OPR to 100% of the
outstanding equuty interests As a result, CRL and OPR were wholly owned by the Company as the Company obtaned control of
them

Following completion of the transaction, the Company will support CRL and OPR i recommencing key activittes, including
finalization of feasibility studies and obtatning necessary approvals for vanous projects When appropnate and in due course, the
Company intends to introduce a suitably capitalized partner(s) or mnvestor(s) to take up the mterests acquired through the transaction
The mtroduction of such partner(s) will assist funding of the projects and re-engagement with OPR Foundation Customers

As the imtial measurement for the business combination, mainly the purchase pnce allocation for property and equipment, other
intangible assets, deferred income taxes, was not completed as of the year ended March 31, 2012, the Company reported provisional
amounts for the items in the consolidated financial staterents The imitial measurernent has been completed for the year ended March
31,2013 The following table summanzes the final fair values of consideration paid, previously held equity interest, as well as the
assets acquired and Liabilities assurned at the date of the acquisiton The measurement period adjustments did not have a significant
impact on the Company's results of operations and financial position and, therefore, the Company has not retrospectively adjusted
the consolidated financial statements

Millions of Yen Millions of Yen

2012 2013
Fair value of consideration pad ¥27.830 ¥27,830
Fair value of previously held equaty interest 23,224 27,830
Total ¥51,054 ¥55,660
Fair value of assets acquired and habilines assumed
Current assets ¥3,268 ¥2 866
Property and equipment 40,521 33,385
Other intangibie assets-net 14,895 14,937
Other assets 7,129
Current liabilities (3,176) {2,657)
Noncurreat lhiabihises (9,068)
Net assets ¥46,440 ¥55,660
Goodwill 4,614
Total ¥51,054 ¥55,660

Upon remeasuring the fair value of its previously held equity interest, the Company recorded a gamn of ¥15,195 million 1n “Gan on
marketable securities and investments-net” for the year ended March 31, 2012 and 2013 in total

The fair value of the previously held equity interest are determined on a comprehensive basis, taking 1nto account the acquisition
value and the valuation, by a third party, of assets and habihities whach are held by CRL and OPR

Pro forma results of operations for the above business combination have not been presented because the effects are not material to the
consolidated financial statements
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Significant business combinations for the year ended March 31, 2013 were as follows

Acgquisition of M O TEC CORPORATION

On February 20, 2013 (the acquisition date), the Company acquired through a tender offer an additional 52 83% of votng rights in
M O TEC CORPORATION (“M O TEC ™) whose business involves lease, sales, construction, maintenance and transportation of

materials for temporary construction

These nghts, added to 1ts previously held equity mterest, raised the Company’s ownership of M O TEC to 94 56% of voung nghts
As a result, M O TEC became a subsidiary of the Company as the Company obtamed contro} of M O TEC The acquisition of
M O TEC 15 intended 1o expand the earmings power in the structural steel, ferrous raw matenats business and heavy temporary

construction busmess

The following table summanzes the estimated fair values of consideration paid, previously held equity interest and noncontrolling

mterest, as well as the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of the acquisition

Millions of
Millions of Yen U S Dollars
2013 2013

Fair value of consideration paid ¥2,580 $27
Faur value of previously held equity interest 1,962 21
Fair value of noncontrolling interest 281 3
Total ¥4,823 $51
Fair value of assets acquired and habilities assumed
Current assets ¥35,892 $382
Investments and noncurrent recervables 984 10
Property and equipment 10,487 112
Other intangible assets-net 357 4
Other assets 13
Current habilities {28,690) (305)
Noncurrent habilities (3,438) (37
Net assets ¥15,605 $166

Upon remeasuring the fair value of its previously held equity interests, the Company recorded a gain of ¥202 malhion ($2 million) 1n

“Gain on marketable secunities and investments-net” for the year ended March 31, 2013

This business combinations resulted m a bargain purchase transactions because the fair value of assets acquired and habihties
assumed exceeded the total of the fair value of consideration paid, the fair value of previously held equity interest, and the fair value
of noncontrolling mterests by ¥10,782 mullion ($115 million) The Company has recogmzed the amount as a gamn for the year ended

March 31, 2013 and recorded the amount 1 “Other income-net” 1n the Metals segment

The fair value of the previously held equity interest and noncontrolling interest m M O TEC, a isted entity, are measured at quoted

market price

Pro forma results of operations for the above business cormbnations have not been presented because the effects are not matenal to

the consolidated financial statements
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Acquisihon of YONEKYU CORPORATION

On February 27, 2013 (the acquisiion date), the Company acquired through a tender offer an additional 44 27% of voung nghts in
YONEKYU CORPORATION (“YONEKYU") whose business involves production and sale of meat, foods and beverage, and
management of restaurants, etc

These nghts, added to 1ts previously held equity interest, raised the Company’s ownership of YONEK YU to 71 02% of voting nights
As a result, YONEK YU became a subsidiary of the Company as the Company obtained contro! of YONEKYU The acquisition of
YONEKYU 15 expected to enhance the Company's feed and meat business

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of consideration paid, previously held equity interest and noncontrolling
interest, as well as the assets acquired and irabilities assumed at the date of the acquisition

Millions of
Millionsof Yen U S Dollars
2013 2013

Fair value of consideration paid ¥10,670 $113
Farr value of previously held equity interest 6,447 69
Fair value of noncontrolling interest 5,426 58
Total ¥22.543 $240
Fair value of agsets acquired and habihities assumed
Current assets ¥34,076 $363
Investments and noncurrent receivables 5,902 63
Property and equipment 18,336 195
Other intangible assets 716 7
Other assets 1,396 15
Current habilities (24,550) (261}
Noncurrent habihities (2,636) (28)
Net assets ¥33,240 $354

Upon remeasuring the fair value of its previously held equity interest, the Company recorded a gan of ¥985 milhion ($10 million) 1n
“Gaiwn on marketable securities and investments-net™ for the year ended March 31, 2013

This business combinatien resulted in a bargain purchase transaction because the fair value of assets acquired and hiabilities assumed
exceeded the total of the far value of consideration paid, the fair value of previously held equity interest, and the fair value of
noncontrolling interest by ¥10,697 mullion ($1t14 million) The Company has recogmzed the amount as a gan for the year ended
March 31, 2013 and recorded the amount in “Other ncome-net” in the Living Essentials segment

The fair value of the previously held equity mterest in YONEKYU, a listed entity, is measured at the quoted market price The faur
value of noncontrolling interest in YONEKYU, 1s measured at the price based on the quoted market price with an adjustment for
control premium

Pro forma results of operations for the above business combination have not been presented because the effects are not matenal 1o the
consolidated financial statements
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5 INVESTMENTS IN MARKETABLE AND NONMARKETABLE SECURITIES

Investments in marketable and nonmarketable secunties at March 31, 2012 and 2013 were as follows

Millions of
Millions of Yen U S Dollars
{Short-term investments) 2012 2013 2013
Trading ¥9,021 ¥11,800 $126
Available-for-sale {excluding cash and cash equivalents) 10,306 15,080 160
Total ¥19,327 ¥26,880 $286
Milliens of
Mitions of Yen U S Dollars
{Other investments) 2012 2013 2013
Available-for-sale ¥973.879 ¥1,067,805 $11,360
Investments in Other than Debt and Marketable Equity Securities 440,705 429,716 4,571
Total ¥1,414,584 ¥1.497.521 $15,931

Debt and Marketable Equity Secunties—Investments 1n debt and marketable equity securities are classified as either trading
securities or available-for-sale securtties Fair values of debt and marketable equity securities are esimated using the valuation
methodology used to determine farr value 1s n the "Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurning Basis™ section of
Note 12 Information regarding each category of secunties classified as trading and available-for-sale at March 31, 2012 and 2013

was as follows

Milhons of Yen

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealhzed Far
March 31, 2012 Cost Gains Losses Value
Securities classified as
Trading ¥9,021
Available-for-sale
Marketable equity secunties
Domestic ¥369,584 ¥282.195 ¥(16,374) 635,405
Foreign 118,099 165,333 (1,032) 282,400
Total marketable equity securities 487 683 447,528 (17,406) 917,805
Debt secunties
Doinestic 19,317 12 (10) 19,319
Foreign 55,325 288 (5,403) 50,210
Total debt secunties 74,642 300 {5,413) 69,529
Total available-for-sale ¥562.325 ¥447 828 ¥(22,819) ¥987,334
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Milhons of Yen

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Fair
March 31, 2013 Cost Gains Losses Value
Secunities classified as
Trading ¥11,800
Available-for-sale
Marketable equity secunies
Domestic ¥361,904 ¥357.632 ¥(7,875) 711,661
Foreign 116,662 190,216 (875) 306,003
Total marketable equity securities 478,566 547,848 (8,750) 1,017,664
Debt secunties
Domestic 19,083 11 (3} 19,091
Foreign 52,483 124 (3,251) 49356
Total debt securities 71,566 135 (3,254) 68,447
Total available-for-sale ¥550,132 ¥547.9383 ¥(12,004) ¥1,086,111
Miilionsof U § Dollars
Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Fair
March 31, 2013 Cost Gains Losses Value
Securities classified as
Trading $126
Available-for-sale
Marketable equity secunties
Domestic $3,850 $3,805 $(84) 7,571
Foreign 1,241 2,023 (§9] 3,255
Total marketable equity secunities 5,091 5,828 {93) 10,826
Debt securities
Domestic 203 203
Foreign 558 2 (35) 525
Total debt secunties 761 2 (35) 728
Total available-for-sale $5,852 $5,830 $(123) 811,554

Marketable equity secunities classified as available-for-sale primanly consist of domestic stocks and debt secunties primanly consist
of commercial paper and corporate bonds, as of March 31, 2012 and 2013

The carrymmg amounts of debt secunties classified as available-for-sale secunties with onginal matuntes of three months or less
included in cash and cash equivalents 1n the consohdated balance sheets were ¥3,149 million and ¥3,226 million ($34 mullion} at

March 31, 2012 and 2013, respectively
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The carying values of debt secunties classified as available-for-sale at March 31, 2012 and 2013, by contractual matunty, were as
follows

Millions of Yen

2012
Due i one year or less

Domestic ¥7,097
Foreign 6,358
Total due in one year or less 13,455

Due after one year through five years
Domestic 12,182
Foreign 36,759
Total due after one year through five years 48,941

Due after five years through ten years
Domestic 40
Foreign 7,093
Total due after five years through ten years 7,133
Total ¥69,529

Millions of
Milionsof Yen U S Dollars
2013 2013
Due 1n one year or less
Domestic ¥6,198 566
Foreign 12,108 129
Total due m one year or less 18,306 195
Due after one vear through five years
Domestic 12,253 130
Foreign 37,248 396
Total due after one year through five years 49,501 526
Due afier five years through ten years
Domestic 640 7
Foreign
Total due after five years through ten years 640 7
Total ¥68,447 $728

Certain debt securities, such as mongage-backed secunties, are not due at a single maturity date since 1ssuers of the securities may
have the nght to redeem the secunties pnor to therr contractual final matunity date Such secunties are grouped in the table above
based on their anticipated matunty date as of March 31, 2013

Proceeds and gross realized gains and losses from sales of mvestments in debt and marketable equity secunities classified as
available-for-sale secunties for the vears ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 were as follows

Milhons of
Millions of Yen U S Dollars
2011 2012 2013 2013
Proceeds from sales ¥50,068 ¥20,831 ¥65,602 $698
Gross realized gains ¥31,774 ¥11,399 ¥38,237 $407
Gross reahized losses (485) (989) (544) (6)
Net realized gains ¥31,289 ¥10,410 ¥37,693 5401

The amounts of trading gains and losses for the penod that relate to trading secunties sull held at the reporting date were losses of
¥316 mllion, losses of ¥967 milhion and losses of ¥400 mallion ($4 muilion), for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013,
respectively
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For the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, impairment losses of ¥12,073 mullion, ¥3,314 mullien and ¥1},459 million
($122 mulhion), respectively, were recognized on the investments in debt and marketable equitv secunties classified as
available-for-sale securities as the deciine in the fair value was considered to be other-than-temporary

With respect to the foreign debt securities, the Company recognized impairment losses 1n earmings as the impairments were deemed
to be attnibutable to credit losses No impairment toss has been recognized on domestic bond The followang table sets forth a
}2-month roll forward of such credit losses for debt securities held as of March 31, 2012 and 2013

Milhons of
Milhons of Yen U S Dollars
2012 2013 2013

Balance at beginning of year ¥8.310 ¥8,310 $38
Additions for debt securities that have been previously impaired
Additions for debt secunties that have not been previously impatred
Reductions due to sales or redemptions
Balance at end of year ¥8310 ¥8,310 $88

The Company considers the mvestment rating, the contractual nature of the investments, the underlying collateral, the nghts to and
prionty of the investment's cash flows and the condition of the 1ssuers, when recogmizing and measuring the amount related to credit

losses

The following table sets forth gross unrealized losses and the fawr value of the Company’s investments in debt and marketable
securities classified as available-for-sale secunties with unrealized losses that are not deemed to be other-than-temporary, aggregated
by investment category and by the length of ime that individual securities have been 10 a contintous unrealized loss position, at

March 31, 2012 and 2013

Millions of Yen

Less than 12 Months
12 Months or Longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
March 31, 2012 Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Marketable equity securities
Domestic ¥95,070 ¥(14,155) ¥13,441 ¥(2,219)  ¥108,511 ¥(16,374)
Foreign 10,422 (835) 389 (197) 10,811 (1,032)
Total marketable equity securities 105,492 (14,990) 13,830 (2,416) 119,322 (17,406)
Debt securities
Domestic 2,990 (10) 2,990 (10)
Foreign 21,890 (1,190) 20,231 (4,213) 42,121 (5,403)
Total debt securities 21,890 {1,190) 23,221 {(4,223) 45,111 (5,413)
Total ¥127,382 ¥(16,180) ¥37,051 ¥(6,639) ¥164,433  ¥(22,819)
Millions of Yen
Less than 12 Months
12 Months or Longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
March 31, 2013 Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Marketable equity secunties
Domestic ¥96,216  ¥(5,202) ¥17,325  ¥(2,673) ¥113,541 ¥(7.,875)
Foreign 19,129 (792) 647 (83) 19,776 (875)
Total marketable equity securities 115,345 (5,994) 17,972 (2,756) 133,317 (8,750)
Debt secunities
Domestic 2,997 (3) 2,997 3)
Foreign 8,356 {(172) 39,961 (3,0679) 48,317 {3,251)
Total debt secunues 8,356 {172) 42958 {3,082) 51,314 (3,254)
Total ¥123,701 ¥(6,166) ¥60,930  ¥(5838) ¥184,631 ¥(12,004)
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Millions of US Dollars

Less than 12 Months
12 Months or Longer Total
Far  Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unreahzed
March 31, 2013 Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Marketable equity secunties
Domestic $1,024 $(56) 184 $(28) $1,208 5(84)
Foreign 203 {8) 7 1) 210 (€}
Total marketable equity securities 1,227 (64) 191 (29) 1,418 (93)
Debt securities
Domestic 32 32
Foreign 89 (2) 425 (33) 514 (35)
Tota! debt secunties 89 ) 457 (33) 546 (35)
Total $1,316 $(66) $648 5(62) $1,964 $(128)

Marketable equity securities—The Company’s unrealized losses on investments in marketable equity secunities mainly relate to
investments n the common stock of approximately 100 customers and supphers of the Company The unrealized losses were due to
decline in market prices The fair values of individual investments are approximately 1% to 26% less than cost The Company
determines whether the decrease in fair value of the investments in marketable domestic and forexgn stocks categonzed as
"Avalable-for-sale” 1s other than temporary by taking 1nto consideration the period and the extent that the fair value 1s less than the
book value, and the Company's ability and intent to hold the tvestments for a reasonable penod of ume sufficient for a recovery of
farr value The Company does not consider these investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at March 31, 2013

In connection with certamn reorganizations undertaken by 1ssuers in which the Company held shares, the Company recogmized gains
or losses on the exchange of 1ts investment for the acquiree’s shares, based on the difference between the fair value of the acquirer's
shares and the recorded basis of shares surrendered, amounting to net loss of ¥487 mullion ($5 mullion) for the year ended March 31,
2013

Debt secunties—The Company’s unrealized losses on mvestments in debt securities, mamly relate to approximately 30 corporate
bonds and so on, with individual fairr value of approximately 1% to 30% less than cost The Company asserts that it has no intent to
sell, and it 15 not more-hikely-than-not the Company wil! be required to sell these investments before recovery of fair value The
Company has 1ts ongoing review process which includes consideration of the investment rating, the contractual nature of the
investments, the underlying collateral, the nghts to and prionty of the investment’s cash flows, and the condition of the 1ssuers The
Company currently believes that all amounts will be redeemed when due according to the contractual terms of these mvestments
Therefore, the Company does not consider these investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at March 31, 2013

Investments in Other than Debt and Marketable Equity Secunties— Other investments include mvestments 1n nonmarketable equity
securittes of unaffiliated customers, suppliers and certain financial institutions, which include certan preferred siocks, amounting to
¥364,575 milhon and ¥352,991 million ($3,755 mithon) at March 31, 2012 and 2013, respectively Other investments also mclude
guarantee deposits, mvestments 1n noncurrent time deposits, and others, amounting to ¥76,130 million and ¥76,725 million (3816
nullion) at March 31, 2012 and 2013, respectively

Investments in nonmarketable equity secunties of unaffihated companies are carned at cost (“cost method investments™), as fair
value 1s not determinable However, 1f there are 1dentified events or circumstances that have a significant adverse effect on the farr
value of an investment, the Company determines the fair value of the investment The fair values of nonmarketable equity secunties
are estimated using the valuation methodology used to determine fair value 1s in the "Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value
on a Nonrecurnng Basis"” section of Note 12 If the carrying value of the investment exceeds the estimated fair value and the dechine
n the fair value 15 considered to be other-than-temporary, the 1nvestment 15 wntten down to 1ts estimated fair value

Cost method investments of ¥362,828 million and ¥337,085 mullion ($3,586 million) at March 31, 2012 and 2013, respeciively, were
not evaluated for impairment since there were no 1dentified events or circumstances that could have had a significant adverse effect
on the far values of the investments, and the Company deterruned that 1t was not practicable to esumate the fair values of the
nvestments

Impairment losses recognized for ¢ost method investments totaled ¥5,261 mullion, ¥3,188 million and ¥10,367 mullion ($110
mullion) for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, respectively
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6 INVESTMENTS IN AND ADVANCES TO AFFILIATED COMPANIES
Investments in and advances to Affiliated compames at March 31, 2012 and 2013 consisted of the following

Millions of
Mititons of Yen U S Dollars
2012 2013 2013
Investments in Affihated companies ¥1,988,236 ¥2,425,361 $25,802
Advances 109,740 128,800 1,370
Total ¥2,097,976  ¥2,554,161 $27,172

Affihated companies include, among others, LAWSON, INC (“LAWSON,” 32 49%), Japan Australia LNG (MIMI) Py, Ltd

(50 00%), MI Berau B V (“MI Berau,” 56 00%), Hokuetsu Kishu Paper Co, Ltd (25 15%), SPDC Ltd (30 39%), Mozal SARL
(25 00%), ENCORE ENERGY PTE LTD (39 40%), Chiyoda Corporation (33 56%), Mitsubishs UF] Lease & Finance Company
Ltd (20 00%), Coal & Alled Industries Limited (20 00%), Cutbank Rudge Partnership (40 00%), Compama Minera de! Pacifico § A
(25 00%), Iron Ore Company of Canada (26 18%), Anglo American Sur S A (20 44%), and Sulawes: LNG Development

Ltd (“Sulawes) LNG Development,” 75 00%)

The Company holds a 56% ownership interest 1n M1 Berau, a Netherlands corporation M1 Berau 1s 2 joint venture, participating in
the Tangguh LNG Project in Indonesia, which was established with INPEX CORPORATION (“INPEX™), a minonty shareholder
bolding a 44% ownership interest. Under the yoint venture agreement with INPEX, sigruficant decisions regarding M1 Berau’s
operations require unanimous consent by the Company and INPEX The nghts given to INPEX in the joint venture agreement are
considered substantive participating rights and contral over the operations or assets of M1 Berau does not rest with the Company
Accordingly, the Company accounts for its investment in MI Berau using the equity method

The Company holds a 75% ownership nterest in Sulawes) LNG Development, a UK corporation Sulawesi LNG Development 1s a
holding company, investing 1n the Donggi Senoro LNG Project in Indonesia, which was established wath Korea Gas Corporation
(“KOGAS”), aminority shareholder holding a 25% ownership interest Under the shareholder's agreement with KOGAS, significant
decisions regarding Sulawes: LNG Development’s operations require unamimous consent by the Company and KOGAS The nghts
given to KOGAS i the shareholder's agreement are considered substantive participating rights, and control over the operations or
assets of Sulawesi LNG Development does not rest with the Company Accordingly, the Company accounts for its mvestment in
Sulawesi LNG Development using the equity method

The Affiliated companies operate mainly 1n the manufacturing, resource development and service industries, and significantly
participate 1n the Company’s operating transactions as either purchasers or suppliers They principally operate 1n Japan, Asia,
Oceania, Europe, North Amenca, and Latin America

The difference between the carrying value of the investments 1n Affihated compames and the Company's equity 1n the underlying net
assets of such Affihated compames was ¥561,685 milhion and ¥634,284 million ($6,748 mullion) at March 31, 2012 and 2013,
respectively The amounts represent the difference between the cost of the investments and the carrying amount of the underlying net
assets of the Affihated companies at the ime of iniual and subsequent investments and were allocated to the 1dentifiable assets and
habil:ties The unallocated residual amounts were recogmized as equity method goodwill The amounts allocated to the wdentifiable
assets and liabilittes of the Affihated companies are generally atiributed to property and equipment which consist pnmarily of
mining nghts and are subject to depreciation
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Investments in Affihated companies included investments in marketable equity securities with carrying amounts of ¥399,647 milhon
and ¥407,093 mulhon ($4,331 million) at March 31, 2012 and 2013, respectively Corresponding aggregate quoted market values
(Level 1 at the fair value measurement) were ¥458,331 mullion and ¥541,536 mallion ($5,76 1 million), respectively Included in such
amounts was the mvestment itn LAWSON of ¥142,394 rmilion and ¥147,425 mullion ($1,568 million) with quoted market values of
¥168,800 rmllion and ¥234,895 million ($2,499 million) at March 31, 2012 and 2013, respectively

Summanzed financial information with respect to the Affiliated companies accounted for using the equity method as of and for the
vears ended March 31,2011, 2012 and 2013 were as follows

Millions of
Milhons of Yen U S Dollars
2012 2013 2013
Current assets ¥6,705,818  ¥7,066,227 $75173
Property and equipment—net 4,264,599 5,136,327 54,642
Other assets 2,230,066 2,610,868 27,775
Total assets ¥13,200,483 ¥14,813,422 $157,590
Current habilimes ¥5,052,977 ¥5.344,164 $56,853
Noncurrent habilities 3,395,550 3,860,754 41,072
Affihated companies® sharcholders’ equity 4,607,060 5,481,217 58,311
Noncontrolling interest 144,896 127,287 1,354
Total hiabilities and equity ¥13,200,483  ¥14,813,422 $157,590
Milhons of
Millions of Yen U S Dollars
2011 2012 2013 2013
Revenues ¥6,930,557 ¥7,032,248 ¥7,005,842 $74,530
Gross profit ¥2,101,288 ¥2,154,118 ¥2,085,170 $22,183
Net income attributable to Affihated companies ¥588,380 ¥651,296 ¥596,915 $6,350

The Compantes’ revenues and purchases from the Affihated companies for the years ended March 31, 2011 2012 and 2013 were as

follows
Milhons of
Milhions of Yen U S Dollars
2011 2012 2013 2013
Revenues ¥392,117 ¥280,770 ¥266,017 $2.830
Purchases 560,171 532,399 742,117 7,895

Dhividends received from the Affibated companies for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 were ¥147,023 million,
¥144,141 mlhon and ¥134,616 mithon ($1,432 million), respectively

In connection with certain business combinations and reorganizations undertaken by the Company’s Affiliated companies, the
Company recogmzed exchange gains of ¥35,444 million for the years ended March 31, 2011 The gains were the result of the
difference between the carrying amount and fair value of the shares exchanged The gams are recorded 1n “Gan on marketable
securities and investmenis—net” 1n the consolidated statements of income

-36-




7 ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL RECEIVABLES

The Company conducts vartous transactions where 1t extends credit to 1ts customers 1n the form of trade credit, including accounts
receivable, advance payments and financings The Company 1s exposed to credit nisk from losses ansing from the deterioration in the
credit or bankruptcy of its customers

The Company engages in transactions with customers in various businesses and industnes However, the Company, regardless of the
type of business and industry, evaluates the nature and characterisucs of the credit nsk using a consistent method Regardless of the
business or industry, the customers’ financial position 1s factored mto the calculatton The Company does not manage uts credit risk
using various categories of credit risk, based on the business or indusiry of the customer, because the Company views credit nisk as a
lower nsk than market and foreign currency nisks

Therefore, the Company manages credit nsk and evaluates the necessity of its allowance for credit losses based on a single in-house
policy

However, the Company manages credit nsk for consumers separately from corporate customers because the Company 1s not able to
obtamn information of consumers and there are humitations wn evaluating the consumer’s financial condition Recetvables from
consumers are pnimarily loans in the automobule sales finance business

Short-term or long-term receivables are contractual rights 1o receive money When 1t 1s probable that, based on current conditions,
the Company will not be able to coliect all amounts, including amounts with interest added according to the contractual terms of the
recervables agreement, the receivables are considered to be impaired receivables

The Company does not consider recervables that are past due as an impaired receivable if the Company expects to collect all amounts
due, including interest accrued, during the penod the receivable 1s past due In principle the Company recognizes interest tncome on
impaired receivables on a cash basis Interest income on impaired receivables recognmized 1n the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012
and 2013 was not material

The Company determines an appropnate amount of allowance for financing receivables that are past the due date based on terms of
the contract, and the receivables are charged-off at uncollectible amount when the Company’s nghts to collect are lost as a result of a
legal hquidation of its customer

The credit nsk management policy and the accounting policy for the allowance for credit losses for corporate customers and
consumers are described in the following paragraphs

Corporale customers—

The Company establishes credit and transaction imits for each corporate customer and applies an internal rating system The internal
rating system 15 determned based on the corporate custorers’ financial information, credit ratings from applicable agencies and
other credit indicators These internal ratings are updated once a year

The Company evaluates receivables from corporate customers for impairment based on changes in the mternal ratings and the
financial condition of corporate customers

The Company determines an allowance for credit losses to be recorded for impaired receivables based upon factors surrounding the
collection history, past credit loss expenence, credit ratings from apphcable agencies and other mformation For the valuation of
long-term receivables, the Company uses the discounted cash flow method based on assumptions such as an estirnate of the future
repayment plan and the discount rates, or evaluates based on the observable market price of the receivable or the fair value of the
underlying collateral The Company also collectively evaluates receivables which are not considered to be impaired recervables and
determines an amount of allowance for credit losses based on the past credit loss rate and the probability of future default

Consumers—

The Company performs ongowng credit valuations of consumers and establishes credit limits based upon the length of the current
credit-worthiness using the consumers’ payment history The Company evaluates receivables with consumers for impairment based
on any delay in collection The Company evaluates an allowance for credit losses to be recorded for impaired receivables with
consumers based upon the length of the perod past due, the coliecuion status and other information The Company alse collectively
evaluates consumer receivables which are not considered impaired receivables and determines an amount of allowance for credit
losses based on the past credit loss rate
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Impawred receivables—

Impaired receivables and the related allowance for credit losses at March 31, 2012 and 2013 consisted of the following

Millions of
Milhions of Yen U S Dollars
2012 2013 2013
Recorded mvestment
Corporate customers ¥50,725 ¥97.652 $1,039
Consumers 7,910 8,516 %0
Total ¥58,635 ¥106,168 $1,129 \
Related allowance |
Corporate customers ¥31,106 ¥34,096 $363
Consumers 3,705 4,145 44
Total ¥34,811 ¥38,241 3407

The average recorded mvestments i the impaired recervables from corporate customers and consumers for the quarter ended March
31, 2011 were ¥54,973 mullion and ¥12,266 million, respectively

The average recorded investments 1n the impaired recesvables from corporate customers and consumers for the year ended March 31,
2012 were ¥53,155 milhion and ¥7,287 miihon, respectively

The average recorded investments in the impaired recervables from corporate customers and consumers for the year ended March 31,
2013 were ¥66,081 million ($703 million) and ¥7,852 mullion ($84 mullion), respectively

The allowance for credit losses related to financing receivables—

Financaing recervables include Joans and noncurrent accounts recervable—trade that have the characteristics of financings, and do not
include the receivables without the charactenstics of financings such as current accounts receivable—trade

Financing recervables are mainly included in “Loans and other recervables™ and “Noncurrent notes, loans and accounts
recervable—trade™ lhine 1tems 1n the consohdated balance sheets
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The following table presents the activity of the allowance for credit losses related to financing recervables, the balance of the
allowance for credit losses related to financing receivables and the balance of financing receivables as of and for the quarter ended

March 31, 2011
Millions of Yen
b 2011
Corporate
CuStomers Consumers
Balance at January 1, 2011 ¥27.266 ¥6,395
Provision for credit losses 1,429 387
Charge-offs (2,675) (284)
® Other* 4,373 388
Balance at end of year ¥30,393 ¥6,886
Ending balance of allowance for credit losses
Collective impairment allowance
(higher credit quality financing receivables) 2,005 2,978
@ Individual impairment allowance**
(lower credit quality financing receivables) 28,388 3,908
Ending balance of financing receivables
Higher credit quahity receivables ¥598,702 ¥292.645
Lower credit quality receivables 41,304 7,392
® Total ¥640,006 ¥300,037

* “Other” principally includes allowances that were recorded on trade receivables where the trade recervables have been modified
during the quarter and are now classified as financing receivables as of March 31, 2011 Other also includes the effect of changes in
foreign currency exchange rales

** Finance receivables are individually evaluated for impairment and the related allowance 1s included 1n impaired receivables

The following table presents the activity of the allowance for credit losses related 10 financing receivables, the balance of the
® allowance for credit losses related to financing receivabies and the balance of financing receivables as of and for the year ended
March 31, 2012

Milltons of Yen
2012
Corporate
Customers Consumers
. Balance at beginning of year ¥30,393 ¥6,886
Provision for credit losses 2,650 1,718
Charge-offs (11,636) (410)
Other* 7,936 (368)
Balance at end of year ¥29.343 ¥7,826
e Ending balance of allowance for credit losses
Collectuve impairment allowance
(higher credit quality financing receivables) 4,139 4,121
Individual impairment allowance**
(lower credit quality financing receivables) 25,204 3,705
Ending balance of financing receivables
o Higher credit quality receivables ¥608,731 ¥329,552
Lower credit quality receivables 38,623 7,910
Total ¥647,354 ¥337,462

* “Other” principally includes the effect of consolidation and deconsolidation of certain subsidiaries and the effect of changes 1n
foreign currency exchange rates
® ** Finance receivables are individually evaluated for impairment and the related aliowance ts inctuded 1 impaired recervables
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The following table presents the activity of the allowance for credit losses related to financing recervables, the balance of the
allowance for credit losses related 1o financing receivables and the balance of financing receivables as of and for the year ended

March 31, 2013

Millions of
Milhons of Yen U S Dollars
2013 2013
Corporate Corporate
customers Consumers customers Consumers
Batlance at beginning of vear ¥29,343 ¥7.826 $312 $83
Provision for credit losses 3,987 3,423 42 37
Charge-offs (3,456) (771) 37 (8)
Other* 214 1,142 3 12
Balance at end of year ¥30,088 ¥11,620 $320 $124
Ending balance of allowance for credit losses
Collective impairment allowance
(higher credit quality financing receivables) 1,467 7,475 16 80
Individual impairment allowance**
{lower credit quality financing receivables) 28,621 4,145 304 44
Ending balance of financing receivables
Higher credit quality recervables ¥697,592 ¥457,100 $7,421 $4,863
Lower credit quality receivables 83312 8.516 940 90
Total ¥785,904 ¥465,616 $8 361 £4,953

* “Other” principally includes the effect of changes in foreign currency exchange rates
** Finance recetvables are mdividually evaluated for impairment and the related allowance 1s included in impaired recervables

Apge analysis of past due financing receivables—

Age analysis of past due financing recervables as of March 31, 2012 s as follows

Millions of Yen
2012
Corporate customers
Past due 1n one year or less ¥10,878
Past due afier one year through two years 6,018
Past due after two years through three years 774
Past due after three years through four years 192
Past due afier four years through five years 1,099
Past due greater than five years 15,166
Total ¥38,127
Millions of Yen
2012
Consumers
Past due n three months or less ¥27,124
Past due after three months through six months 2,280
Past due after six months through one vear 518
Past due greater than one year 2,341

Total
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Age analysis of past due financing receivables as of March 31, 2013 1s as follows

Miihons of
Millionsof Yen U S Doltars
2013 2013
Corporate customers

Past due 1n one year or less ¥29 568 $314
Past due after one year through two years 1,006 11
Past duc after two years through three years 654 7
Past due after three years through four years 532 5
Past due after four years through five years 168 2
Past due greater than five years 19,250 205
Total ¥51,178 $344
Millions of

Mithons of Yen U S Dollars

2013 2013
Consumers

Past due in three months or less ¥43,584 $464
Past due after three months through six months 3,472 37
Past due afler six months through one year 952 10
Past due greater than one year 2,571 27
Total ¥50,579 $538

Troubled Debt Restructuring ("TDR")}—

A restructuring of a debt constitutes a TDR 1f the Company for economuc or legal reasons related to the debtor’s financial difficulties
granis concession to the debtor Concession 1s granted for example, by modifying contractual terms to reduce the face amount or
maturity amount of the debt or to extend the matunty dates more than three months The Company determines an amount of
allowance for credit losses by considering the modified contractual terms

Corporate customers—
The TDRs for the year ended March 31, 2012 were as follows

The Company medified the terms of sales contracts of ¥23,920 million and lease agreements of ¥10,632 mullion whereby the
Company reacquired the goods, leased them for five to fifteen years to separate third parties, and will resell the goods to 1ts nitial
customers afier the end of the lease penods As a result, for the imtial customers, the maturity amounts of the onginal debts were
reduced and the matunty dates of them were extended as well

The Company retains the titles of the leased goods and intends to sell them at fair value if the lease payments are not expecied to be
made Therefore, the Company has determined the allowance for doubtful receivables by taking into constderation the amount
expected to be collected by selling them at fair values or by leasing and reseliing them according to the modified terms This
modification of terms did not have a material unpact on the Company’s consohdated financial position and results of operations for
the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012

With respect to the financing receivables of ¥4,982 milhon held by the Company, a resolution has been reached for a rehabilitat:on
plan of a debtor under the Civil Rehabilitation Act Under the rehabilitation plan, approximately 90% of the amount of the financing
recervables excluding the amount covered by collateral has been forgiven and the remaiming 10% will be paid to creditors on an
mstallment basis until the year 2017 As a result, the maturity amount of the financing receivables was reduced and 1ts matunity date
was also extended

The Company determined the allowance for financing receivables by taking into consideration the amount expected to be collected
according to the rehabilitation plan The modification of the term did not have a matenal impact on the Company’s consohdated
finaneial position and resuits of operations for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012

There were no matenal TDRs for corporate customers dunng the year ended March 31, 2013
Consumers—
There were no matenal TDRs for consumers during the year ended March 31, 2012 and 2013

For the amount of the financing receivables held by the Company which TDRs occurred after Apri 1, 2011, the defaults in payment
have been immatenal during the vear ended March 31, 2012

For the amount of the financing recervables held by the Company which TDRs occurred dunng last 12 months, the defaults in
payment have been immatenal during the year ended March 31, 2013
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8 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Depreciation expense for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 was ¥123,223 million, ¥125,184 milhion and ¥133,359
mullion ($1,419 mllion), respecuvely

The impairment loss on long-fived assets for the year ended March 31, 2013 was principally attnbutable to a dechine of market price
and profitability related to vessels,which are tncluded in the Machinery segment, and ncreased production costs for certamn o1l and
gas properties owned by subsidiaries in the Energy Business segment

The impairment loss on long-lived assets for the year ended March 31, 2012 was principally attnbutable to a dechne of land pnice and
profitability related to rea! estate properues in Japan, which are included 1n the Industnal Finance, Logistics & Development segment,
and abandonment of exploration and developing nght for a certamn ol and gas property owned by a subsidiary 1n the Energy Business
segment

The impairment loss on long-lived assets for the year ended March 31, 2011 was pnacipally aitnbutable to a dechine of profitability
refated to centain logistics properties owned by a subsidary in the Living Essenuials segment and certain o1l and gas properties owned
by a subsidiary in the Energy Business segment

Imparment losses recognized for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 were applicable to the following segments

Millions of
Miliions of Yen U S Dollars

Segment 2011 2012 2013 2013
Industnal Finance, Logistics & Development ¥248 ¥2.412 ¥876 59
Energy Business 2,920 1,315 11,229 119
Metals 1,005 533 328 4
Machmery 60 27 13,666 145
Chemicals 96 367 234 3
Livang Essentials 2,878 1,145 1,972 21
Other 38 20 641 7

Total ¥7,245 ¥5.819 ¥28,946 $308

*1 For the year ended March 31,2013, the amount of “Machinery” includes ¥13,665 million ($145 million) as a result of a decline of
market price and profitability related to vessels as described above

*2 “Other” represents impairment losses attnibutable to the assets for corporate use which have not been allocated 1o specific
operaling segments

These impairment losses were included 1n “Loss on property and equipment—net” 1n the accompanying consohdated statements of
mcome The Company assesses whether the carrying amount of lang-lived assets are recoverable by using undiscounted cash flows,
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable Estimated fair
values of assets were pnmanly determined based on independent appraisals and discounted cash flows

Capitahized nterest was ¥138 million, ¥161 million and ¥7,479 miibon ($80 mullion) for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and
2013, respectively

For the year ended March 31, 2013, the Company entered into sales contracts for certain long-lived assets These contracis requre

the sales and delivery of the assets within one year These long-hived assets are classified as long-hved asset to be disposed of by sale

and were included in "Other current assets” 1n the consoldated balance sheets The carrying amounts of long-lived assets to be
disposed of by sale included in "Other current assets" as of March 31, 2013 were as follows

Millions of Yen 134 sllhgz]sl;)rf;
Segment 2013 2013
Industnal Finance, Logistics Asrcraft ¥13,131 $139
& Development
Real estate 20,754 221
Total ¥33,885 $360
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9 PLEDGED ASSETS

At March 31, 2012 and 2013, assets pledged as collateral for short-term debt, long-term debt and guarantees of contracts and others

of the Company were as follows

Milliens of
Mallions of Yen U S Dollars
2012 2013 2013
Notes, accounts receivable—trade, loans and others (current and noncurrent) ¥38,077 ¥68,620 $730
Inventones 1,306 70,781 753
Noncurrent investment securities and others (carrying value) 100,824 79,132 842
Property and equipment (net of accumulated depreciation) 197,221 187,458 1,994
Other 2,981 18,618 198
Total ¥340,409 ¥424 609 $4,517
The above pledged assets were classified by type of habilities to which they relate as follows
Millions of
Milhons of Yen U S Dollars
2012 2013 2013
Short-term debt ¥26,632 ¥17,665 $188
Long-term debt 229,998 240,844 2,562
Guarantees of contracts and others 83,779 166,100 1,767
Total ¥340,409 ¥424,609 $4,517

Trust receipts 1ssued under customary import financing arrangements give banks a security terest in the merchandise smported
and/or sales proceeds resulting from the sale of such merchandise The Company follows the practice of repaying the related notes

and acceptances payable at matunity without applying, the sales proceeds to specific notes or acceptances Due to the large volume of

transactions, 1t 1s impracticable te determane the aggregate amounts of assets covered by outstanding trust receipts

The Company may be required by the lending banks to provide collateral (or addiional collateral) under certain conditions Please

refer to Note 13

-43-




10 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Other Intangible Assets

The following tables present information regarding carrying amounts and accumulated amoruzation balances of other intangible
assets by major asset class at March 31, 2032 and 2013

Mullions of Yen
Gross
Carrying  Accumulated
March 31, 2012 Amount Amornization Net
Intangible assets subject to amort:zation
Software ¥122,029 ¥(69,773)  ¥52,256
Manufacturing, sales and service hcenses
and trademarks 18,990 {11,028) 7,962
Intellectual properties
related to feasibility studies 14,895 14,895
Customer relationships 11,143 (1,549) 9,594
Other 15,385 (7,366) 8,019
Total ¥182,442 ¥(89,716) ¥92,726
Intangible assets not subject to amortization
Trade names ¥4,473
Rights 1o use land 4,295
Customer relationships 2,266
Other 3,326
Total 14,360
Intangible assets total ¥107,086
Mithons of Yen Milhons of U S Dollars
Gross Gross
Carrying  Accumulated Carrying  Accumulated
March 31, 2013 Amount Amortization Net Amount  Amortization Net
Intangible assets subject to amortization
Software ¥136,292 ¥(73,476) ¥62816 $1,450 $(782) $668
Manufacturing, sales and service licenses
and trademarks 21,068 (12,924) 8,144 224 (137) 87
Intellectual properties
related 1o feasibility studies 17,118 17,118 182 182
Customer relationships 12,946 (2,679) 10,267 138 (29) 109
Other 17,268 (7,335) 9,933 184 (78) 106
Total ¥204,692 ¥(96,414) ¥108,278 $2,178 $(1,026) $1,152
Intangible assets not subject to amortization
Trade names ¥4,714 $50
Rughts to use land 4,738 50
Customer relationships 2,266 24
Other 3,405 37
Total 15,123 161
Intangible assets total ¥123,401 $1,313

Intangible assets subject to amortization acquired during the year ended March 31, 2012 were ¥47,700 million, which pnimarily
consisted of ¥23,094 mullion of software and ¥14,895 militon of intellectual properties related to feasibility studies Inteliectual
properties related to feasibility studies consist of engineening related know-how and knowledge that provide us a competitive
advantage in advancing projects The weighted-average amortization period for intangible assets subject to amortization acquired
duning the year ended March 31,2012 15 13 years The weighted-average amortization period for software and intellectual properties
related to feasibihity studies 1s 5 years and 25 years, respectively
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Intangible assets subject to amortization acquired during the year ended March 31, 2013 were ¥29,082 million ($309 million), which
pnmanly consisted of ¥24,972 mitlion ($266 m:llion) of software The weighted-average amortization penod for intangible assets
subject to amortization acquired dunng the year ended March 31, 2013 1s 11 years The weighted-average amortization penod for
software 15 11 years

Intangible assets not subject to amortization acquired dunng the years ended March 31,2012 and 2013 were ¥4,345 rllion and ¥604
million (36 mullien), respectively

Amortization expense for intangible assets subject to amortization was ¥16,852 mullion, ¥16,247 million and ¥17,364 mllion (§185
mullion) for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, respectively

As of March 31, 2013, esumated amortization expense for each of the five succeeding fiscal years 1s as follows

Millions of
Milhons of Yen U S Dollars

Year ending March 31
2014 ¥15,872 5169
2015 14,219 151
2016 11,633 124
2017 8,746 93
2018 5,580 59

Based on the results of impairment testing, impairment losses of ¥204 million, ¥3,224 mullion and ¥534 mullion ($6 million) were
recorded for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, respectively

These impairment losses are included 1n “Loss on property and equipment—net” 1n the consolidated statements of income

Goodwill

The following tables show changes 1n the carrying amount of goodwill by reportable operating segment for the years ended March 31,
2012 and 2013

March 31, 2012
Milhons of Yen

Beginming of Year Changes Dunng Year End of Year
Gross  Accumulated Gross  Accumulated
Carrying  Impairment Goodwill Impairment Currency Carmrying  Impairment
Segment Amount Losses Net Addiions  Losses  Dhvesttures Exchange Other  Amount Losses Net
Industnal

Finance

Logisucs &

Development ¥7,244 ¥934) ¥6310 ¥1002  ¥312) ¥934)  ¥156) ¥7.910 ¥7.910
Energy Business 296 256 ¥ 298 298
Metals 13,465 (1,446) 12,019 4465 148 (328) 17,750 H1,446) 16304
Machinery 2,983 2,983 (428) (12) 2971 (428) 2,543
Chemicals 374 Kyl ] 3 377 3
Living Essennals 26,880 (1,295) 25,585 7356 21 (123) 34,134 (1,295} 32,839
Other 1,639 1,639 34] {130} (1,622) 1) 357 (130) 227

Total ¥52,88] ¥3,675) ¥49,206 ¥15,i64 ¥870) ¥O34) ¥1,621) W447) ¥63,797 ¥(3,299) ¥%60,498

. 45-



March 31 2013

Milhons of Yen

Beginning of Year Changes Dunng Year End of Year
Gross  Accumulated Gross  Accumulated
Cammying  Impaiment Goodwill Impaument Currency Carrying  Impairment
Segment Amoum Losses Net  Addmions  Losses Divesutures Exchange Other*  Amount Losses Net
Industnal

Finance,

Logistics &

Development ¥7910 ¥7910 ¥845  ¥M7? ¥8,932 ¥8,932
Energy Business 298 298 ¥339 48 n 684 684
Metals 17,750 ¥1446) 16304 79 39 (6362) 11,506 ¥ 446) 10060
Machinery 2971 (428) 2543 17 2,988 {428) 2,560
Chermicals 377 377 64 441 441
Living Essentials 34,134 (1,295) 32,839 2393 986 15 37,528 (1,295) 36233
Other 357 {130) 227 192 ¥(383) 297 1616 2,079 (130) 1,949

Total ¥63,797 ¥(3,299)¥60,498 ¥3,003 ¥383)  ¥2,232 ¥4491) ¥64,158 ¥(3,299) ¥60,859
March 31, 2013
Millions of U S Dollars

Begmnng of Year Changes Dunng Year End of Year
Gross  Accumulated Gross  Accumulated
Carrying  Impairment Goodwll Imparment Currency Carrying  Impairment

Segment Amount Losses Net Addmons  Losses  Divesuiures Exchange Other*  Amount Losses Net

Industnal

Finance,

Logistcs &

Development $84 $84 59 $2 $95 £95
Energy Business 3 3 34 7 7
Metals 189 $(15) 174 1 1 {69) 122 $(15) 167
Machinery 32 (5) 27 32 (5) 7
Chemicals 4 4 1 5 5
Living Essentials 363 (14) 349 25 n 39% (14} 385
Other 4 (1) 3 2 5(4) 3 17 22 (1) 21

Total 5679 5(35) %644 $32 $(4) $24  $(49) $682 $(35) $647

* “Other” shown in “Changes Dunng Year™ includes transfers between reportable operating segments and adjustments of purchase price allocation resulting

from business combinations

Durmg the years ended March 31, 2011 and 2012, the Company recognrzed tmpatrment losses of ¥891 mullion, ¥870 milhon,
respectively, which are included i “Other income—net™ 1 the consclidated statements of income
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11 DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

Overall Risk Management—

The Company, 1n the normal course of business, 1s exposed to market risks from changes 1n interest rates, foreign exchange rates and
commodity pnces To manage the exposures to these nisks, the Company generatly identifies 1ts net exposures and takes advantage of
natural offsets Additionally, the Company enters mnto vanous dervative transactions pursuant to the Company’s nsk management
policies 1n response to counterparty exposure and to hedge specific nsks

The types of denivatives used by the Company are pnmanly interest rate swaps, forward exchange contracts, currency swaps and
commodity futures contracts The changes in fair value of these hedging nstruments are offset i part or 1n whole by corresponding
changes n the fair value or cash flows of the underlying exposures being hedged Whenever practical, designation 1s performed on a
specific exposure basis to qualify for hedge accountung In these circumstances, the Company assesses, both at the inception of the
hedge and on an on-going basis, whether the hedging derivatives are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash
flows of hedged items Should 1t be determined that a denvative 1s not haghly effective as a hedge, the Company will discontinue
hedge accounting,

The Company does not enter into material denivative instruments that contan credit nsk-refated contingent features

The notional amounts of the Company’s derivative mstruments as of March 31, 2012 and 2013 are as follows

Bilhions of Yen Millions of U S Dollars

2012 2013 2013
Interest rate contracts ¥2,729 ¥2.789 $29,673
Foreign exchange contracts 2,484 3,194 33,974
Commodity contracts 6,801 8,259 87.866
Total derivative notional amounts ¥12.014 ¥14,242 $151,513

Interest Rate Risk Management—

The Company’s financing, investing and cash management activities are exposed to risks associated with changes n interest rates In
order to manage these exposures, the Company has entered into interest rate swap contracts Interest rate swaps are used, 1n most
mstances, to convert fixed-rate assets or debts to floating-rate assets or debts, as well as convert some floating-rate assets or debts to
a fixed basis The objective of maintarming this mix of fixed- and floating-rate assets and debts 15 to allow the Company to manage
the overall value of cash flows attributable to certain assets and debt instruments

Foreign Cumrency Risk Management—

The Company operates globally and 1s exposed to foreign currency risks related to purchasing, selling, financing and investing m
currencies other than the local currencies in which the Company operates The Company’s strategy to manage foreign currency risks
15 to net foreign currency exposures on recognized assets, liabihities and unrecognized firm commitments by taking advantage of
natural offsets, and purchase forward exchange contracts and other contracts to preserve the economic value of cash flows 1n
nonfunctional currencies The Company believes that in circumstances where these foreign currency contracts have not been
designated as hedging struments, such contracts effectively hedge the impact of the vartability in exchange rates Hedged
currencies primanly include the U S dollar, the Euro and the Australian dollar

Commodity Price Risk Management—

The Company 1s exposed to fluctuations in commodity prices assoctated with various commodities used 1n 1ts trading and other
operating activities The Company enters into commodity futures, forwards, options and swaps contracts to hedge the vanability in
commodity prices in accordance with its risk management procedures Except in certain cases where these contracts have been
designated as fair value or cash flow hedges, these contracts are generally not designated as hedging instruments

Fair Value Hedge—

Denvative instruments designated as far value hedges pnmarily consist of interest rate swaps used to convert fixed-rate assets or
debt obligations to floating-rate assets or debts, currency swaps used to hedge foreign currency risks of loans or debts and
commodity forwards used to hedge commodity pnice nisks of inventones
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Cash Flow Hedge—

Denvatve mstruments designated as cash flow hedges include interest rate swaps to convert floating-rate liabilities to fixed-rate
liabihities, and forward exchange contracts to eliminate vanability in functional-currency-equivalent cash flows on forecasted
transacuons Addinonally, commodity swaps and futures contracts which qualify as cash flow hedges are utthzed Current open
contracts hedge the Company’s exposure to the vanability in future cash flows for forecasted transactions through 2020

Hedge of the Net Investment in Foreign Operations—

The Parent uses foreign exchange contracts and nondenvative financial instruments such as foreign-currency-denommnated debt in
order to reduce the foreign currency exposure m the net mmvestment 1n a foreign operauon The amount mcluded i the foreign
currency translation adjustments was net gains of ¥38,180 million, ¥17,108 m!lion and net losses of ¥52,264 million {$556 milhon})
for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, respectively

Denvative Instruments Used for Other than Hedging Activiies—

The Company enters nto dervative instruments as part of its brokerage services i commodity futures markets and 1ts trading
activities The Company clearly distinguishes denivatives used for brokerage services and trading acuvities from dertvatives used for
risk management purposes As part of its internal control policies, the Company has set strict limits on the posittons which can be
taken 1n order to minimize potential losses for these denvative transactions, and penodically monitors the open positiens for
compliance
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Impact of Denivatives and Hedging on the Consolidated Balance Sheets—

The followng are the fair values of denvative instruments designated and not designated as accounting hedges by type of denvative
contract on a gross basis as of March 31, 2012 and 2013

Millions of Yen

Asset Dervatives

Liability Denvatives

As of March 31, 2012 Balance Sheet Line Item Fair Value  Balance Sheet Line tem  Fair Value
Denvatives designated as hedging instruments
Interest rate contracts Other current assets ¥356 Other current habilities ¥19
Other assets 68,949 Other noncurrent habilities 6,907
Foreign exchange contracis Other current assets 7,856  Other current liabilities 22,738
Other assets 1,975 Other noncurrent habilities 3,278
Commodity contracts Other current assets 3,611 Qther current liabihities 830
Other assets 1,094 Other noncurrent liabilities 1,668
Total ¥83,841 ¥35,440
Denvatives not designated as hedging instruments
Interest rate contracts Other current assets ¥495  Other current habihities ¥904
Other assets 8,354 Other noncurrent Liabilities 11,269
Fareign exchange coniracts Other current assets 26,269 Other current lhiabihities 21,389
Other assets 7,065 Other noncurrent habilities 7,691
Commodity contracts Other current assets 142,285 Other current hiabilites 135,360
Other assets 24,986 Other noncurrent habilities 25,185
Total ¥209,454 ¥201,798
Total Derivatives {gross basis) ¥293,295 ¥237,238

Netting

Net Dervatives on Consolidated Balance Sheets

Other current assets
Other assets

Total Net Derivatrves on Consohdated Balance Sheets

¥(187,796)

¥38,051 Other current habilities
67,448 Other noncurrent habilities

¥105,499

¥(188,066)

¥32,569
16,603

¥49,172

* The Company offsets fair value amounts recognized for derivative instruments aganst fair value amounts recopmzed for cash collateral receivables or cash
collateral payables arising from denvative instruments executed with the same counterparty when a legally enforceable master netting agreement exists At
March 31, 2012, the cash collateral receivables and payables that were offset were ¥8,023 million and ¥7,753 milhon, respectively The cash collateral
recetvables and payables that were not offset were ¥7,993 mullion and ¥3,376 mullion, respectively

Carrying Amount
Nondenvatives destgnated as hedging instruments Balance Sheet Line Item Millions of Yen
Foreign-currency-denominated debt Current maturities of long-term debt ¥3,945
Long-term debt 35,506
Total ¥39.451
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Millions of Yen
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Asset Dervatives Liability Denvatives
As of March 31, 2013 Balance Sheet Line Item Fair Value  Balance Sheet Line Item  Fair Value
Denvatives designated as hedging instruments
Interest rate contracts Other current assets ¥992 Other current habilities ¥40
Other assets 82,408 Other noncurrent liabilities 4,467
Foreign exchange contracts Other current assets 15,933  Qther current habilities 13,200
Other assets 2,913  Other noncurrent hiabilities 11
Commodity contracts Other current assets 3,094 Other current hiabilities 145
Other assets 928 Other noncurrent habilities 3,052
Total ¥106,268 ¥20915
Denivatives not designated as hedging istruments
Interest rate contracts Other current assets ¥818 Other current habilhities ¥662
Other assets 5,924 Other noncurrent hiabilities 10,195
Foreign exchange contracts Other current assets 35,473  Other current Lhabilities 50,834
Other assets 14,280 Other noncurrent habilines 30,667
Commodity contracts Other current assets 229,997 Other current hiabihities 203,316
Other assets 19,898 QOther noncurrent liabilities 19,265
Total ¥306,390 ¥315,239
Total Denvatives (gross basis) ¥412.658 ¥336,154
Netting ¥(267,725) ¥(270,637)
Net Dervatives on Consolidated Balance Sheets
Other current assets ¥84.051 Other current Liabkilities ¥44,932
Other assets 60,882 Other noncurrent hahilities 20,585
Total Net Denvatives on Consolidated Balance Sheets ¥144 933 ¥65,517




As of March 31, 2013

Millions of U § Dollars

Asset Derivatives

Liability Denivatives

Balance Sheet Line Item Fair Value

Balance Sheet Line item  Fair Value

Denvatives designated as hedging instruments
Interest rate contracts

Foreign exchange contracts
Commodity contracts
Dernivatives not designated as hedging instruments
Interest rate contracts
Foreign exchange contracts

Commodity contracts

Total Derivatives (gross basis)
Netting

Net Denvatives on Consolidated Balance Sheets

Other current assets
Other assets

Other current assets
Other assets

Other current assets
Other assets

Total

Other current assets
Other assets

Other current assets
Other assets

Other current assets
Other assets

Total

Other current assets
Other assets

Total Net Derivatives on Consolidated Balance Sheets

$11
877
169
3
33
1¢

$1,131

$9
63
377
152
2,447
211

$3,259

$4,390

5(2,848)

$894

648

$1,542

—r——

Other current habilities
Other noncurrent habilities
Other current habilities
Other noncurrent habilities
Other current rabihities
Other noncurrent habilities

Other current habilities
Other noncurrent liabilities
Other current habilities
Other noncurrent hiabilities
Other current hiabtlities
Other noncurrent habilities

Other current habilitics
Other noncurrent habilities

$48
140

2
32

$222

$10
109
541
326
2,163
205

$3,354

$3.576

5(2,879)

5478
219

$697

* The Company offsets fair value amounts recognized for denvatrve instruments against fair value amounts recogrized for cash collateral recervables or cash
collateral payables ansing from denvative instruments executed with the same counterparty when a legally enforceable master nethng agreement exists At
March 31, 2013, the cash collateral receivables and payables that were offset were ¥5,512 mullion ($59 million) and ¥2,600 mullion ($28 nuthon),
respecuvely The cash collateral receivables and payables that were not offset were ¥7,730 million ($82 million) and ¥1 402 millien ($15 mullion),

respectively
Carrying Amount
Millions of
Nondenvatives designated as hedging instruments Balance Sheet Line Item Millions of Yen U S Dollars
Foreign-currency-denominated debt Current maturities of long-term debt ¥4,514 $48
Long-term debt 8,769 93
Total ¥13,283 $141
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Impact of Denvauves and Hedged liems on the Consolidated Statements of Income and on Other Comprehensive Income—
The following are the pretax effects of derivative instruments on the consolidated statements of income for the years ended March 31,

2011, 2012 and 2013

During the year ended March 31, 2011

Denvatives Designated as Fair Value Hedge

Amount of Gain or Loss
Recogmized 1n Earmings

Line Item of Gain or Loss
Recogmized in Eamings

Amount of Gain or Loss
Recognized in Eamings

Denvative type on Denvative/Hedged ltem on Denvanve on Hedged Item
Millions of Yen Millions of Yen
Interest rate contracts Other income—net ¥(2,700) ¥2,722
Foreign exchange contracts Other income-—net 5,348 (5,378)
Commodity contracts Revenues/{(cost of revenues) 989 (989

*1 Amounts related to hedge ineffectiveness and amounts excluded from the assessmens of hedge effectiveness are immaternal for the year ended March 31,

201

*2 There were no gains or losses recognized in earmings as a result of hedged firm commitments no longer quahfying as fair value hedge duning the year ended

March 31, 2011

*3 The line ttems 1n the Consohidated Statements of Income comresponding to “Revenues/(cost of revenues)” are “Revenues™ and “Cost of revenues from

trading, manufactunng and other activities " The same applies to the succeeding tables

Dersvatives Designated as Cash Flow Hedge

Amount of Gamn or {(Loss)
Recogntzed in OCI
{effective portion)

Line Item of Gamn or Loss
Derivative type

Reclassified from AOCI into Earmings

Amount of Gain or Loss
Reclassified from AQCI
into Earnungs
(effective portion)

Millions of Yen Milhons of Yen
Interest rate contracts ¥(2,947) Interest expense ¥309
Foreign exchange contracts 52,038 Other ncome—uet (31,410}
Commodity contracts (5,073) Revenues/{cost of revenues) {2,440)

*1 Amounts related to hedge ineffectiveness and amounts excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness are immaterial for the year ended March 31,

2011

*2 Duning the year ended March 31, 2011, there were no gains or losses reclassified from AQGCI into camings as a resuht of the discontinuance of cash flow
hedges because 1t 1s probable that the onginal forecasted transactions will not occur by the end of the onginally specified time peniod
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Denvatives Designated as Net [nvestment Hedge
Amount of Gain or Loss

Amount of Gain or {Loss) Reclassified from AQCI
Recognized 1n OCI Line Item of Gain or Loss into Earmnings
Denvative type (effective portion) Reclassified from AOCI into Eamings (effective portion)
Milhions of Yen Millions of Yen

Foreign exchange contracts ¥2277 Gain on marketable ¥(1,115)
secunties and mvestments——uet

*1 Amounts related to hedge meffecuveness and amounts excluded from the assessment of hedge effecuveness are immatenal for the year ended March 31,
2011

Nondernivatives Designated as Net Investment Hedge

Denvative type Amount of Gain or (Loss) Recogmzed 1n OCI {(effective portion)
Milhons of Yen
Foreign-currency-denominated debt ¥6,028

*1 Amounts related to hedge ineffectiveness and amounts excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness ane tmmatenal for the year ended March 31,
201
*2 Dunng the year ended March 31, 2011, there were no gains or losses reclassified from AOCI into eamings

Dernivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments

Line Item of Gain or Loss Recogmized 1n Amount of Gamn or Loss
Derivative type Earnings on Derivative ltem Recogmized in Earmmings
Millions of Yen
Interest rate contracts Interest expense ¥2,10D)
Other income—net (214)
Foreign exchange contracts Interest expense 1,532
Other mncome—net (18,121)
Commodity contracts Revenues/(cost of revenues) 220)
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Durning the year ended March 31, 2012

Denvatives Designated as Fair Value Hedge

Line Item of Gain or Loss Amount of Gan or Loss Amount of Gan or Loss
Recognized in Earnings Recogmzed in Earnings Recogmized 1n Eamings
Denvative type on Denvanve/Hedged Item on Denvatve on Hedged Ttem
Mithons of Yen Millions of Yen
Interest rate contracts Other income—net ¥(10,427) ¥10,429
Foreign exchange contracts Other income—net 6,932 (6,922)
Commodity contracts Revenues/(cost of revenues) 8,828 (9,283)

*1 Amounts related to hedge neffectiveness and amounts excluded from the assessment of the hedge efiectiveness are unmaienal for the year ended March 31,

2012

*2 There were no gatns or losses recogruzed 1n earmings as a result of hedged firm commutments no longer quahifying as fair value hedge dunng the year ended

March 31, 2012

*3 The Line 1tems in the Consohidated Statements of Income corresponding 10 “Revenues/{cost of revenues)” are “Revenues™ and “Cost of revenues from
trading, manufacturing and other acuvines ” The same applies to the succeeding tables

Denivatives Designated as Cash Flow Hedge

Denvative type

Amount of Gain or (Loss)
Recognized in OCl
{effective portion)

Reclassified from AQCI into Earmings

Line Item of Gain or Loss

Amount of Gain or Loss
Reclassified from AQCI
mto Earnings
(effective portion)

Millions of Yen

Millions of Yen

Interest rate contracts
Foreign exchange contracts
Commodity contracts

¥(6,852) Interest expense
4,679 Other income—net
{8,544) Revenues/(cost of revenues)

¥223
(39,316)
(1,376)

*1 Amounts related to hedge ineffectiveness and amounts excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness are immatenal for the year ended March 31,

2012

*2 Dunng the yzar ended March 31, 2012, there were no gans or losses reclassified from AOCI into eamings as a resutt of the discontinuance of cash flow
hedges because it 1s probable that the onginal forecasted transactions will not occur by the end of the onginally specified time penod
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Denvatives Designated as Net Investment Hedge

Amount of Gan or Loss

Amount of Gamn or {Loss) Reclassified from AOCI
Recognized m QCI Line Item of Gain or Loss into Earmungs
Denvative type (effective portion) Reclassified from AOCI into Eamings (effecuve portion)
Milhons of Yen Milhions of Yen

Gain on marketable

Foreign exchange contracts ¥(15,206) secunties and nvestmen ot

¥(3,770)

*1 Amounts related to hedge incffectiveness and amounts excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness are immatenal for the year ended March 31
2012

Nonderivatives Designated as Net Investment Hedge

Derivative type Amount of Gain or (Loss) Recognized in OCI (effective portion)
Millions of Yen
Foreign-currency-denomunated debt ¥1,904

*1 Amounts related to hedge ineffectiveness and amounts excluded from the assessment of hedge effecuveness are immatenal for the year ended March 31,
2012
*2 Duning the year ended March 31, 2012, there were no gains or losses reclassified from AQOCH into eamings

Denvatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments

Line Item of Gam or Loss Recogmized in Amount of Gan or Loss
Denvative type Eamings on Denivative [tem Recogmized in Earnings
Mullions of Yen
Interest rate contracts Interest expense ¥(1,057)
Other income—net 984
Foreign exchange contracts Interest expense 1,210
Other iIncome—net 23,957
Commodity contracts Revenues/{cost of revenues) 23,500
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Dunng the year ended March 31, 2013
Denvatives Designated as Fair Value Hedge

Line Itemn of Gain or Loss Amount of Gain or Loss Amount of Gain or Loss
Recognized in Earmings Recogmized in Earmings Recognized in Eamings
Derivative type on Denvative/Hedged Item on Denvauve on Hedged Item
Millions of Millions of
Millions of Yen U S Dollars Milhionsof Yen U S Dollars
Interest rate contracts Other income—net ¥(17,093) $(182) ¥17,087 $182
Foreign exchange contracts Other income—net (1,047 (an 1,086 12
Commodity contracts Revenues/(cost of revenues) (510) (5) 509 5

*1 Amounts related to hedge ineffectiveness and amounts excluded from the assessment of the hedge effectiveness are immatenal for the year ended March 31,
2013

*2 There were no gans or losses recogmzed n earmungs as a result of hedged firm commitments no longer qualifying as fair value hedge dunng the year ended
March 31,2013

*3 The line stems 1n the Consolidated Statements of Income corresponding to “Revenues/(cost of revenues)” are “Revenues” and “Cost of revenues from
tradmg, manufactuning and other activities ” The same applhes to the succeeding tables

Denvatives Designated as Cash Flow Hedge

Amount of Gain or Loss

Amount of Gam or (Loss) Line Item of Gain or Loss Reclassified from AOCI
Recognized 1n OCI Reclassified from mnte Eamings
Denvatve type {effective porticn) AOCI into Earmnings (effective portion)

Mitlions of Milhons of

Millions of Yen U S Dollars Miuhions of Yen U S Dollars

Interest rate contracts ¥(8,686) $(92) Interest expense ¥352 54
Foreign exchange contracts 17,011 18! Other income—net (8,284) (88)
Commodity contracts 1,235 13 Revenues/(cost of revenues) (2,288) 24)

*1 Amounts related to hedge ineffectiveness and amounts excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness are immatenal for the year ended March 31,
2013

*2 Denvative unrealized gains and losses inctuded in AOC] are reclassafied 1n1o earmings at the time that the associated hedged transactions impact earnings
Approxamately ¥2,.400 mullion ($26 mullion) of net unrealized gains, net of tax, included in AQCT at March 31, 2053 wall be reclassified into earnings withun
12 months from that date

*3 Dunng the year ended March 31, 2013 there were no gains or losses reclassified from AQCIH into earmings as a result of the discontinuance of cash flow
hedges because it 15 probable that the onginal forecasted transactions will not occur by the end of the oniginally specified time penod
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Denvatives Designated as Net Investment Hedge

Amount of Gatn or (Loss)

Line Item of Gain or Loss

Amount of Gamn or Loss
Reclassified from AOCI

Recogmzed in OCl Reclassified from mto Eamings
Denvative type {effective portion) AOCI into Eamings {effective portion)
Millions of Millions of
Millions of Yen U § Dollars Millions of Yen U S Dollars
ketabl
Foreign exchange contracts ¥(66,012) $(702) Gan on marketable ¥(126) 3D

securities and mvestments—net

*1 Amounts related to hedge ineffectiveness and amounts excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness are immatenial for the year ended March 31,
2013

Nondenvatives Designated as Net Investment Hedge

Denvative type Amount of Gain or (Loss) Recognized 1n OCl (effective portion)

Millions of

Millions of Yen US Dollars

Foreign-currency-denominated debt ¥(3,234) $(34)
*1 Amounts related to hedge meffectiveness and amounts excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness are immatenal for the year ended March 31,

2013
*2 Dunng the year ended March 31 2013, there were no gains or losses reclassified from AQCI into earmings

Denvatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments

Amount of Gamn or Loss
Recogmzed m Earnings

Line Item of Gain or Loss Recognized in

Denvative type Eamimngs on Denvauve Item

Milhions of
Millions of Yen U S Dollars
Interest rate contracts Interest expense ¥390 54
Other income—net 1,268 13
Foreign exchange contracts Interest expense 4,916 52
Other income—net (34,474) {367)
Commodity contracts Revenues/(cost of revenues) (4,619) (49)
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12 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

The following tables present information regarding assets and Liabilities that are measured at farr value on a recurring basis at March

31, 2012 and 2013

Miilions of Yen

March 31, 2012 Levell  Level2 Level3 Netting Total
Assets
Cash equivalents
Domestic ¥3. 098 ¥3,098
Overseas 51 51
Investments
Trading securities ¥6,021 9,021
Available-for-sale
Equity securities
Domestic ¥635.,405 635,405
Overseas 280,228 2,172 282,400
Debt securines
Domestic 16,221 16,221
Overseas 10,784 39,375 50,159
Total investments ¥926,417 ¥57,768 ¥9,021 ¥993,206
Derivative assets
Interest rate
contracts 12 78,142
Foreign exchange
contracts 1 43,164
Commodity
contracts 11,400 159,108 1,468
Total denvative
assets ¥11,413 ¥280,414 ¥1468 ¥(187,796) ¥105,499
Total assets ¥037,830 ¥341,331 ¥10.489 ¥{187,796) ¥1,101,854
Liabihities
Dertvative liabilities
Interest rate
CONtTacts ¥11 ¥19,088
Foreign exchange
contracts 4 55,092
Commodity
contracts 12,024 149,575 ¥1,444
Total derivative
habihities ¥12,039 ¥223,755 ¥1.444 ¥188.066) ¥49.172
Total habilities ¥12,039 ¥223,755 ¥1444 ¥(188,066)  ¥49,172
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Mulhions of Yen Millions of U S Dollars

Mearch 31, 2013 Leveli  Level2 Level3 Netung Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Netung  Total
Assels
Cash equivalents
Domestic ¥3,198 ¥3,198 $34 $34
Overseas 28 28
Investments
Trading secunties 2,498 ¥9,302 11,800 27 $99 126

Available-for-sale
Equity secunties

Domestic ¥711,661 711,661 $7,57 7,571
Overseas 305,580 423 306,003 3,251 4 3,255
Debt securities
Domestc 15,893 15,893 169 169
Overseas 7,433 41,895 49,328 79 446 525
Total investments  ¥1,024, 674  ¥60,709 ¥9,302 ¥1,094,685 $10,901 3646 $99 $11,646

Denvative assets
Interest rate

contracts 90,142 960

Foreign exchange

contracts 68,599 729

Commodity

contracts 17,825 235,476 616 189 2,505 7

Total denvative

assets ¥17,825 ¥394,217 ¥616 ¥(267,725) ¥144.933 $189 $4,194 $7 $(2,848) %1542
Total assets ¥1,042,499 ¥458,152 ¥9,918 ¥(267,725) ¥1242,844 §11.090 $4,874 $106 $(2848) $13,222
Liabilines

Denvative habilities
Interest rate

contracts ¥ ¥15,663 $167
Foreign exchange
contracts 94,712 1,007
Commedity
contracts 14,489 210,697 ¥592 $154 2,242 $6
Total denvative
habihties ¥14,490 ¥321,072 ¥592 ¥(270,637) ¥65,517 $154 53,416 56 $(2.879) 5697
Total iabilities ¥14,490 ¥321,072 ¥592 ¥(270,637) ¥65,517 $154 $3,416 $6 $(2,879) $697

*1 The Company offsets fair valuc amounts recognized for denvauve instruments against fair value amounts recognized for cash collateral recervables of cash
collateral payables ansing from denvative instruments executed with the same counterparty when a legally enforceable master nettng agreement exists

*2 There were no signuficant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2

*1 There were no signuficant ransfers out and into Level 3

The majonty of investments in marketable equity secuntres and debt secunties classified as available-for-sale securiues are
designated as Level 1 and are valued using quoted market prices in active markets Debt secunties, including those classified as cash
equivatents, which ncfude investments 1n corporate bonds and commercial paper are designated as Level 2 and are valued using
quoted market prices for similar assets in acuve markets, or quoted prices for identical or Sirmilar assets in markets that are not active
Investments 1n securities classified as trading securities, comprised principally of investments 1n hedge funds (“alternative
investments”) are designated as Level 3 and are valued based on net asset value per share of mvestees

The farr value of the alternative mvestments at March 31, 2012 and 2013 was ¥5,02) mulhion and ¥9,302 rmullion ($99 mullion),
respectively The investment strategies of mvestees are mainly arbitrage and mulu-strategy Redemption frequencies of these
investments are mamnly monthly or quarterly These investments can be redeemable with 3-180 days' nouce Redemplion dates of
these investments are undetermined at March 31, 2013
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Denvatives are comprised of interest rate derivative contracts, foreign exchange denvative contracts and commodity dernivauve
contracts Derivatives classified in Level 1 are comprised principally of commodity denvative contracts traded esther on exchanges
or hquid over-the-counter markets, which are valued using quoted prices Denvatives classified in Level 2 are compnised pnincipally
of commodity denvative contracts traded 1n over-the-counter markets, which are valued by pricing models using observable market
inputs such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and commodity prices Denvatives classified in Level 3 are compnsed
principally of more structured commodity dertvatives, whach are valued based on unobservable inputs

Credit nsks are adjusted for the net balance of derivalive assets and liabilites allocated on dervative contracts with master netting
agreements

The following tables present the changes in Level 3 assets and hahihties that are measured at fair value using unobservable inputs for
the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013

Mullions of Yen

Net Realized/  Net Realized/ Change n
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Gamns Gains (Losses) Gains (Losses)
Balance at  (Losses)  Included in Other Redemptions Balance at  Stll Held
Beginning  Included Comprehensive and Endof  Recogmzed
March 31, 2012 of Year inEamings  Income (Loss) Purchases  Sales  Settlements  Year n earnings
Investments
Trading securities ¥9.160 ¥(325) ¥(174) ¥790 ¥(430) ¥9,021 ¥(967)
Denvatives, net
Commodity contracts 23 478 ¥(477) 24 23
Total ¥9,183 ¥153 ¥(174) ¥790  ¥(430) ¥(477) ¥9,045 ¥(944)
Mitions of Yen
Net Reahized/ Net Realized/ Change 1n
Unreahzed Unreahzed Unrealized
Gams Gains (Losses) Garns {Losses)
Balance at  (Losses)  Included in Other Redemptions Balance at  Still Held
Beginning  Included Comprehensive and End of Recognized
March 31, 2013 of Year wn Earmings  Income (Loss) Purchases Sales  Sewlements  Year N earnings
Investments
Trading securities ¥6.021 ¥653 ¥446 ¥31  ¥(849) ¥9,302 ¥400
Derivatives, net
Commodity contracts 24 24 ¥(24) 24 24
Total ¥9,045 ¥677 ¥446 ¥31  ¥(849) ¥(24) ¥9326 ¥424
Milions of U § Dollars
Net Reahized/ Net Realized/ Change
Unrealhized Unrealized Unreahzed
Gains Gains (Losses) Gains {Losses)
Balance at  (Losses) Included in Other Redemptions Balance at ~ Stil] Held
Beginning  Included Comprehensive and Endof  Recognized
March 31, 2013 of Year i Earnings  Income (Loss) Purchases Sales  Settlements  Year 1D earnngs
Investments
Trading secunties $96 $8 $5 (9 $100 $5
Derivatives, net
Commodity contracts
Total $96 $8 $5 $(9 $100 $5

* Certain Level 3 dentvauve assets and habilities are netted in these tables for presentation purposes only
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The mvestments classified in Level 3 are alternative investments, which are valued by the accounting personnel m the Group
Admmnistration Department of the Parent who manage the investments or the accounting personnel in the subsidiary managing the
mvestment The investment 1s valued based on the net asset value per share of the investees which 1s obtained by these personnel
The denvatives classified in Level 3 are the complex commodity derivative instruments, whach are valued by the accounting
personnel of the subsidiary managing the denvatives The denvative instruments are valued based on pnicing informatzon obtained
from an external financial mstitution Al the valuanons are reviewed quarterly by the accountng personnel and approved by the
managements of the Group Administration Department of the Parent or those 1n accounting department of the subsidiary

The valuation policies and procedures for the fair value measurements are decided and peniodically revised by the Corporate

Accounting Department

All gains and losses included m earnings are reported m “Gain on marketable secunities and investments—net” for mvestments and
“Revenues” and “Cost of revenues from trading, manufactuning and other activities” for denvative assets and habilittes in the

Consolidated Statements of Income

Other comprehensive income (loss) related to investments are included in the “Foreign currency translation adjustments™ in the
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurnng Basis

The following tables present information regarding assets measured at fair value on nonrecurring basis as a result of
other-than-temporary impairments for the years ended March 31,2012 and 2013

Milhions of Yen

Fair Value
Measurement Total Gans
March 31, 2012 Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 (Losses)
Investments
Investments in Affihated compames ¥20.543 ¥13,518 ¥16,025 ¥(19,008)
Cost method investments 3,440 3,440 (3,188)
Other investments 92 ¥3 89 {103)
Total Investments ¥33,075 ¥13,518 ¥3 ¥19,554 ¥(22,299)
Fixed Assets ¥11,162 ¥11,162 ¥(9,043)
Millions of Yen
Fair Value
Measurement Total Gamns
March 31, 2013 Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 {Losses)
Other current assets
Real estate to sell ¥5,000 ¥5,000 ¥(337)
Investments
Investments 1n Affiliated companies ¥24.776 ¥24.776 ¥(6,576)
Cost method investments 15,906 15,906 (10,226}
Cther investments 32 ¥10 22 (28)
Total Investments ¥40,714 ¥10 ¥40,704 ¥(16,830)
Fixed Assets ¥32,019 ¥32,019 ¥(28,001)
Millions of US Dollars
Fair Value
Measurement Total Gains
March 31, 2013 Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 (Losses)
Other current assets
Real estate 1o sell $53 $53 $(4)
Investments
Investments in Affilhated compames $264 $204 $(70)
Cost method investments 169 169 (109)
Other investments
Total Investments $433 $433 $(179)
Fixed Assets $341 $341 $(298)
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The fair value of the investments classified 1n Level 1 are determined using quoted prices in active markets

The fair value of the other current assets classified in Level 2 are valued based on the discounted future cash flow method

The fair value of the investments and fixed assets classified in Level 3 are valued by the accounting personnel n the Group
Admimustration Department of the Parent who manage these assets or the accounting personnel 1n the subsidiary managing these
assets The mvestments are valued mainly based on the discounted future cash flow method wath the use of unobservable inputs such
as future cash flows of the mnvestees or transaction pnce The fixed assets are valued mainly based on the ndependent appraisals or
the discounted future cash flow method

In each case, valuations are reviewed by the accounting personnel and approved by the management of the Group Adminstration
Department of the Parent or those i accounting department of the subsidiary

The valuation pohcies and procedures for the fair value measurements are decided and penodically revised by the Corporate
Accounting Department

Quantitative Information about Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

The following table presents information about valuation techmiques and unobservable inputs used for the major level 3 assets
measured at fair value by the sigmificant and unobservable inputs for the years ended March 31, 2013

Fair Value
Farr Value Milhons of Valuation
Mitlions of Yen U S Dollars Techmque Unobservable Input  Range

Discounted

¥7,973 $85 cash flow Discount rate 3%
Investments in nonmarketable secunties of
unaffiliated companies Discounted Discount rate 7%
¥1,503 16 cash flow Revenue growth 1%
rate
Property and equipment Discounted o
(Muneral rights) ¥8.,700 $93 cash flow Discount rate 1%
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13 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company, in the normal course of its business, deals with vanous financial instruments The Company engages n operating
transactions with a signuficant number of customers 1n a wide variety of industnes all over the world, and 1ts recervables from and

guarantees to such parties are broadly diversified Consequently, in management’s opinion, no sigmficant concentration of credit nsk

exists for the Company The Company manages credit nsk of these financial instruments through credit line approvals by
management and by periodically monitoring the counterparties based on the Company’s nsk management policy The Company
requires collateral to the extent considered necessary

The valuation methodology used to determune fair value 1s discussed in Note 12 The following methods and assumptions were used
to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments

Current Financial Assets other than Short-term Investments and Current Financial Liabilities—
The carrying amounts of these 1tems approximate therr fair values due to the relatively short matuntes of these instruments See

“Assets and Liabiliies Measured at Fair Value on 2 Recurning Basis” section of Note 12 for the valuation methodology of the far

value of Level 2 instruments which consist of debt secunties classified as available-for-sale securities with oniginal matunties
within three months included m “Cash and cash equivalents™

Short-term Investments and Other Investments—

“Short-term investments” and “Other mvestments™ include investments in marketable securities See Note 12 for the valuation
methodology of the fair value of these investments *Other investments™ also mcludes nonmarketable investments which are
composed of nonmarketable equity secunties, guarantee deposits and other miscellaneous investments 1t 1s not prachcable to
estimate their {air values as there are a large number of mvestments of which the information to measure fair value 15 not readily
available However, the fair values of nonmarketable mvestments measured on a nonrecurring basis as a result of

other-than-temporary impairments are estumated using the valuation methodology of Level 3 instruments described 1n “Assets and

Liabithues Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurning Basts™ section of Note 12

Noncurrent Notes, Loans, Accounts Receirvable and Advances to Affiliated Companies—

The fair values of these items are determuned using a discounted cash flow model based on esumated future cash flows which
incorporate the charactertstics of the assets, including principal and contractual mterest rates, and discount rates reflecting the
Company's assumptions related to credit spreads

Long-term Debt—
The fair values of the Company’s debt are esumated based on the present value of estimated future cash flows computed using
interest rates that are currently available tc the Company for debt with sumlar terms and remamning maturities

Denvative Instruments—
The fair values of denvative instruments are estimated using the valuation methodology set forth m Note 12

The following table presents the carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments at March 31, 2012 and 2013 The fair
values of denvative instruments are excluded from the table below as they are disclosed mm Note 11

Millions of Yen Millions of U S Dollars
2012 2013 2013
Carrying Carrymng Camrying

Amount  Far Value Amount  Far Value Amount  Fair Value

Financial assets
Current financial assets other than short-term
nvestments, net of allowance for doubtful
recervables ¥4,605,840 ¥4,605,840 ¥4901,117 ¥4,901,117 $52,140 $52,140
Short-term investments and other
mvestments, for which 1t 1s
Practicable to estimate fair vatue 995,268 995268 1,110,591 1,110,591 11,815 11,815
Not practicable to esimate fair value 438,643 413,810 4,402
Noncurrent notes, loans and accounts
recervable and advances to Affihated
companies, net of allowance for doubtful
receivables 279,936 301,085 343,134 373,645 3,650 3,975

Financial habiliues
Current financial habilities 3,412,778 3,412,778 3475738 3,475,718 36,976 36,976
Long-term debt, including current matunties,
and noncurrent trade payables, included
“Other noncurrent liabilities” 4,275,535 4,274,363 5,171,906 5,162,516 55,020 54,920
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The farr values of each class of financial instruments are designated as Levels 1 through 3 based on the below

Current Financial Assets other than Short-term Investments and Current Finaneial Liabilittes—

The carrying amounts of these tems approxunate their fair values due to the relatively short matunities of these mstruments 1f
measured at fair value, cash on hand and deposits would be designated as Level 1, and substantially all other 1tems can be
determined based pnmanly on abservable mputs and thus would be designated as Level 2

Short-term investments and Other Investments—

Investments m marketable equity securities and debt securines classified as available-for-sale secunties valued using quoted
market prices n active markets are designated as Level 1, mvestments valued using quoted prices for 1dentical or similar assets tn
nonactive markets are designated as Level 2, and mvestments classified as trading secunties valued based on net asset value per
share of investees and nonmarketable investments measured on a nonrecurring basis as a result of other-than-temporary
imparrments are designated as Level 3

The fair values designated as Level 1, Level 2, Level 3 related to these stems at March 31, 2012 and 2013 are ¥926,417 mullion,
¥58.083 mullion, ¥10,768 mallion, and ¥1,024,674 mullion ($10,%01 milhion), ¥60,709 million ($646 mulhon), ¥25,208 milion
(8268 mullion), respectively

Nencurrent Notes, Loans, Accounts Recetvable and Advances to Affihated Companies—

The fair values to which unobservable inputs are significant to the entire measurement are designated as Level 3, and the fair
values to which unobservable mputs are not significant to the entire measurement are designated as Level 2

The farr values designated as Level 2, and Level 3 related to these items at March 31, 2012 and 2013 are ¥54,068 milhon,
¥247.017 mlhon, and ¥60,415 million ($643 mullien), ¥313,230 mulhion ($3,332 milkion), respectively

Long-term Debt—
The 1nterest rates which are used in computing the present value of estimated future cash flow are based primanly on observable
mnputs and thus the fair values of these 1tems are designated as Level 2
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14 SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM DEBT
Short-term debt at March 31, 2012 and 2013 consisted of the following

2012 2013 2013
Millions Interest Millions Interest Milhons of
of Yen Rate of Yen Rate U S Dollars
Bank loans ¥731,329 1 7% ¥590,193 I 7% $6,278
Commercial paper 155,102 03 209,790 04 2,232
Total ¥886.431 ¥799,983 $8,510

The interest rates represent weighted average rates on outstanding balances at March 31, 2012 and 2013
Assets pledged as collateral for shori~term debt are disclosed in Note 9

Long-term debt at March 31, 2012 and 2013 consisted of the following

Millions of
Millions of Yen U S Dollars
2012 2013 2013
Long-term debt with collateral (Note 9)
Banks and insurance companies, maturing senally thorough 2034—pnncipally
0% to 1 9% as of March 31, 2013 ¥108,700 ¥92,273 §982
Govemment-owned banks and government agencies, maturing senally through
2023—pnmcipally 0% to 2 9% as of March 31, 2013 5,893 4,876 52
Banks and insurance companies, maturing senally through 2023 (payable i foreign
currencies)—principally 0% to 4 9% as of March 31, 2013 15,481 48,824 519
Government-owned banks and government agencies, maturing serially through 2013
(payable in foreign currency}—principally 6% to 10 9% as of March 31, 2013 1,849 1,023 it
Japanese yen bonds
{floating rate 0 44% to 2 35%, due 2018 as of March 31, 2013} 580 200 2
U S dollar bonds
(fixed rate 6 08%, due 2017 as of March 31, 2013) 4,513 4,643 49
Total ¥137,016 ¥151,839 51,615
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Millions of

Millions of Yen U S Dollars
2012 2013 2013
Long-term debt without collateral
Banks and insurance compames, maturing senially through 2033—pnincipally 0% to
1 9% as of March 31, 2013 ¥2133,577 ¥2204,320 $23,450
Government-owned banks and government agencies, matuning senially through
2024—oprncrpally 0% to 1 9% as of March 31, 2013 231,357 193,972 2,064
Banks and msurance companies, matunng senally through 2029 (payable i foreign
currencies y—prncipally 0% to 2 9% as of March 31, 2013 437,572 835,551 8,589
Government-owned banks and government agencies, matunng senally through 2032
(payable n foreign currency}—pnncipally 0% to 1 9% as of March 31, 2013 91,876 383,039 4,075
Japanese yen callable bonds
(adjustable fixed rate 1 50%, due 2615 as of March 31, 2013) 10,000 10,000 106
Japanese yen bonds
(floating rate 0 21% to 2 11%, due 2013-2021 as of March 31, 2013) 200,000 200,000 2,128
Japanese yen bonds
(fixed rate 0 56%to 3 18%, due 2014-2022 as of March 31, 2013) 624,000 632,000 6,723
U § dollar bonds
(fixed rate 1 88% to 2 75%, due 2015-2017 as of March 31, 2013} 123,285 211,613 2,251
Medmum-term notes (payable 1n Japanese yen),
0 01%to 2 07%, due 2013-2022 as of March 31, 2013 64,420 80,465 856
Medum-term notes (payable in U § dollars),
094%to 3 10 %, due 2014-2017 as of March 31, 2013 821 7,516 80
Medium-term notes {payable in Austraiian dollars),
6 00%, due 2013 as of March 31,2012 1,705
Medium-term notes (payable in New Zealand dollars),
3 46%, due 2017 as of March 31, 2013 787 8
Commercial paper (payable in Japanese yen),
with average interest rate of 0 10% as of March 31, 2013 75,000 95,000 1,011
Total 3,993,613 4,854,293 51,641
Total long-term debt 4,130,629 5,006,132 53,256
Less unamortized 1ssue discount (672) (879) 9)
Add adjustments to fair value under fair value hedge accounting 65,365 84,406 898
Total 4,195322 5,089 639 54,145
Less current maturties (435,349)  (590,006) (6,277)
Less adjustments to fair value under fair value hedge accounting related to “current
maturities” 128 (970) (10}
Long-term debt, {ess current matunties ¥3,760,101 ¥4,498,683 $47,858

Annual matunities of long-term debt as of March 31, 2013, based on their contractual terms, are as follows, excluding the effect of

adjustments to fair value under farr value hedge accounting

Miilions of
Milhions of Yen U S Dollars

Year ending March 31
2014 (included i current hiabihties) ¥590,006 $6,277
2015 557,464 5,930
2016 561,517 5,973
2017 618,666 6,581
2018 758,373 8,068
2019 and thereafter 1,920,106 20,427
Total ¥5,000,132 $53,256

The Company enters into interest rate swap and currency swap contracts for certain short-term and long-term debt to manage mterest
rate and foreign currency exposure The effective interest rates taking the effect of such swap agreements into consideration are

principally based on the three month LIBOR (London Interbank Offered Rate)
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The Company maintans lines of credit with vanous banks The shori-term and long-term portions of unused lines of credut,
ncluding overdrafi contracts and facilities discussed below, totaled ¥891,523 muilion and ¥408,812 mullion, respectively, at March
31, 2012, and ¥882,648 mullion ($9,390 nullion) and ¥663,567 millon ($7,059 million), respecuvely, at March 31, 2013

The lines of credit include Japanese yen facilities of ¥510,000 million ($5,426 mullion) held by the Parent and ¥90,000 mllion ($957
mullion) held by a domestic subsidiary, and foreign currency facilittes for major currencies of $1,000 milhion and for soft currencies
of $300 mullion held by the Parent and foreign subsidianes at March 31, 2013 The Parent and the subsidiaries compensate banks for
these facilities 1n the form of commutment fees, which were insigmificant in each of the past three years Certain commtment fees on
these facihties are based on the Parent's credit ratng The Parent and the subsidiaries are required to comply with certain financial
covenants to maintam these facihities

The Parent utihzes its long-term portions of unused lines of credit, discussed above, totaling ¥410,000 million which terminate in
December 2017, to support the Parent's commercial paper program The commercial paper program 15 used to fund working capital
and other general corporate requirements as needed The outstanding commercial paper of ¥75,000 million at March 31, 2012 and
¥95,000 mulhion (31,011 mullion) at March 31, 2013 was classified as long-term debt on the consolidated balance sheets since the
Parent has the intent and abihty to refinance these borrowings on a long-term basis through continued commercial paper borrowings,
supported by the avarlable lines of credit

Substantially all of the short-term and long-term loans from banks are made under agreements which, as 1s customary in Japan, atlow
banks, under certain conditions, to require the Company to provide collateral (or additional collateral) or guarantors with respect to
the loans, and to treat any collateral, whether furnished as secunty for short-term or long-term loans or otherwise, as collateral for all
indebtedness to such bank Certamn agreements relating to long-term bank loans allow the banks to require the Company to submit
proposals as to the payment of dividends and other appropriations of earnings for the banks' review and approval before presentation
to the sharcholders Default provisions of certan loan agreements grant certamn prionity rights of assets to the banks Under certain
agreements, principally with government-owned financial institutions, the borrower 1s required, upon request of the lender, to reduce
outstanding loans before scheduled maturity dates when the lender considers that the Company 1s able to reduce such loans through
increased earmings or by additional cash flow raised through stock 1ssuances or bond offerings During the years ended March 31,
2012 and 2013, the Company did not receive any request of the kind desenbed above and does not expect that any such request wall
be received
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15 INCOME TAXES

Income taxes 1n Japan applicable to the Company, impesed by the nauonal, prefectural and municipal governments, 1n the aggregate,
resulted m a statutory income tax rate of approximately 41% for the years ended March 31, 2011 and 2012, 38% for the year ended
March 31, 2013 New corporate tax laws of "Partial revision of income tax law, etc n response to the changing econemic structure”
and "Special measures 10 reconstruction funding after the Great East Japan Earthquake” were enacted on November 30, 2011 Asa
result, the statutory income tax rate of 41% as of March 31, 2012 was reduced to 38% effective Apnil 1, 2012 through the end of the
fiscal year 2014 and will be reduced further to 36% thereafter Adjustment of deferred tax assets and hiabihities 1n relation to enacted
tax laws decreased mcome taxes and mcreased net income attributable to Mitsubisht Corporation by ¥2,919 nullion ($36 muition) for
the year ended March 31, 2012 Foreign subsidiaries are subyect to mcome taxes of the countres m which they operate

On March 29, 2012, the Minerals Resource Rent Tax Act 2012 (MRRT) was enacted 1n Australia Under the MRRT, the Company 1s
liable to pay taxes equal to the sum of 1its MRRT habilities on miming profits made from extractive taxable resources for a mining
project interest for a year Mining profit consists of minung revenue less mining expenditure, and 15 also reduced by allowances One
ofthe allowances 1s the starting base allowance MRRT allows entities 1o elect the market value approach and remeasure the tax
basis of the starting base assets ai farr value and depreciate or amortize the excess of market value over carrying value as deductible
allowance from mimng profit in the future years as the starting base allowance Starting base assets consist of property or a legal or
equitable nght relating to 2 mming project interest To determine the amount of starting base assets the Company plans to elect
market value approach, resulting in a temporary difference between the accounting and tax basis of the relative assets The Company
recognized deferred tax assets for the temporary difference On the other hand, because the royalty allowance and other vanous
allowances under the MRRT are prescribed 1o be preferentially applied rather than the starting base allowance, it 1s more likely than
not that the starting base allowance will not be used in the future at present forecast and a valuation allowance was provided agamst
the deferred tax assets recognized upon enactment of the MRRT The valuation allowance was also provided agamst the entire
amount of deferred tax assets which fluctuated afier the enactment of the MRRT Therefore, impact of the MRRT 15 not included m a
reconciliation of the combined statutory mcome tax rates to the effective income tax rates as the net impact on income taxes was
Zero

A reconciliation of the combined statutory income tax rates applied to income before income taxes and equity m earmings of
Affiliated companies and other for the years ended March 31,2011, 2012 and 2013 to the effective income tax rates on income before
mcome taxes and equity in earmings of Affiliated compantes and other reflected in the accompanymg consohdated statements was as

follows
2011 2012 2013

Combined statutory income tax rate applied Lo income before income taxes and

equity 1n earnings of Affiliated companies and other 41 0% 41 0% 380%
Expenses not deductible for income tax purposes 08 09 10
Changes 1n valuation allowance 15 05 25
Tax benefits recognized for accumulated losses of certain subsidianes (10) (07) o1
Lower income tax rates in certain foreign countries 7m (69) 57)
Tax effects on undistributed eamings of Affiliated companies 04 14 (16)
Effect of taxation on dividends [3 02 0 5)
Tax assessments 06 06 c1
Other—net 01 00) 00
Effective income tax rate on income before income taxes and equity i eamngs of

Affiliated comparues and other 37 5% 370% 33 7%

Amounts provided for income taxes for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 were allocated as follows

Milhons of
Millions of Yen U S Dollars

2011 2012 2013 2013
Income taxes ¥198.,680 ¥168,330 ¥113,486 $1,207
Other comprehensive (foss) income (26,787) (40,335) 56,218 598
Total iIncome tax expense ¥171,893 ¥127995 ¥169,704 $1,805
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Sigmificant compenents of deferred tax assets and habihities at March 31, 2012 and 2013 were as follows

Millions of
Mulions of Yen U S Dollars
2012 2013 2013
Assets
Allowance for doubtful recervables ¥12,583 ¥12.299 $131
Pension and severance 25456 28,664 305
Property and equpment 185,738 260,776 2,774
Investments 86,092 70,112 746
Net operating loss carryforwards 49,701 76,830 817
Other accrued expenses 22637 23,645 252
Other 53,249 64,130 682
Gross deferred tax assets 435456 536,456 5,707
Less valuation allowance (216,592) (284,729) (3,029)
Deferred tax assets—less valuation allowance 218,864 251,727 2,678
Liabilities
Depreciation 103,489 119,727 1,274
Investments 170,947 220,382 2,344
Property and equpment 38,528 29,095 310
Pension and severance 1,833 1,895 20
Other 29357 46,928 499
Gross deferred tax habihities 344,154 418,027 4,447
Net deferred tax liabilines ¥(125290) ¥(166,300) $(1,769)

A valuation allowance 15 established to reduce certam deferred tax assets related to deductible temporary differences and net
operating loss carryforwards where 1t 15 more-likely-than-not that they will not be realized The total valuauon aillowance decreased
by ¥2.135 million for the year ended March 31, 2011, increased by ¥170,800 million for the year ended March 31, 2012, and
increased by ¥68,137 million (3725 milhion) for the year ended March 31, 2013 The deferred 1ax assets (Property and equipment)
recorded as a resuit of MRRT at March 31, 2012 and 2013 were ¥161,993 million and ¥222 443 milhon, respectively A
corresponding valuation altowance was established for the entire amount of deferred tax assets recorded at March 31, 2012 and 2013

Net deferred tax liabilities included 1n the consolidated balance sheets at March 31, 2012 and 2013 were as follows

Miilions of
Milhions of Yen U S Doilars
2012 2013 2013

Current assets—Deferred income taxes ¥45,7R0 ¥62,135 $661
Other assets 30,550 37,461 399
QOther current habilities (2,569) (1,280) (14)
Noncurrent habihities—Deferred imncome taxes (19%,051) (264,616) (2,819
Net deferred tax habilhities ¥(125,290) ¥(166,300) $(1,769)

No provision for income taxes 1s recogized for the undistributed earnings of subsidiaries where the Parent considers that such
earnngs are not expected to be remitted 1n the foreseeable future At March 31, 2012 and 2013, the amount of undistributed eammngs
of subsidiaries on which a deferred tax liability has not been recognized m the accompanying consolidated financial statements
aggregated ¥1,133,918 million and ¥1,286,009 million ($13,681 million), respectively Determination of the deferred tax hability
related to the undistnbuted earmings of foreign subsidianes 1s not practicable




At March 31, 2013, the Company had aggregate operating loss carryforwards of ¥284,054 mullion ($3,022 million) which may be
used as a deduction n the determunation of taxable ncome 1n future pertods If not utilized, such loss carryforwards expire as

follows

Milhons of

Milhonsof Yen U S Dollars

Year ending March 31

2014 ¥3,206 $34
2015 3,873 41
2016 1,842 20
2017 3,136 33
2018 7,925 84
2019 through 2023 35,929 382
2024 through 2028 4,663 50
2029 and thereafter 223,480 2,378
Total ¥284,054 $3,022

The following table presents components of income before income taxes and equity 1n earmings of Affihated companies and other

and mcome taxes for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013
Millons of Yen

Millions of U S Dollars

The Parent
and lts
Domestic Foreign

The Parent
and Its
Domestic Foreign

Subsidianies Subsidianies Total Subsidiaries Subsidianes Total
Year ended March 31, 2011
Income before income taxes and equity
1n earnings of Affiliated companies and
other ¥153,48) ¥376,624  ¥530,105
Income taxes—Current (77,324) (91,257)  (168,581)
Income taxes--Deferred (20,423) (9,676) {30,099)
Income taxes—Total ¥(97,747) ¥(100,933) ¥(198,680)
Year ended March 31, 2012
Income before income taxes and equuty
in earnings of Affihated compames and
other ¥180,291 ¥274.417  ¥454.708
Income taxes—Current (56,226) (74,325)  (130,551)
Income taxes—Deferred (41,388) 3,609 (37,779)
Income taxes—Total ¥(97.614) ¥(70,716) ¥(168,330)
Year ended March 31, 2013
Income before income taxes and equity
mn camnings of Affiliated companies and
other ¥195,979  ¥141,227 ¥337,206 $2,085 $1,502 $3,587
Income taxes—Current (82,253) (38,299) (120,552) (875) (407) (1,282)
Income taxes—Deferred (8,466} 15,532 7,066 90 165 75
Income taxes—Total ¥(90,719)  ¥(22,767) ¥(113,486) $(965) $(242)  $(1,207)
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A reconcihiation of the beginming and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows

Millions of Yen

2012

Balance at beginning of year ¥7,268
Additions for tax positions of the current year

Additions for tax positions of pnor years 1,431
Reductions for tax positions of prior years {315)
Settlements (3,895)
Other (8)
Balance at end of year ¥4 48]

The amounts of unrecognized tax benefits at March 31, 2012 and 2013 that would affect the effective tax rate, if recognized, were

¥4,481 milhon and ¥239 million (33 million), respectively

The Company does not believe it 1s reasonably possible that the total amounts of unrecogmized tax benefits will significantly increase

or decrease during the next twelve months

The Company recognizes mterest and penalties associated with uncertain tax positions as a component of income taxes n the
consolidated statements of mcome For the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013, interest and penalties recognized as a component
of accrued income taxes and other long-term hiabilities 1n the consolidated balance sheets and as a component of mcome taxes 1n the

consolidated statements of income were not matenal

The Company files income tax returns m Japan and vanous foreign tax junsdictions In Japan, regular examinations by tax
authonties have been substantially completed for years before 2010 As of March 31, 2013, the earliest tax years that remain subject
to examination by major tax jurisdictions m which the compames operate are the year ended March 31, 2007 for Japan and the year

ended March 31, 2009 for Austraha
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16 ACCRUED PENSION AND SEVERANCE LIABILITIES

The Parent and certamn subsidiaries have defined benefit pension plans covering substantially all employees other than directors The
primary defined benefit pension plans are the Corporate Pension Funds under the Defined Benefit Corporate Pension Law The
benefits for these plans are based upon years of service, compensation at the time of severance and other factors

From April 2006, the Parent has started to convert certain portions of the Corporate Pension Funds into a defined contribution plan in
phases

In addition to the pension plans, most of the domestic subsidianes have unfunded severance imdemnity plans under which their
employees, other than directors, are entitled, under most circumstances, {o lump-sum severance indemmties upon mandatory
retirement at normal retirement age or earher termination of employment The benefits for these plans are based upon years of
service, compensation at the ume of severance and other factors

The Company uses a March 31 measurement date for the pension plans

The following table sets forth the reconciliation of benefit obligation, plan assets and the funded status of the plans

Mithons of
Millions of Yen U S Dollars
2012 2013 2013
Change n benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year ¥438,153 ¥448,248 $4,769
Service cost 12418 12,715 135
Interest cost 10,840 10,872 116
Employee contnibutions 190 194 2
Plan amendments 1,601 17
Actuanal loss 8,717 53,540 569
Benefits paid (20,825) (20,532) (219)
Settlements and curtailments (3,016} (2,468) (26)
Acqusiions/divestitures and other—net 2,347 5,337 57
Change 1n foreign currency exchange rates (576) 5,324 57
Benefit obligation at end of year 448,248 514,831 5477
Change 1n plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 415910 427,487 4,548
Actual gam on plan assets 11,104 41,430 441
Employer contributions 18,132 26,042 277
Employee contributions 190 194 2
Benefits paid (16,417) (16,130) (172)
Settlements 29hH (2,494) 27)
Acquisthions/divestitures and other—net 2,051 2,978 32
Change 1n forergn currency exchange rates {552) 4,431 47
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 427487 483,938 5,148
Funded status at end of year ¥(20,761) ¥(30,893) $(329)
Amounts recognized 1n the consolidated balance sheets consist of
Prepaid pension cost included in other current assets and other assets ¥29.354 ¥24,996 8266
Other accrued expenses (956) (1,150) (12)
Accrued pension hability (49,159) (54,739) (583)
Net amount recognized ¥(20,761) ¥(30,893) $(329)
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The following table presents the pre-tax net loss and prior service cost recognized in AOCH for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012
and 2013

Milhions of
Millions of Yen U S Dollars

2011 2012 2013 2013
Net loss ¥(125,693) ¥(122,175) ¥{(137,097) $(1,458)
Prior service cost {3,465) (3,067) (4,433) 47)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss ¥(129.158) ¥(125,242) ¥(141,530) $(1,505)

Net pertodic pension costs related to the Company's pension and indetnmty plans for the vears ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013
mclude the following components

Milhons of
Milhions of Yen U S Dollars
2011 2012 2013 2013

Service cost—benefits earned during the period ¥12,227 ¥12.418 ¥12,715 5135
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 11,041 10,840 10,872 116
Expected return on plan assets (7.228) (7,489) (8,058) (86)
Recognmized net actuarial loss 7,566 7.903 7,126 76
Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost 369 391 465 5
Settlement and curtailment loss 1,006 1,034 837 9
Net penodic pension cost ¥24 981 ¥25,007 ¥23,957 $255

Other changes 1n plan assets and benefit obhgation recognized 1n other comprehensive income for the years ended March 31, 2011,
2012 and 2013 were as follows

Millions of
Millions of Yen U 8 Dollars
2011 2012 2013 2013

Current year actuarial loss ¥6,965 ¥5419 ¥22,885 $243
Recognized net actuanal loss (7,566} {7,903) (7,126) (76)
Settlement and curtailment loss (1,006) (1,034) (837) 9
Pnor service cost due 1o amendments 221 ) 1,831 20
Amortization of unrecogmized prior service cost (369) (391) (465) (5)
Total recognized 1n other comprehensive imncome ¥(1,755) ¥(3,916) 16,288 $173

The following table presents the estunated net loss and prior service cost that will be amortized from AOCI into net penodic cost for
the year ending March 31, 2014

Millions of
Millions of Yen U S Dollars

2014 2014
Net loss ¥7,349 $78
Prior service cost 536 6
Total ¥7,885 $84

The toial accumulated benefit obligatien for the Company's defined benefit pension plans was ¥413,296 muliion and ¥478 630
muithon ($5,092 mithon) as of March 31, 2012 and 2013, respectively

The aggregate projected benefit obhgation, aggregate accumulated benefit obligation and aggregate fair value of plan assets where
accumulated benefit obligations exceeded plan assets as of March 31, 2012 and 2013 were as follows

Milhons of
Miilions of Yen U S Dollars

2012 2013 2013
Aggregate projected benefit obligation ¥93,362 ¥103,104 $1,097
Aggrepate accumulated benefit oblhigation 82631 96,718 1,029
Aggregate farr value of plan assets 47,124 50,931 542
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Plan Assets

The Company's nvestment policy for their defined benefit penston plans is to procure an adequate return to provide future payments
of pension benefits over the long term by optimizing nsk tolerance and formulaung a well-diversified portfolio such as equity
securities, debt securities and alternative assets

Considering the funded status of the pension plans and surrounding economuc environment for investments, the Company's
investment strategy may be revised as needed Moreover, the Company continuously momtors and pays extra attention to the
diversification of strategies and ivestment managers for the purpose of nsk contro] and thereby pursues efficient nsk management.

Recognizing the strong uncertainty of the market environment continuing from the previous year, the mnvestment policy of the Parent,
which benefit pension plan assets account for substanual parts of the Company's benefit pension plan assets, for the year ending
March 31, 2014 1s to invest m a conservative portfolio The Parent’s target asset allocations as of March 31, 2013, excluding the
employee pension trust which primanty consists of equity secunties, are 20% equaty secunties, 50% debt secunues, 20% alternative
mvestments and 10% cash and cash equivalents

The fair values of the benefit pension plan assets of the Company for the years ended March 31,2012 and 2013, by asset category are
as follows The three levels of input used to measure farr vaiue are desenbed i Note 2

Milhons of Yen

March 31, 2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Equuty secunties *

Japanese equity secunies ¥110,507 ¥16,942 ¥127,449

Global equity secunities 13,285 32,265 45,550
Debt secunties™

Japanese debt secunues 84,706 84,706

Global debt secunties 6,169 78,118 ¥4.249 88,536
Hedpge funds 14 16,312 16,326
Private equity funds 5,192 5,192
Real estate funds 3,424 3,424
Life insurance company accounts’ 14,901 2,615 17,516
Cash and cash equivalents 31,814 31,814
Other assets™ 207 6,767 6,974

Total ¥129,961 ¥258,967 ¥38,559 ¥427 487
Millrons of Yen

March 31,2013 level ] Level 2 Level 3 Total
Equuty securitjes’’

Japanese equity secunties ¥131,637 ¥18,778 ¥150415

Global equity secunties 17,391 39,683 57,074
Debt secunties -

Japanese debt secunties 304 7,098 7,402

Global debt securities 8,239 117,120 ¥9.602 134,961
Hedge funds 13,496 13,496
Private equuty funds 4,588 4,588
Real estate funds 22 1,983 2,008
Life msurance company accounts’® 22274 2,798 25,072
Cash and cash equivalents 80,895 80,895
Other assets™* 910 7,120 8,030

Total ¥157,571 ¥236,780 ¥39,587 ¥483,938
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Millions of U 8 Dollars

March 31,2013 Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
Equity securities”!

Japanese equity secunties $1,400 $200 $1,600

Global equity securities 185 422 607
Debt secunties™

Japanese debt secunties 3 76 7%

Global debt securitics 88 1,246 $102 1,436
Hedge funds 144 144
Private equity funds 49 49
Real estate funds 21 21
Life msurance company accounts™ 237 30 267
Cash and cash equivalents 860 860
Other assets™ 10 75 85

Total $1,676 $3,051 5421 $5,148

*1 Both Japanese equittes and Global equities include the form of fund uruts Global equities include a mixture of Japanese and non-Japanese eguities which are
held mn the form of fund units

*2 Both Japanese debt secunties and Global debt securities include the form of fund umits Global debt secunties include a mixture of Japanese and
non-fapanese debt secunities which are held 1n the form of fund umns

*3 Lafe insurance company accounts consist of investments m hife insurance company general accounts and special accounts General accounts are guaranteed
for principal amount and nterest rate by life insurance companies while special accounts are not guaranteed for their investment return

*4 Other assets principally include Collateralized Loan Obhigation Funds and Infrastructure Funds

Level 1 assets are compnised principally of equity securities, which are valued using quoted market prices 1n active markets

Level 2 assets are compnsed principally of equuty securtties and debt secunties which are held i the form of fund unuts These assets
are valued using their net asset values (NAV) per share that are calculated by the admimistrator of the fund The NAV per share 15
based on the value of the underlying assets that are traded principally in the active market, minus hiabitities and dividends by the
number of shares Investment in hife insurance company accounts are valued by aggregation of their underlying assets that are traded
in the active market

Level 3 assets, consisung principally of hedge funds and private equity funds are valued based on the NAV per share using
unobservable inputs, and these investments are not resleemable or redemption dates of these investmenis are undetermmed, at March
31,2013

The changes in Level 3 assets for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013 were as follows

Millhons of Yen
Balance, Netrealized/ Purchases, Transfersin Balance,
Beginning Unrealized salesand  and/or out End of
March 31, 2012 of Year gains (losses) settlements of Level 3 Other* Year
Debt securities
Global debt securities ¥2.604 ¥364 ¥1.047 ¥234 ¥4.249
Hedge funds 4,507 59 11,746 16,312
Private equity funds 4,744 428 20 5,192
Real estate funds 1,191 233 2,000 3,424
Life insurance company accounts 2,444 130 126 {85} 2,615
Other assets 7,963 343 (1,664) 125 6,767
Total ¥23,453 ¥1,557 ¥13,275 ¥274 ¥38,559
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March 31, 2013

Milhons of Yen

Balance,
Beginming Unrealized

sales and

Net realized/ Purchases, Transfers in

andfor out

of Year gamns (losses) settlements of Level 3

Balance,
End of
Other* Year

Debt secunities
Global debt secunties
Hedge funds
Private equity funds
Real estate funds
Life msurance company accounts
Other assets
Total

¥4,249 ¥852 ¥4,223 ¥105 ¥173 ¥9,602
16,312 77 (3,533) 13,496
5,192 91 (695) 4,588
3,424 148 (1,589) 1,983
2,615 54 214 (428) 343 2,798
6,767 2,127 (1.639) (81) (54) 7,120
¥38,559 ¥3989  ¥(3,019) ¥404) ¥462  ¥39,587

Millions of U § Dollars

Balance, Netrealized/ Purchases, Transfers in Balance,
Beginming Unrealized salesand  and/or out End of
March 31, 2013 of Year gams (losses) settlements of Level 3 Other* Year
Debt securities
Global debt secunties $45 $9 $45 $1 52 5102
Hedge funds 174 8 (38) 144
Private equuty funds 55 1 (N 49
Real estate funds 36 2 (17 21
Life msurance company accounts 28 1 2 (5) 4 30
Other assets 72 21 (7 ()] 75
Total 410 $42 $(32) s(4) 55 $421
* "Other" mncludes the effect of changes 1n foreign currency exchange rates
Assumptions
The weighted average assumptions used to determime benefit obligations at March 31, 2012 and 2013 were as follows
2012 2013
Weighted average discount rate 26% 18%
Average rate of increase mn future compensation levels 26 26

The weighted average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013

were as follows

2011 2012 2013
Weighted average discount rate 27% 27% 26%
Average rate of increase wn future compensation levels 26 25 26
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 26 25 25

The Company determines assumptions for the expected long-term return on plan assets conswdenng the investment policy, the
histonical returns, asset allocation and future estimates of long-term 1nvestment returns
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Contnbutions
The Company’s funding policy 1 manly to contribute an amount deductible for income tax purposes Contnbutions are mntended to
provide not only for benefits attnbutable to service to date, but also for those expected to be earned 1n the future

The Company expects o contribute approximnately ¥13,000 rullion (3138 mullion) to its defined benefit pension plans dunng the
year ending March 31, 2014

Estimated Future Benefit Payments

Estimated future benefit payments are as follows

Muliions of
Milhons of Yen U § Dollars
Years ending March 31

2014 ¥23,768 5253
2015 24317 259
2016 24,104 256
2017 25,098 267
2018 25,157 268
2019 through 2023 122,968 1,308

Defined Contribution Plans
The Parent and certain subsidianes have defined contnbution plans The expenses related to these defined contribution plans were
¥2.307 million, ¥2,419 milhion and ¥3,378 million ($36 mlbion) for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, respectively

Early Retirement Program

The Parent has offered an early retirement program to its employees At March 31, 2012 and 2013, the lrability for applicants to the
program, discounted to reflect the present value of the expected cash flows, was ¥3,305 mtthon and ¥3,036 million (332 mllion),
respectively Current and noncurrent portion of such hability 15 included n “Other accrued expenses” and n “Accrued pension and
severance llabiliies” m the accompanying consohdated balance sheets, respectively, depending on when the additionat benefit
payment 1s expected to be made Related expenses recogmized by the Parent for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013,
included in “Selling, general and admimstrative expenses™ in the accompanying consohdated statements of income, were ¥1,079
million, ¥658 million and ¥859 milhion (89 mulhon), respectively
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17 ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

The Company accounts for asset retirement obhgatiens (“AROs”), consisting primarly of costs associated with muine reclamation,
landfills and dismantlement of facilities These are related to legal obligations associated with the normal operation of the Company's
coal mining and o1l and gas facilities

These habilities are mncluded m “Other current habiliies” and “Other noncurrent liabilities™ in the consohidated balance sheets

The changes in the carrying amount of AROs for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013 were as follows

Muilions of
Millions of Yen 'S Dollars
2012 2013 2013

Balance at beginning of year ¥63,941 ¥70,781 $753
Accretion expense 4416 4,061 43
Liabilities settled (4,8375) (2,810 (30)
Liabilities incurred 8,463 13,203 141
Revisions 1n estimated cash flow (267} (1,160) (12}
Change n foreign currency exchange rates (897) 9,707 103
Balance at end of year ¥70,781 ¥93,782 $998
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18 SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Common Stock—

The Compames Act of Japan (the “Compames Act™) requires i principle that the amount of payment for shares and assets delivered
shall be the amount of common stock However, the Companies Act permuts, as an exception, that an amount not exceeding 50% of
such amount of payment and assets 1s able to be mcorporated 1nto additional paid-in capital

Additional Pard-m Capital and Retained Earnings—
The Companies Act requires that an amount equal to 1 0% of dividends from retained eamings to be paid shall be appropnated and set
aside as legal reserve until the total of additional paid-in capital and legal reserve amounts to 25% of the common stock amount

The Companies Act provides that subject to certatn conditions, such as a resolution at a shareholders’ meeting, a company may
transfer amounts between common stock, reserves and surplus

The effects of changes 1n the Parent’s ownership interest in its subsidiary on the Parent’s equity for the years ended March 31, 2011,
2012 and 2013 were as follows

Mithions of
Millhions of Yen U S Dollars
2011 2012 2013 2013

Net mcome attributable to Mitsubishs Corporation ¥464,543 ¥452,344 ¥360,028 $3,830
Increase m additional paid-in capital for purchases or sales of certam

subs:idianes’ common shares 1,002 4,591 585 6
Change from net income attributable to Mitsubishi Corporation and

transfers to noncontrolling nterest ¥465,545 ¥456,935 ¥360,613 $3,836

Dividends-—

Under the Compames Act, the total amount for dividends and acquisition or purchase of treasury stock may not exceed the
distrtbutable amount of the Parent which is calculated based on the amount of the retained earmings recorded 1n the Parent’s general
books of accounts mamtaimed m accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan The adjustments to the
consolidated financial statements to conform with U § GAAP have no effect on the determination of the distributable amount under
the Companies Act The distributable amount under the Companies Act was ¥1,530,094 million ($16,278 mullion) as of March 31,
2013 The distributable amount may fluctuate unul the effective date for the distnbution of dividends as a result of, for example,
subsequent purchases of treasury stocks

The Companies Act allows for the payment of dividends at any time during the fiscal year upon resolution at a shareholders’ meeting
Furthermore, the Parent 15 also allowed to distnbute a sermannual intenim dividend by resolution of the Board of Directors

in the accompanying consohdated statements of equity, dividends and appropnations to the legal reserve shown for each year
represent dividends paid out during the year and the appropriation to the legal reserve made 1n relation to the respective dividends

Purchase of Treasury Stock—

The Companies Act allows Japanese companies to purchase and hotd treasury stock Japanese companies are allowed to dectde the
number, amount and others of the treasury stock to be acquired, not exceeding the amount available for distnbution, upon resolution
at the shareholders’ meeting The Compantes Act atlows the Japanese companies to purchase treasury stock through market
transactions or tender offer by resolution of the Board of Directors, as far as 1t 15 allowed under the Articles of Incorporation, subject
to limitations imposed by the Compantes Act

At the ordinary general meeting of shareholders held on June 24, 2004, 1t was approved that the Parent amended the Articles of
Incorporation to entitle the Board of Directors to purchase outstanding shares of the Company’s treasury stock by 1ts resolutions

In the year ended March 2012, the Parent retired treasury stock (45 million shares) subject to approval of the Board of Directors As
a result, additional pard-in capital decreased by ¥9 million, unappropnated retamed earnings decreased by ¥128,601 million and
treasury stock decreased by ¥128,610 mulion The retirement of treasury stock did not affect total Mitsubishi Corporation
shareholders’ eqiuty
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19 COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Comprehensive income attnbutable to Mitsubish: Corporauon for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 consisted of the
following

Milliens of
Milhions of Yen U S Dollars
2011 2012 2013 2013
Net income attnbutable to Mitsubish: Corporation ¥464,543 ¥452,344  ¥360,028 $3.830
Other comprehensive (loss) income attributable 1o Mitsubishu
Corporation
Net unrealized (losses) gains on available-for-sale secunties (Note 5)
Net unrealized holding (losses) gans dunng the year {23,769) (16,345) 141,337 1,504
Reclassification adjustments for net gans included n net income
attributable to Mitsubishn Corporation (19,763) (7,246) (26,246) (280)
Net change during the year (43,532) (23,591) 115,091 1,224
Income tax benefit (expense) (Note 15) 19,027 17,161 (40,006) {425)
Total (24,505) (6,430) 75,085 799
Net unrealized gatns {losses) on denvatives (Note 11)
Net unrealized gains {losses) duning the year 44,018 (10,724) 9,560 102
Reclassification adjustments for net gains included 1n net income
attributable to Mutsubishi Corporation {27,054) (36,821) (3,311) (36)
Net change during the year 16,964 (47,545) 6,249 66
Income tax (expense) benefit (Note 15) (4,519} 14,758 (2,584) 27)
Total 12,445 (32,787) 3,665 39
Defined benefit pension plans {(Note 16)
Net unrealized losses during the year (7,081) (6,608) (23,238) (247
Reclassification adjustments for net losses ncluded mn net income
attrbutable to Mitsubishi Corporation 8,892 9,236 8,286 88
Net change dunng the year 1,811 3,228 {14,952) (159)
Income tax (expense) benefit (Note 15) (978) {1,977) 5,368 57
Total 833 1,251 (9,584) (102)
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Translation adjustments durning the year (87,853) (45,322) 353,929 3,765
Reclassification adjustments for net losses included in net income
atinbutable 10 Mitsubishi Corporation 3,134 4,196 1,252 14
Net change duning the year (84,719) (41,126) 355,181 3,779
Income tax benefit (expense) (Note 15) 13,257 10,393 (18,996} (203)
Total (71,462) (30,733) 336,185 3,576
Total other comprehensive (loss) income attributable to
Mitsubishi Corporation (82,689) (68,699) 405,351 4,312
Comprehensive income attributable to Mitsubishy Corporation ¥381,854  ¥383,645  ¥765379 $8,142
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20 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Reconcihiations of the bastc and diluted net income attnbutable to Mitsubishs Corporation per share are as follows

Mitlions of !
Milhons of Yen U § Dollars
2011 2012 2013 2013
Numerator
Net income attnbutable to Mitsubishi Corporation ¥464,543 ¥452.344 ¥360,028 $3,830
Thousands of Shares
2011 2012 2013
Denominator
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding 1,643,687 1,645,406 1,646,519
Effect of dilutive secunities
Stock options 3,610 3,527 3,649
Japanese yen convertible bond 762 134
Diluted cutstanding shares 1,648,059 1,649,068 1,650,169
Yen U S Deollars
2011 2012 2013 2013
Per share amount
Basic ¥282 62 ¥27491 ¥218 66 $233
Diluted 28187 27430 218 18 232
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21 SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise that engages 1n business activities from which revenue may be
eamned and expenses incurred for which discrete financial information 1s available that 15 evaluated regularly by the chief operating
decision maker 1n deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance

The operating segments were determined based on the nature of the products and services offered The Company’s reportable
operating segments consist of the following s1x business groups

Industrial Finance, Logistics & Development—

The Indusinal Finance, Logistics & Development Group 1s developing shesha-type industnial finance businesses These include
asset management businesses, buyout mvestment businesses, leasing businesses, real estate development and finance businesses,
and logistics services

Energy Business—

The Energy Business Group conducts o1l and gas exploration, development and production (E&P) business, investment m
hiquefied natural gas (LNG) hquefaction projects, and sales of crude o1l, petroleum products, carbon materals and products,
LNG, and hquefied petroleum gas (LPG) and so forth

Metals—

The Metals Group trades, develops busmnesses and invests tn a range of fields These include steel products such as steel sheets
and thick plates, steel raw matenals such as coking coal and 1ron ore, and non-ferrous raw matenals and products such as copper
and aluminum

Machinery—

The Machinery Group engages in sales, finance and logistics for machinery across many different sectors, 1n which 1t also invests
These fields range from large-scale plants for production of natural gas, petroleum, chemicals or steel, to marnine, automotive and
other transport equipment, as well as aerospace-related equipment, mining equipment, constrection machmery, industnal
equipment and elevating machtnes

Chemicals—

The Chemucals Group trades chemical products i a broad range of fields, in which it also devetops businesses and invests These
fields extend from raw matentals used 1n industnal products such as ethylene, methanol and salt produced from crude o1, natural
gas, minerals, plants, marine resources and so forth, to plastics, electronic matenals, food ingredients, fertilizer and fine
chemicals

Living Essentials—

The Living Essentials Group provides producis and services, develops busmesses and mvests i various fields closety linked with
people’s lives, including food products and food, textiles, essential supplies, healthcare, distnbution and retail These fields
extend from the procurement of raw matenals to the consumer market

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as those described 1n the summary of significant accounting policies
except that the disaggregated financial information has been prepared using a management approach, 1n which management
mternally disaggregates financtal information for the purpose of assisting in making iniemnal operating decisions Management
evaluates segment performance based on several factors, of which the primary financial measure 1s net income (loss) attnbutable to
Mitsubish1 Corporation

Intersegment transactions are priced with reference to prices appheable to transactions with unaffihated parties
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The Company’s operating segment mformation at and for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 was as follows

Millions of Yen
Industrial
Finance Adjustments
Logistucs & Energy Living and
2011 Development  Business Meals  Machinery Chemicals  Essentials Total Other  Eliminations Consolidated
Revenues ¥90,051 ¥1248912  ¥834.812 ¥662.800  ¥803,702 ¥1,525.834 ¥5166,210 ¥51,288  ¥(10,625) ¥5,206,873
Gross profit 44,546 43798 326,281 167,179 84180 456,783 1,122,767 37,760 (10,625) 1,149,902
Equity 1in eamings of
Affihated companies
and other 8,892 55,720 41,880 18,554 14688 23,308 163,042 6,370 (2,410) 167,002
Net income (loss)
attnnbutable to Mitsubishu
Corporation 11,062 94,007 231,468 59,077 29,117 46,260 470,991 (11,374) 4,926 464,543
Segment assets 789,062 1,279,639 3,030,266 1,571,527 708,598 2,183,855 9,562,947 2568927  (859,099) 11,272,775
Investments in Affilated
companies 132,400 194,843 244 398 157,952 105,098 337,389 117,080 107,805 1,553  1,28],438
Depreciatron and
amortization 19413 18,732 37,681 18,826 3,651 28273 126,576 17,243 143,819
Capital expenditures for
long-lived assets 41,701 38,418 68,086 22,545 4,483 25,839 201,072 9,203 210,275
Operating transactions
External customers ¥147,639 ¥3,860,109 ¥4,407,057 ¥2372558 ¥2,019272 ¥5306,156 ¥18,117,791 ¥]1,242,162  ¥(126,510)¥19,233,443
Intersegment 21,617 14,047 1,760 5,065 8,096 7451 58,036 28,551 (86 587)
Total ¥169,256 ¥3,874,156 ¥4,408.817 ¥2.382623 ¥2,027,368 ¥5,313,607 ¥18,175,827 ¥1270,713 ¥213,097)¥19,233 443
Millions of Yen
Industnal
Finance, Adjustments
Logistics & Energy Living and
2012 Development  Business Metals Machinery  Chemmicals  Essentials Total Other  Ehminations Consolidated
Revennes ¥94.621 ¥1406407  ¥856,356  ¥567,184 ¥1,009410 ¥1,571,720 ¥5,505,698 ¥62,025 ¥(1,891) ¥5565832
Gross profit 45,400 61,828 267,553 161,849 86,564 462,996 1,086,190 43 561 (1,391) 1,127,860
Equity 1n earnings of
Affihated compames and
other 9,157 71,939 38,324 22,406 17,968 25,792 185,586 7,388 (556) 162418
Net income (loss)
attrnibutable to Mitsubish
Corporation 14,216 120,639 170,636 49,763 37,085 56,642 448 981 3,557 (194) 452344
Segment assets 864,500 1,594,140 3,571,003 | 655475 306,218 2,383,577 10,874,9)3 2,720,506 (1,007,099) 12,588,320
Investments 1n Affihated
companics 146,533 334281 775,162 155,903 106,725 346,172 1,864,776 115,604 7856 1988236
Depreciation and
emoruzaton 20,405 15,991 41,357 18,392 4,346 28,801 129,292 16,136 145,428
Capital expenditures for
long-hved assets 104,53} 41,763 143,919 39,221 5,298 25,478 360 210 26,106 386,316
Operating transactions
External customers ¥170,982 ¥4,554997 ¥4.306,774 ¥2.203 857 ¥2207,119 ¥5442.466 ¥19,066,195 ¥1,062,829 ¥(2,703) ¥20,126,321
Intersegment 19,647 9473 2,779 14,659 11,468 8223 66,249 36,366  {102,615)
Total ¥190,629 ¥4.564.470 ¥4,399,553 ¥2,308516 ¥2,218,587 ¥5450689 ¥19,132.444 ¥1,099,195 ¥105,318)¥20,126,32]
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Millions of Yen

Indusinal
Finance, Adjustments
Logistcs & Energy Living and
2013 Development  Business Metals Machinery Chemncals  Essenuals Total Other  Elmminations Consolidated
Revenues ¥172,086 ¥1,540,908  ¥590903  ¥847,141 ¥1,136,137 ¥1,528200 ¥5915375 ¥55,679 ¥2,280) ¥5968,774
Gross profit 56,006 52,811 133,602 194,583 92,109 464,865 993,976 37,962 (2,281} 1,029,657
Interest expense {5,667) (9,809) (21,421) (25,705) (5,187) (11,449)  (83.238) 22,100 17,907 (43,231)
Interest income 3,249 2,749 4,848 22,063 293 1,077 34279 20,602 (17,640) 37,241
Income taxes (10,984) (22492) {13,056) (20,838) (7,620) (33,872) (108.862) 1,548 (6,172) {113,486)
Equity 1n carmungs of
Affiliated companies and
other 16,512 72,195 18,537 20,213 13,724 22 788 153,969 (75} 380 164,274
Net income (loss)
attributable to Mitsubishi
Corporation 24,963 142,376 36910 61 895 22627 67,537 356,308 7,627 (3,907 360,028
Segment assets 1,027,218 1909013 4,145036 1,972,989 916,614 2612950 12,583,820 3,351,739 () 524,894) 14,410,665
Investments 1n Affiliated
companies 184,072 577235 796,286 137 336 118,534 351,893 2,225 356 196,507 3,498 2425361
Depreciation and
amortization 20,440 15070 48,949 19611 6,295 32,270 142,635 14,770 157,405
Capital expenditures for
long-lived assets 136,631 44714 224,060 92 575 5,776 36,419 540 175 11,007 551,182
Operating transactions
External customers ¥214,894 ¥4 955765 ¥4.003543 ¥2,473363 ¥2380238 ¥5555728 ¥19,583 531  ¥625126 ¥(1,474)¥20 207 183
Intersegment 19,406 8,359 3,860 6,157 16,634 8,432 62,848 40,561  (103,409)
Total ¥234,300 ¥4.964,124 ¥4007,403 ¥2,479,520 ¥2,396,872 ¥5,564,160 ¥19,646,379 ¥655687  ¥(104,883)}¥20,207,183
Millions of U § Dollars
Industnal
Finance, Adjustments
Logistics & Energy Living and
2013 Development  Business Metals  Machipery Chemicals  Essentials Total Other  Elminations Consolidated
Revenues $1,831 $16 393 £7 350 59,012 $12,087 $16,257 £62,930 5592 $(24) $63 498
Gross profit 396 562 1421 2,070 980 4,945 10,574 404 (24) 10954
Interest expense (103) (104) (228) (273) (55) (122) (885) 235 190 {460}
Interest income 35 29 52 235 3 11 365 219 {188) 396
Income taxes nmn (239) (139) (222) 81) (360) (1,158) 16 (65) (1.207)
Equity in earmngs of
Affiliated companies and
other i76 768 197 215 146 242 1,744 (1) 5 1,748
Net income (loss)
attributable to Mitsubisha
Corporation 266 1,515 393 658 241 718 3,791 8) {42) 3,830
Segment assets 10,928 20,305 44,096 20,989 9,751 27,797 133,870 35,657 (16,222) 153 305
Investnents tn Affiliated
companies 1,958 6,141 8471 2,099 1,261 3,744 23,674 2,091 37 25,802
Depreciation and
amortization 217 160 521 209 67 343 1,517 158 1,675
Camtal expenditures for
long-lived assets 1.454 476 2,384 985 61 337 5,747 117 5,864
Operating transactions
External customers $2,286 $52,721 $42,591 $26,312 $25322 $50 103 $208,335 $6,650 ${(15) 5214970
Intersegment 206 89 41 66 177 90 669 432 (1,101)
Total 12492 $52,810 $42632 $26,378 $25,499 $£59,193  $209,004 £7,082 $(1,116) $214970
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*2

*3

*4

*5

*5

Operating transactions, as presented above, arc voluntary disclosures solely for the converence of investors n Japan Operating transactions represent the

gross transaction volume or the aggregate nominal value of the sales contracts n wiich the companies act as pnncipal and transactions in which the

companies serve as agent

“Other” represents the corporate departments which pnmanty provide services and operaional supporns to the Company and Affiliated companies

Thus column also includes certatn revenues and expenses from business activities related to finanang and human resource services that are not allocated o

reportable operating segments

Unallocated corporate assets categorized in “Other” consist pnmanly of cash, ime deposits and secunties for financial and investment activities

“Adjustments and Eiiminations” include certatn income and expense 1tems that are not allocated to reportable operating segments and intersegment

eliminatons

Effective April 1,2012, the Company transferred parts of the business of the "Indusinal Finance, Logistics & Development™ and "Machinery” to "Other”

The consolidated financial positon and the results of operations of related reportable operating segments for the years ended March 31,2011 and 2012
have been reclassified accordingly

From the year ended March 31, 2013, “Interest expense™, “Interest income” and “Income taxes™ are disclosed “Interest expense™ allocated to each

reportable operating segment includes intercompany interest expenses charged from the corporate departments in accordance with itemal regulations,

while “Interest expense”™ 1n “Other” represents interest income recerved from each reportable operating segment “Income taxes™ allocated 1o each

reportable operating segment mcludes both current taxes and deferred taxes atmbutable to each segment, while “Income taxes™ in “Adjustments and

Eliminations™ represents cumrent taxes and deferred taxes which are not attnbutable to each segment

For the year ended March 31, 2011, the amount of “Net mncome (loss) atinbutable to Mitsubishs Cerporation” includes gems on a share exchange held by

“Metals” of ¥36,619 million (before tax) For the year ended March 31, 2012, the amount of "Net income (loss) attributable to Misubishy Corporation™

on “Metals” bne includes gains of ¥12,542 mallion (before tax) on remeasurement at fair value of the previously held equity interests in Crosslands

Resources Ltd and Oakajes Pont and Rail wiich were wholly owned by the Company as a result of acquining additional interests i them
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Geographic Information

Revenues, gross profit, long-hved assets and operating transactions at and for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 were
as follows

Milhons of
Millions of Yen U S Dollars
2011 2012 2013 2013
Revenues
Japan ¥3,812,066 ¥4,229 907 ¥4,463,439 $47,483
Thaland 380,969 295,829 560,978 5.968
Australia 493,399 494,353 377,862 4,020
Other 520,439 545,743 566,495 6,027
Total ¥5,206,873 ¥5,565,832 ¥5,968,774 $63,498
Gross profit
Japan ¥735,109 ¥767,423 ¥772,561 $2,219
Thailand 53,278 45,031 72,368 770
United Kingdom 42,753 47,631 59,118 629
Other 318,762 267,775 125,610 1,336
Total ¥1,149,902 ¥1,127,860 ¥1,029,657 $10,954
Long-lhived assets
Australia ¥494 690 ¥648,475 ¥953 037 $10,139
Japan 703,255 674,152 692,428 7,366
Canada 75,547 85,511 110,887 1,180
USA 80,350 83,138 100,160 1,066
Other 312,570 389,634 585,979 6,233
Total ¥1,666,412 ¥1,880.910 ¥2.442 491 $25,984
Operating transactions
Japan ¥15,667,224 ¥16,400,378 16,134,926 $171,648
USA 886,257 951,260 1,084,460 11,537
Thailand 634,555 541,892 922,238 9,811
Other 2,045,407 2,232,791 2,065,559 21,974
Total ¥19,233.443 ¥20,126,321 ¥20,207,183 $214,970

*1 Revenues, gross profit and cperating transactions are atinbuted to geographsc areas based on the location of the assets producing such revenues, gross profit
and operating transactions

*2 “Operating transactions” 1s s voluntary disclosure commonly made by Japanese trading companies, and 15 not meant to represent sales of revenues in
accordance with U § GAAP Sec Note 1

Nesther the Company nor any of its segments depended on any single customer, small group of customers, or government for more
than 10% of the Company’s revenues for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, respectively
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22 OTHER INCOME—NET

“Other ncome-—net” for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 consisted of the followng

Millions of
Milhions of Yen U S Dollars
201 2012 2013 2013

Net foreign exchange gains ¥(45,205) ¥(42,87D ¥(1,961) 821

Insurance recovery gains (531) (4,009) (24,748) (263)

Bargam purchase gams from the acquisition (Note 4) (5,909} (21,479) (229)
Impairment loss of goodwill (Note 10} 891 870

Miscellaneous (4,335) (8,654) (6,844) (7

Total ¥(49,180)  ¥(60,669)  ¥(55,032) $(585)
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23 LEASES

Lessor
The Company leases, as lessor, vehicles, vessels and other industnal machmery and equipment under arrangements which are
classified as direct financing leases

Current portion, included 1n "Accounts receivable—trade” and "Loans and other recetvables” and noncurrent portion, included 1
"Noncurrent notes, loans and accounts receivable—trade™ of net investments n direct financing leases at March 31, 2012 and 2013
were as follows

Millions of
Millions of Yen U S Dollars
2012 2013 2013

Total mmmimum lease payments to be received ¥479,605 ¥606,436 $6,451
Estimated unguaranteed residual value of leased assets 1,402 528 6
Less—unearned mcome {87,885) (99.465) (1,058)
Investment m direct financing leases 393,122 507,499 5,399
Less—allowance for doubtful receivables (6,152) (11,071) (118)
Net investment in direct financing leases ¥386,970 ¥496,428 $5,281

The Company also leases, as lessor, aircrafi, vessels and other industnial assets under operating leases

The following provides the Company’s investment 1n property on operating leases and property held for lease by classes at March
31,2013

Mtllions of Yen Millions of U § Dollars
Accumulated Accumulated
Cost Depreciation Nei Cost Depreciation Net
Land ¥79,182 ¥79,182 5842 $842
Buildings 59,183 ¥(33,595} 25,588 630 $(358) 272
Machmery and equipment 100,952 {56,966} 43,986 1,074 {606) 468
Aarrcraft 410,569 (106,089) 304,480 4,368 (1,129) 3,239
Vessels and vehicles 174,631 (74,376) 100,255 1,857 (790) 1,067
Total ¥824,517  ¥(271,026) ¥553,491 $8,771 $(2,883) $5,888

Future minimum lease payments to be received as of March 31, 2013 are as follows

Millions of
Milhons of Yen U S Dollars
Direct Noncancelable
Financing Operating
Leases Leases Total Total
Years Ending March 31
2014 ¥176,100 ¥64,586 ¥240,686 $2,560
2015 134,076 50,027 184,103 1,959
2016 85,976 41,912 127,888 1,361
2017 58,565 35,052 93,617 996
2018 30,850 28,853 59,703 635
2019 and thereafier 120,869 99,765 220,664 2,347
Total ¥606,436 ¥320.225 ¥926.,661 $9.858

This amount does not include contingent rentals that may be received under certan lease contracts
Contingent rentals for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 were ¥45 million, ¥57 mullion and ¥19 malhion ($0 2 million),
respectively
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Lessee

The Company leases, as lessee, machinery and equipment, real estate and others under capital leases Certam of these leases have

renewal and purchase options

Current poruon of obligations under capital leases 15 mcluded n "Other current hiahlities” and noncurrent portion of obligations
under capital leases 1s tncluded in "Qther noncurrent habiliies” on the Consohidated Balance Sheets

The following provides the Company’s leased assets recorded under caprtal leases as of March 31, 2012 and 2013

2012

Millions of Yen

Accumulated
Cost  Depreciation Net

Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Vessels and vehicles

¥11,025 ¥(6,185)  ¥4,840
42,261 (22,330) 19,931
4365 (2,457) 1,908

Total ¥57,651 ¥(30,972)  ¥26,679
Miulions of Yen Milhions of U S Dollars
Accumulated Accumulated

2013 Cost  Depreciation Net Cost  Depreciation Net
Buildings ¥11,487 ¥(6,913) ¥4,574 $122 $(73) $49
Machinery and equipment 44,225 (22,017) 22,208 471 (235) 236
Vessels and vehicles 3,960 (1,930) 2,030 42 20) 22

Total ¥59.672 ¥(30,860) ¥28.812 $635 $(328) $307

Future mimimum lease payments under capital leases together with components of the present value of the net mimmum lease

payments as of March 31, 2013 are as follows

Millions of
Years Ending March 31 Millionsof Yen U S Dollars
2014 ¥13,266 $14]
2015 11,496 122
2016 8,498 90
2017 6,377 68
2018 4,605 49
2019 and thereafter 15,285 163
Total mimimum lease payments 59,527 633
Less amount representing nterest (3,721) (39)
Present value of net minimum lease payments 55,806 594
Current capital lease obligations 13,219 141
Long-term capital lease obhgations ¥42,587 $453
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Minimum payments have not been reduced by minimum sublease revenues of ¥25,456 million ($271 milhon) due 1n the future under
subleases

The Company leases, as lessee, office space and certan other assets under operating leases Certain of these leases have renewal and
purchase options

Total rental expenses under operating leases for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 were ¥56,554 milhon, ¥67,543
milhon and ¥83,764 mllion ($891 million), respectively Sublease rental income for the vears ended March 31,2011, 2012 and 2013
were ¥6,608 million, ¥11,702 mullion and ¥22 673 million ($241 million), respectively

Future mimimum lease payments under noncancelable leases as of March 31, 2013 are as follows

Millions of

Years Ending March 31 Millionsof Yen U S Dollars
2014 ¥53,111 $£565
2015 33421 356
2016 29,794 317
2017 26,504 282
2018 22307 237
2019 and thereafter 73,532 782

Total ¥238,669 $2,539

Minimum payments have not been reduced by minimum sublease rentals of ¥30,945 million ($329 million) due 1n the future under
noncancelable subleases
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24 STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Parent had two types of stock opton plans, stock opuon Class A and Class B, for certaun directors and executive officers,
however, the Parent resolved to unify the plans at the Board of Directors’ meeting held on July 20, 2007

The stock option plans resolved by the Board of Directors” meetngs held in and before June 2007

Under the Class A plan, the nght to purchase the shares of the Parent 1s granted at an exercise prce determined based on the greater
of the quoted price of the shares on the Tokye Stock Exchange on the grant date or the average quoted pnce for a month pnor to the
grant date The stock opuons are vested and immediately exercisable afier 23 months from the grant date, and exerctsable periods are
8 ycars from the vested day

Under the Class B plan, the nght to purchase the shares of the Parent 15 granted at an exercise price of ¥1 per share The contractual
term of the Class B stock option 1s 30 years The stock option holders may exercise their stock acquisitton nght dunng the 10-year
penod starting on the day after leaving thewr position as both director and executive officer of the Parent Notwithstanding the above,
if the stock option holders do not leave thewr position as both director and executive officer of the Parent, they may exercise their nght
from the day after 25 years from the grant date If they leave their position before June 30 of the next year after the grant date, the
exercisable number 1s determined based on the tenure penod from the grant date

The stock option plans resolved by the Board of Directors’ meetings held i and after July 2007

Under the unified plan, the nght to purchase the shares of the Parent 15 granted at an exercise price of ¥1 per share The contractual
term of the stock option 15 30 years The stock options are vested and exercisable from the earlier of either the day after 23 months
from the grant date or the day after leaving their position as both director and executive officer of the Parent The stock option holders
may exercise their stock acquisition nght duning the 10-year penod starting on the day after leaving their position as both director
and executive officer of the Parent If they leave therr position before June 30 of the next year after the grant date, the exercisable
number 1s determined based on the tenure period from the grant date

The total stock-based compensation cost recognized for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 was ¥1,240 million, ¥1,256
mullion and ¥1,006 million ($11 million), respectively The total tax benefit recognized related thereto for the years ended March 31,
2011, 2012 and 2013 was ¥508 mullion, ¥452 million and ¥362 mullion ($4 million), respectively The tax benefit reahized from stock
options exercised for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 was ¥102 m:ilion, ¥471 milhon and ¥356 million ($4 million),
respectively No stock-based compensation cost was capiialized for the years ended March 31,2011, 2012 and 2013

The weighted-average fair value of options granted under the Parent’s stock option plan for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012
and 2013 was ¥1,600, ¥1,569 and ¥1,042 ($11 09) per share, respectively

The fair value of these stock options 15 estimated using the Black-Scholes option pncing model with the assumptions noted in the
following table The risk-free interest rate 15 based on the yield of government bonds 1n effect at the grant date having a remaiing hife
equal to the option’s expected life Expected volatilities are based on the historical volatility of the Parent’s stock for the penod equat
to the option’s expected life from the grant date The expected dividend yield 1s based on the actual dividends made 1n the preceding
year Expected life represents the pertod of time that the opuions granted are expected to be outstanding,

201} 2012 2013
Rusk-free interest rate 0 71%-0 85% 0 76%—0 86% 0 67%072%
Expected volatility 40 88%%—40 99% 40 49%—40 68% 39 21%-3%960%
Expecied dividend yield 2 02%-2 04% 3 16%-3 33% 4 21%439%
Expected hife 8 years 8 vears 9-9 25 years

The following table summarizes information about stock option activities for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013

2011 2012 2013
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Number of Exercise Numberof Exercise Number of Weighted Average
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Exercise Price
uUs
Years Ended March 31 Yen Yen Yen Dollars
QOutstanding at beginming of the fiscal year 6,079,000 ¥1,041 6,160,500 ¥947 5,609,100 ¥ssl $94
Granted 665,400 1 796,100 1 970,000 1
Canceled or expired (2,100} 1 (400) i {8,400) 1
Exercised (581,400) 847  (1,347.500) 666 (917,300) 472 50
QOutstanding at end of the fiscal year 6,160,900 947 5,609,100 881 5,653,400 797 85
Exercisable at end of the fiscal year 4,113,900 1,418 4,319,000 1,144 4,165,400 1,082 115
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The following table summarizes information for options outstanding and exercisable at March 31, 2013

Weighted
Exercise Average
Price Number of Remaiming Aggregate
Range Shares Life Intnnsic Value
Millions of  Milhons of
Yen Years Yen U S Dollars
Quistanding ¥1-2,435 5,653,400 148 ¥5.,348 $57
Exercisable ¥1-2,435 4,165,400 100 2,753 29

The total intnnsic value of options exercised during the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 was ¥730 milhon, ¥1,582
million and ¥1,059 milhon ($11 msllion), respectively As of March 31, 2013, the total unrecogmzed compensation cost related to
nonvested stock options granted under the plans was ¥223 million ($2 million), which 1s expected to be recognized over a
weighted-average penod of 0 3 years
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25 VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES

The Company evaluates 1ts involvement with VIEs to determine whether the Company has vanable interests in VIEs If the
Company 15 determined to have vanable interests o a VIE, the Company evaluates 1ts power to direct the activities of the VIE that
most significantly impact the economic performance and the obligation to absorb losses of or the right to receive benefits from the
VIE that could potentially be sigmificant to the VIE to determine whether the Company 15 the pnmary beneficiary

For VIEs that meet certain enteria, the Company 15 determined to be the pnmary beneficiary 1f the Company absorbs a majonty of
the VIE’s expected losses or receives a majority of the VIE’s expected residual retums

The following 1s the information regarding the VIEs that are conschdated and not consolidated by the Company

Consolidated VIEs

The Company utilizes VIEs primanily 1n the real estate development business The Company purchases real estate or beneficial
interests in real estate with the miention (o resell after enhancing 1ts value by developing real estate properties These VIEs are
financed mainly by borrowings The Company utilizes these ViEs to obtamn nonrecourse loans from third parties to lumit the
Company’s risks on activities related to the real estate development and real estate investment trusts businesses

The following table summanzes total assets of the VIEs and carrying amount of the VIEs' tota) assets and habilities on the
Consohdated Batance Sheets as of March 31, 2012 and 2013

Mitions of
Mullions of Yen U § Dollars

2012 2013 2013
Total assets of the VIEs ¥195.452 ¥149,334 $1,589
Carrymg amount of the VIEs' total assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets 194,080 149,333 1,589
Carrying amount of the VIEs' total habilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets 73,018 60,969 649

Carrytng amount of the VIEs' total assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets consisted prumanly of property and equipment and
Jjoint investments 1n real estates that could be used only to settle long-term debt of the consolidated VIEs Carrying amount of the
VIEs' total labilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets consisted primanly of long-term debt, mcluding current matunities for
which creditors or beneficial interest holders do not have recourse of the general credit of the Company

A portion of the assets are pledged as collateral for the long-term debt of these VIEs The carrying amount was ¥112,884 million and
¥85,061 milhon ($905 mallton) as of March 31, 2012 and 2013, respectively, and was pnmanly classified as property and equipment
and joint investments 1n real estates in the Consolidated Balance Sheets

Several consohidated VIEs of the Company as of March 31, 2012 were no longer consolidated as of March 31, 2013 due to the
Company’s disposition of interests in the VIEs and the hquidation of the VIEs The effect on the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2013 was not matenal

Nonconsolidated VIEs

The Company has vanable interests in VIEs snvolved 1n various businesses in the form of equity investments, guarantees and loans
for which the Company 15 not the primary beneficiary These VIEs are financed mainly by borrowings Most of the VIEs are entities
established to conduct real-estate-retated business, shipping-related business, or project financing i the infrastructure business

The following table summarizes total assets of the VIEs, carrying amounts of assets and habilittes in the Company’s Consohdated
Balance Sheets of financial position that relate to the Company’s vanable miterests m the VIEs, and the Company’s maximum
exposures Lo losses as a result of the Company’s involvement 1n these VIEs as of March 31, 2012 and 2013 Total assets of the VIEs
represent the latest informmation available to the Company

Milhions of Yen
March 31, 2012 Real Estate Shipping  Infrastructure Other Total
Total assets of the VIEs ¥247,002 ¥280,683 ¥187,688 ¥157,865 ¥873,238

Carrying amounts of assets in the Company’s

Consolidated Balance Sheets of financial

position that relate to the Company’s vanable

mierests in the VIEs 20,176 40,029 14,158 17,883 92,246
Carrying amounts of liabilities tn the

Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets of

financial position that relate to the Company’s

variable interests in the VIEs 259 2,385 947 1,455 5,046
Maximum exposures to losses 24,944 73,825 14,158 20,634 133,561
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Milhons of Yen

March 31, 2013 Real Estate Shipping  Infrastructure Other Total
Total assets of the VIEs ¥444 569 ¥353,699 ¥228.357 ¥164,171 ¥1,190,796
Carrymng amounts of assets in the Company’s

Consolidated Balance Sheets of financial

position that relate to the Company’s vanable

interests in the VIEs 51,738 60,845 20,541 17,225 150,349
Carrying amounts of habihities in the

Company’s Consohdated Balance Sheets of

financial position that relate to the Company’s

vartable interests in the VIEs 166 1,267 559 i 1,993
Maximum exposures to losses 58,232 116,084 30,838 17,423 222,577

Millions of U S Dollars

March 31, 2013 Real Estaie Shipping  Infrastructure Other Total
Total assets of the ViEs $4,729 $3,763 $2.429 $1,747 $12,668
Carrying amounts of assets 1 the Company’s

Consohdated Balance Sheets of financial

position that relate to the Company’s variable

mterests i the VIEs 550 647 219 I83 1,599
Carrying amounts of liabilities in the

Company's Consolidated Balance Sheets of

financial position that relate to the Company’s

variable interests in the VIEs 2 13 6 21
Maximum exposures to losses 620 1,235 328 185 2,368

Carrying amounts of assets 1n the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets of financial position that relate to the Company’s variable
mterests wn the VIEs consisted primanly of nvestments 1 and advances to Affiliated companes, noncurrent notes, loans and
accounts receivable—trade, loans and other receivables Carrying amounts of liabihities 1n the Company’s Consolidated Balance
Sheets of financia) position that relate to the Company’s vanable mterests m the VIEs consisted primarily of deferred income taxes
and payables to Affihated compames There is a difference between carrying amounts of assets in the Company’s Consolidated
Balance Sheets of financial position that relate to the Company’s variable interests in the VIEs and maximum exposures to losses, as
the Company’s maximum exposures to losses include credit guarantees on these VIEs Maximum exposures to losses do not
represent anticipated losses generally to incur from the Company’s involvement with the VIEs, and are considered to exceed the
anticipated losses considerably
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26 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Long-term Commitments

The Company, m the normal course of trading operations, enters into substantial long-term purchase commitments for various
commodities, prncipally metals, chemical, LNG and crude o1l products at fixed prices or basis prices adjustable to market Such
purchase commitments are, 1n most instances, matched with counterparty sales contracts At March 31, 2013, the outstanding
long-term purchase commitments amounted to ¥4,278,874 mulhon ($45,520 million} for whach delivenies are scheduled for vanous
dates through 2042

Purchases made under unconditional purchase obhgations for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 were ¥868,762
million, ¥996,915 million and ¥1,023,898 mulhion ($10,893 milhon), respectively

The Company also had long-term financing commitments aggregating ¥22,582 million ($240 million) at March 31, 2013 for loans,
mmvestments n equity capital and financing on a deferred-payment basis for the cost of equipment to be purchased by customers

Guarantees
The Company 1s a party to various agreements under which 1t has undertaken obligations resulting from the 15suance of certamn
guarantees The guarantees have been tssued for the Affiliated companies, customers and suppliers of the Company

Credit Guarantees
The Company provided credit guarantees for certain customers and supphers, and for the Affiliated compantes, m the form of
standby letters of credit and performance guarantees

The outstanding amount and the maxamurmn potential amount of future payments under these credit guarantees as of March 31, 2012
and 2013 were as follows

Millions of
Mithons of Yen U S Dollars
2012 2013 2013
Guarantees for customers and suppliers
Outstanding amount ¥258,084 ¥301,541 $3,208
Maximum potential amount of future payments 317,099 381,778 4,061
Guarantees for the Affihated companies
Qutstanding amount 107,445 422,747 4,497
Maximum potential amount of future payments 170,535 627,146 6,672

These credit guarantees enable the Company’s customers, supphers and the Affihated companies to execute transactions or obtain
desired financing arrangements with third parties Most of these guarantees outstanding at March 31, 2013 wall expire within ten
years, with certain credit guarantees expiring by the end of 2038 Should the customers, supplers and the Affiliated companies fail to
perform under the terms of the transaction or financing arrangement, the Company would be required to perform on their behalf

The Company has set internal raungs based on vanous information, such as the guaranteed party’s financial stalements, and manages
risks of credit guarantees by estabhishing limits on guarantees for each guaranteed party based on these mternal ratings and requires
collateral or reassurance as necessary

At March 31, 2012 and 2013, the amount of possible recovenes under recourse provisions from third parties or from collateral
pledged was ¥16,697 muilhion and ¥165,625 million (81,762 million), respectively

The habilities for these credit guarantees were ¥1,571 million and ¥2,286 million (524 mullion) at March 31, 2012 and 2013,
respectively

As of March 31, 2013, there were no credit guarantees with a hagh probability of a sigmificant loss due to enforcement of the
guarantee

LNG project in Russia

The Company, along with other shareholders, provided an agreement to indemnuify the financing party from any loss that might be
incurred due to the fallure of the investee (10% owned by the Company) to register the utle of the properties associated wath this
LNG project to obtam $6,700 million financing for the project

The amount of maximum future payment under this ndemnification 1s not included in the amount of the credit guarantee descnbed
above because 1t cannot be esumated due 1o the nature of the indemmification No provisions have been recorded for the
indemnification as the Company’s obligation under the indemnification 1s not probable and estmable

The mvestee repays $6,700 mullion financing based on the schedule under the loan agreement

LNG project in Austraha

An Affihated company of the Parent acquired participating interest mn a project to develop LNG m Australia (the “Project™) The
Affihated company has obtamned a $1,927 mullion (¥181 bithon) line-of-credit from a bank to secure funding for the acquisition of
the participating interest and for the future development of the Project The Parent, along with another participant to the Project,
provides a credit guarantee to the bank on the line-of-credit The maximum potential amount of future payments of the Parent
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resulting from the default on the line-of-credit 15 $1,533 mullion (¥144 ballion), and 1s included m “Guarantees for the Affiliated
companies — Maximum poiential amount of future payments™ ine item on the table above As of March 31, 2013, the portion of the
Affiliated company's draw-down aganst the line-of-credit that the Parent 1s responsible for amounted to $300 mulhon (¥28 billion)
The amount 1s reflected 1n “Guarantees for the Affiliated companies — Qutstanding amount™ line item in the table above

In addition, the Parent, along with other participants to the Project, provide a performance puarantee to the seller of the participating
nterest 1n the Project The performance guarantee 15 a joint guarantee of the payments for the participating interest m thts Project and
for the future funding commitment 1n accordance with the joint venture agreement The obligation from this performance guarantee
15 considered 1o anse at the execution of project agreements and the total guarantee as of March 31, 2013 15 $2,764 million (¥260
bilison) The amounts are included 1 both “Guarantees for the Affihated compames — Maximum potential amount of future
payments” and “Guarantees for the Affiliated companies — Outstanding amount” line items 1n the table above

The performance guarantce obligation encompasses future planned payments, which witl be funded, in part, by the line of credut
Within the line item “Guarantees for the Affilated companies — Maximum potential amount of future payments”, the amounts
related to the performance guarantee will be reduced to the extent that the Affiliated company makes cash call payments for
participating interest and development funding, while the amount relating to the maximum potent:al amount of future payments of
credit guarantee will remain the same In this case, within the hne 1tem “Guarantees for the Affihated companies - Outstanding
amount”, the amount relating to this performance guarantee will be reduced as cash call payments are made, while the amount
relating to the credit guarantee will increase

Indemmfication

In the context of certain sales or divesttures of busmness, the Company occasionally commuts to mdemmfy contingent losses, such as
environmental losses, or the imposition of addiional taxes Due to the nature of the indemmifications, the Company’s maximum
exposure under these arrangements cannot be estimated No provisions have been recorded for such indemnifications as the
Company's obligations under them are not probable and estimable, except for certain cases which already have been claimed

Product Warranties
Certain subsidianies accrue esumated product warranty cost, in relation to their sales of products, to provide for warranty claims

The changes in the accrued product warranty cost for the years ended March 31 2012 and 2013 were as follows

Millions of
Millions of Yen U S Dollars
2012 2013 2013

Balance at beginning of year ¥2,600 ¥1,978 $21
Accrued cost 782 1,268 14
Payments {550) (787) &)
Other* {854) 414 4
Balance at end of year ¥1,978 ¥2 873 $31

* “Other" principally mncludes the effect of changes i foreign cumency exchange rates and the effect of divestiture of certain subsidanes

Litigation

The Company s a party to htigation ansing 1n the ordinary course of business In the opmion of management, the Liability of the
Company, 1f any, when ultimately determined from the progress of the lingation, will not have a matenally adverse effect on the
consolidated operating results or consolidated financial position of the Company
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27 SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Supplemental information related to the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 1s as follows

Miilions of
Milhions of Yen U S Dollars
2011 2012 2013 2013
Cash paid dunng the year for
Interest, less amounts capitalized ¥41,109 ¥40,8%4 ¥41,766 $444
Income taxes 139,507 178,790 80,213 853
Nencash investing and financing activities
Exchange of shares 1n connection with business combinations and
reorganizations involving investees (Note 5)
Fair market value of shares received 45,909 2,513 27
Cost of shares surrendered 10,465 3,000 32
Acqumsition of businesses (Note 4)
Fair value of assets acquired {including goodwall) 39,556 176,602 132,690 1,412
Fair value of ftabilities assumed 4,008 70,569 79,902 850
Noncontrolling interest in acquirees 5,024 10,461 111
Acqusiton-date carrying amount of previously held equity
Interests 20,713 7,222 77
Gan on remeasuring the previously held equity interests to fair
value—net and gamn on bargain purchase 23,220 22,666 242
Acquisittons of busimmesses, net of cash acquired 35,548 57,076 12,439 132
Assets by entering mto capital leases 3,947 42
Assets transferred to direct finance leases 10,127 5,116
Issuance of commeon stock upon conversion of convertible bonds 905
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28 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Company has evaluated subseguent events through June 21, 2013

Dividends
At the general shareholders' meeung held on June 21, 2013, the Parent was authorized to pay a cash dradend of ¥30 (30 32) per share,
or a total of ¥49,420 million ($526 mitlion) to shareholders of record on March 31, 2013
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SUPPLEMENTAL OIL AND GAS INFORMATION (Unaudited)

The Company’s o1l and gas explorauon, development and production activities are conducted through subsidtanes and Affihated
companies 1n offshore and onshore areas of the Pacific Rim, America, Afnca and Europe The tables below present supplementary

mformation on these activities

In the following tables, natural gas producing activities include hquefied natural gas (“LNG”) producing acuivities

Table 1 Captahized Costs Relating to Oul and Gas Producing Activities

Millions of Yen

Consohdated

Companies Affiliated Companies
March 31, 2011 Total North Australia  Indonesia Total
Amenca
Proved o1l and gas properties ¥131,552 ¥190,294  ¥121.892  ¥312,186
Unproved o1l and gas properties 43,722 34,586 34,586
Subtotal 175,274 190,294 156,478 346,772
Accumulated depreciation, depletion, amortization
and valuation allowances (49,247) (96,203) (32,384) (128,587)
Net capitalized costs ¥126,027 ¥94 091 ¥124,094  ¥218,185
Millions of Yen
Consohdated
Compames Affihated Companies
March 31, 2012 Total North Austraha  Indonesia Total
Amernca
Proved o1] and gas properties ¥121,177 ¥34,053  ¥188939 ¥122.712  ¥345704
Unproved o1 and gas properties 43,393 84,124 33,778 117,902
Subiotal 164,570 118,177 188,939 156,490 463,606
Accumulated depreciation, depletion, amortization
and valuation allowances (36,131) (95,181) (37,132)  (132,313)
Net capitalized costs ¥128,439 ¥118,177 ¥93,758  ¥119,358  ¥331,293
Millions of Yen
Consclidated
Companies Affiliated Companies
March 31, 2013 Total North Austraha  Indonesta Total
Amenca
Proved o1l and gas properties ¥148,675 ¥58408 ¥2442908  ¥151329  ¥454,035
Unproved o1l and gas properties 71,057 109,139 113,722 36,470 259,331
Subtotal 219,732 167,547 358,020 187,799 713,366
Accumulated depreciation, depletion, amortizatton
and valuation allowances (48,821) (3.057)  (119,14]) (52,015) (174,213)
Net capitalized costs ¥170,911 ¥164,490 ¥238879 ¥135784  ¥539,153
Miilions of U § Doliars
Consolidated
Companies Affiliated Companies
March 31, 2013 Total North Australia  Indonesia Total
Amenca
Proved o1l and gas properties $1,582 $622 $2,599 $1,610 $4.831
Unproved o1l and gas properties 756 1,161 1,210 388 2,759
Subtotal 2,338 1,783 3,809 1,998 7,590
Accumulated depreciation, depletion, amortization
and valuation allowances (520) {33) (1,268) (553) (1,854)
Net capitalized costs $1,818 $1,750 $2,54] $1,445 $5,736
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Table 2 Costs Incurred in 1l and Gas Property Acquisition, Exploration and Development Activities

Millions of Yen
Consohdated
Companies Affiliated Companies
Year Ended March 31,2011 Total Nomb - straha  Indonesia  Total
Amenca
Acqusition of proved properties ¥26,792
Acquisition of unproved properties 11,986
Exploration costs 5,666 ¥6 ¥640 ¥646
Development costs 9,189 8,950 5,175 14,125
Total costs incurred ¥53,633 ¥8,956 ¥5,815 ¥14,771
Millhions of Yen
Consolidated
Compames Affihated Companies
Year Ended March 31, 2012 Total North Austraha  Indonesia Total
Amenca
Acqumsition of proved properties ¥36,091 ¥36,091
Acquisition of unproved properties ¥14,319 82058 82,058
Exploration costs 4,960 7,098 ¥693 ¥559 8,350
Development costs 8,142 10,114 7,887 18,001
Total costs incurred ¥27.421 ¥125,247 ¥10.807 ¥8.446  ¥144,500
Mitlhons of Yen
Consohdated
Companies Affiliated Compamies
Year Ended March 31,2013 Total Noth — \ustralia  Indomesia  Total
Amenca
Acquisition of proved properties ¥17,466 ¥707 ¥18,173
Acquisition of unproved propertics ¥7,051 101,988 746 102,734
Exploration costs 27,606 ¥18,998 3,432 447 22,897
Development costs 24,104 10,886 13,579 12,843 37,308
Total costs meurred ¥58,761 ¥20.884  ¥136,465  ¥14.743  ¥181,092
Millions of U S Dollars
Consolidated
Companies Affiliated Companies
Year Ended March 31, 2013 Total North Australia  Indonesia Total
Amenca
Acquisition of proved properties $186 $7 $193
Acquisition of unproved properties $75 1,085 8 1,093
Exploration costs 294 5202 kYl 5 244
Development costs 256 116 144 137 397
Total costs incurred $625 $318 $1,452 $157 $1,927

- 100 -



Table 3 Results of Operations for Producing Activities

Milhons of Yen
Consolidated
Companies Affiliated Compames
Year Ended March 31,2011 To ™ augrala  Indonesia  Tota
Amenca
Revenues
Sales to external customers ¥27,451 ¥88,332 ¥14,135  ¥102,467
Intersegment sales 11,284 5,806 5,806
Expenses
Production costs 16,739 21,983 8,886 30,869
Exploration costs 5,416 85 434 519
Depreciation, depleuon, amortization and
valuation allowances 17,067 8,378 5,580 13,958
Income tax expense 1,241 17,336 3,508 20,844
Results of operations from producing activities
(excluding corporate overhead and interest costs) ¥(1,728) ¥40,550 ¥1,532 ¥42.082
Mullions of Yen
Consolidated
Companies Affihated Compames
Year Ended March 31, 2012 Total North Australia  Indonesia Total
Amernica
Revenues
Sales to external customers ¥35417 ¥91,656 ¥25317 ¥116,973
Intersegment sales 10,727 6,401 6,401
Expenses
Production costs 18,412 24 006 11,607 35,613
Exploration costs 3,074 1,039 549 1,588
Depreciation, depletion, amortization and
valuation allowances 12,185 8,885 7,378 16,263
Income tax expense 4,610 17,455 3,906 21,361
Results of operations from producing activities
(excluding corporate overhead and interest costs) ¥7.863 ¥40,271 ¥8,278 ¥48,549
Millions of Yen
Conschdated
Companies Affihiated Companies
Year Ended March 31, 2013 Total North Australa  Indonesia Total
Amernca
Revenues
Sales to external customers ¥27,229 ¥1,567 ¥101,77% ¥33,325  ¥136,663
Intersegment sales 10,133 6,286 6,286
Expenses
Production costs 14,333 738 26,835 12,724 40,297
Exploration costs 13,135 1,063 335 1,398
Depreciation, depletion, amortization and
valuation allowances 9,367 2,804 11,408 7,934 22,146
Income tax expense 1,959 19,161 7,857 27,018
Results of operations from producing activities
{excluding corporate overhead and interest costs) ¥(1,432) ¥(1,975)  ¥43.304 ¥10,76} ¥52,0%0
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Millions of U § Dollars

Consolidated
Companies Affihated Companies
Year Ended March 31, 2013 Total North Australia  Indonesia Total
America
Revenues
Sales to external customers $290 £17 $1,083 $354 $1,454
Intersegment sales 108 67 67
Expenses
Production costs 153 8 286 135 429
Exploration costs 140 11 4 15
Depreciation, depletion, amortization and
valuation allowances 99 30 121 84 235
Income tax expense 21 204 84 288
Results of operations from producing activities
(excluding corporate overhead and interest costs) $(15) $(21) $461 $114 $554
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Table 4 Reserve Quantity Information

Proved gas reserves are constramned to those volumes that are related to finm sales commitments The natural gas reserves at the end
of each year are therefore only 2 fraction of the volume that 1s expected to be commutted to sales over ume and upon which the
decision to proceed with development was based Amounts were calculated based on the average of the price as of the first day of
each month dunng the fiscal year Reserves in the following tables mclude quantities related to production-shaning contracts ("PSC")
Of the total reserve quantities of crude b, condensate, natural gas hquids, and natural gas 1n barrels of 01} equivalents, the
PSC-related reserve quantities compnise 66 percent, 537 percent, and 69 percent of the total reserve quantities for the years ended
March 31, 2011, 2012, and 2013 respecuvely

Crude O1l, Condensate and Natural Gas Liquids

(Millions of Barrels)
Consohdated
Companies Affihated Companies
Year Ended March 31, 2011 Total North Austraha  Indonesia Total
Amenca
Proved developed and undeveloped reserves
Beginning of year 45 33 19 52
Rewvisions of previous estimates 13 2 1 3
Improved recovery 2
Purchases 4
Sales (1) 1)
Production (N (%) 2) (N
End of year 55 30 19 49
Proved developed reserves—end of year 44 13 16 29
Natural Gas
(Bilhons of Cubic Feet)
Consolidated
Companies Affihated Companies
Total North Austraba  Indonesia Total
Amenica
Proved developed and undeveloped reserves
Beginning of year 54 690 1,256 1,946
Rewvisions of previous estimates ] 12) 30 18
Improved recovery 28 28
Purchases 259
Sales (48) (48)
Production 7y (59) (39) (98)
End of year 307 619 1,227 1,846
Proved developed reserves—end of year 33 255 986 1,24}
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Crude 01, Condensate and Natural Gas Liquds

{Milhions of Barrels)
Consolidated
Companies Affihated Companies
Year Ended March 31, 2012 Total Noh = eraba Indonesa  Toul
Amenca

Proved developed and undeveloped reserves

Beginning of year 55 30 19 49

Revisions of previous estimates 12 1 4]

Extensions and discoveries 1

Purchases 1 1

Sales m

Production (8) (4) 3) (7

End of year 59 1 27 15 43
Proved developed reserves—end of year 44 14 13 27

Natural Gas
{Billions of Cubic Feet)
Consolidated
Companies Affiliated Compames
Total North Australia  Indonesia Total
America

Proved developed and undeveloped reserves

Beginming of year 307 619 1,227 1,846

Revisions of previous estunates (12) 2 (3) n

Improved recovery 9

Purchases 380 380

Sales 27

Production (12) (57 (43) (100)

End of year 265 380 564 1,181 2,125
Proved developed reserves—end of year 19 209 942 1,151

Crude Oil, Condensate and Natural Gas Liquids

(Milhons of Barrels)

Consohdated

Companies Affihated Companies
Year Ended March 31, 2013 Total North Australla  Indonesia Total
Amenca
Proved developed and undeveloped reserves
Beginning of year 59 i 27 15 43
Revisions of previous estimates 10 ] 6 7
Purchases 3 1 4
Production 6) 4) (2) (6)
End of year 63 1 27 20 48
Proved developed reserves—end of year 4% 12 13 25
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Natural Gas

(Billions of Cubic Feet}
Conschdated
Compantes Affiltated Companies
Total North Austraha  Indonesia Total
Amenca

Proved developed and undeveloped reserves

Beginning of year 265 380 564 1,181 2,125

Rewvisions of previous estimates (270) 136 (134)

Extensions and discovenes 20

Purchases 194 194

Production (&) (6) (55) (65) (126)

End of year 276 104 703 1,252 2,059
Proved developed reserves—end of year 31 80 181 1,098 1,359
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Table 5 Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows and Changes therein Relating to Proved O1! and Gas Reserves

A standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows relating to the proved reserve quantities is based on prices and costs,

currently enacted tax rates and a 10% annual discount factor Prices and costs were calculated based on the average of the price as of
the first day of each month dunng the fiscal year The natural gas activities’ standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows
mncludes the full committed costs of development and operation for the asset under the integrated Production Sharing Agreement On
the other hand, revenues are registered only 1n relation to the currently estimated proved reserves stated m Table 4 (Reserve Quantity

Information)

The proved gas reserves are constrained to those volumes that are related to firm sales commitments The natural gas reserves at the
end of each year are therefore only a fraction of the volume that 15 expected 10 be commutted to sales over time and upon which the
decision to proceed with development was based Estimates of proved reserve quantiies may change over tume as new sales
commitments become available Consequently, the information provided here does not represent management’s estimate of the
Company’s expected future cash flows or value of the proved reserves

(1) Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows

Millions of Yen

Consohdated

Companies Affiliated Companies
Year Ended March 31, 2011 Total Ar::)e?lhca Austraha Indonesia Total
Future cash inflows ¥338,683 ¥704,576 ¥414,411  ¥1,118,987
Future production costs (105,358) (180,322) (103,968) (284,290)
Future development costs (57,729) (76,064) (41,410) (117,474}
Future mcome taxes (38,210) (130,306} (89,628) (219,934)
Undiscounted future net cash flows 137,386 317,884 179,405 497,289
10% annual discount for estimated timing of cash flows 61,115 (126,287) (70,944} (197,231)
Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows ¥76,271 ¥191,597 ¥108,461 ¥300,058
Milhons of Yen
Consolidated
Companies Affiliated Companies
North

Year Ended March 31, 2012 Total America Australia Indonesia Total
Future cash mflows ¥450,186 ¥116,018 ¥762.,612 ¥434972  ¥1,313,602
Future production costs (125,312) (48,425) (197,524} (100,532) (346,481)
Future development costs {74,067) (49.521) (98,953} (36,691) (185,165)
Future mcome taxes {85,385) (142,192) (114,708) (256,900)
Undiscounted future net cash flows 165,422 18,072 323,943 183,041 525,056
10% annual discount for estimated timung of cash flows (58,256) (21,421) (118,385) (59,428) (199,234)
Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows ¥107,166 ¥(3,349)  ¥205,558 ¥123,613 ¥325,822
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Midiions of Yen

Consohidated
Companies Affiliated Companies
Total North Austrahia Indonesia Total

Year Ended March 31,2013 Amenca

Future cash inflows ¥521.815 ¥22,737 ¥1,117,674 ¥1,078,135 ¥2,218,546
Future production costs (167,150} (13,376) (261,343) (232,813) (507,532)
Future development costs (78.066) (5,672 (213,401} (116,892) (335,965}
Future income taxes (98,982) (195,960) (272,631) (468,591)
Undiscounted future net cash flows 177,617 3,689 446,970 455,799 906,458
[0% annual discount for estimated timing of cash flows (66,965) (2,063) (207,889) {303,095) {513,047
Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows ¥110,652 ¥1,626 ¥239.081 ¥152,704 ¥393,411

Millions of U S Dollars
Consolidated
Companies Affihated Companies
Total North Australia indonesia Total

Year Ended March 31, 2013 Amenca

Future cash inflows $5,551 £242 $11,890 $11.470 $23,602
Future production costs {1,778) (143) (2,780) (2477 {5,400)
Future development costs (830) (60) (2,270) {1,244) (3,574)
Future income taxes (1,053) (2,085) (2,900) (4,985)
Undiscounted future net cash flows 1,890 39 4,755 4,849 9,643
10% annual discount for estimated tuming of cash flows (713) (22) (2,212) (3,224) (5,458)
Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows $1,177 $17 $2,543 $1,625 $4,185
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(2) Details of Changes for the Year
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Millions of Yen
Consohdated
Companies Affiliated Companies
Year Ended March 31, 2011 Total AI::: l:llla Austraha  Indonesia Total
Discounted future net cash flows at Apnil 1 ¥40,917 ¥137,902 ¥36,128  ¥174,030
Sales and transfer of o1l and gas produced, net of production costs (19,677) (68,457) 18,353 (50,104)
Development costs incurred 8,584 9,234 2,336 11,570
Purchases of reserves 20,948
Sales of reserves (4,029) (4,029)
Net changes n sales and transfer prices and production costs
related to future production 34,094 92,833 112,657 205,490
Changes 1n estimated future development costs 19,159 4,610 (813) 3,797
Revisions of previous quantity estimates (16,793) 115 1,982 2,097
Accretion of discount (§0%) 4,661 13,933 (6,791) 7,142
Net change in income taxes (13,579) 2 (47,2000  (47,198)
Dafference of foreign exchange rates {2,043) 1,425 (4,162) 2,737
Dnscounted future net cash flows at March 31 ¥76,271 ¥191,597  ¥108,461  ¥300,058
Malhons of Yen
Consolidated
Companies Affiliated Compames
Total North Australia  Indonesia Total
Year Ended March 31, 2012 America
Discounted future net cash flows at Apnl 1 ¥76,271 ¥191,597  ¥108461  ¥300,058
Sales and transfer of o1l and gas produced, net of production costs (25,973) {64,918) (4,593} (69,511)
Development costs incurred 7,855 9,705 6,146 15,851
Purchases of reserves ¥(3,349) (3,349)
Sales of reserves (1,574)
Net changes in sales and transfer prices and production costs
related to future production 105,990 99,532 41,722 141,254
Changes 1n estimated future development costs {22,933 {37,531) 1,908 (35,623)
Extensions, discovenes and improved recovery, less related costs 2,898
Revisions of previous quantity estimates 7,485 6,172 (3,748) 2,424
Accretion of discount (10%) 2,862 18,235 7,912 26,147
Net change in income taxes (50,432) (7,992) (29,204) (37,196)
Difference of foreign exchange rates (2,283) {9,242) (4,991) (14,233)
Discounted future net cash flows at March 31 ¥107,166 ¥(3,349) ¥205,558  ¥123,613  ¥325,822




Millions of Yen

Consohdated
Companes Affihated Companies
Year Ended March 31, 2013 Total A]:Inc;rrtnhca Austraha  Indonesia Total
Discounted future net cash flows at Apnil 1 ¥107,166 ¥(3,349) ¥205,558 ¥123,613  ¥325822
Sales and transfer of o1l and gas produced, net of production costs (20,441) (504) (81,399) (29,168} (111,471}
Development costs incurred 25,507 11,867 11,844 13,932 37,643
Purchases of reserves 10,521 2,809 13,330
Net changes n sales and transfer prices and production costs
related 1o future production (10,114) (40,443) 44,193 141,062 144,812
Changes in estimated future development costs (22,204) 35,159 (6,295) 12,974 41,838
Extensions, discovenes and improved recovery, less related costs 3,186
Revisions of previous quantity estimates 17,370 5,738 8,077 13,815
Accretion of discount (10%) 11,095 (228) 23,331 14,379 37,482
Net change 1n income taxes (9,453) (2,157) (149,031) (151,188)
Difference of foreign exchange rates 8,540 (476) 27,747 14,057 41,328
Discounted future net cash flows at March 31 ¥110,652 ¥1,626  ¥239,081  ¥152,704 ¥393,411
Millions of U 8 Dollars
Consohdated
Companies Affiliated Companies
Total North Australia  Indonesia Total
Year Ended March 31, 2013 America
Discounted future net cash flows a1 Apnil 1 $1,140 $(36) $2,187 $1,315 $3,466
Sales and transfer of o1} and gas produced, net of producton costs 217 (1% (866) (310) (1,186)
Development costs incurred 271 126 126 148 400
Purchases of reserves 112 30 142
Net changes 1n sales and transfer prices and production costs
related to future production {108) (430} 470 1,501 1,541
Changes n estimated future development costs (236) 374 (67) 138 445
Extensions, discovenes and improved recovery, less related costs 34
Revisions of previous quantity estimates 185 61 86 147
Accretion of discount (10%) 118 (2) 248 153 399
Net change in income taxes (101) (23) (1,586) (1,609)
Dufference of foreign exchange rates 91 (5) 295 150 440
Discounted future net cash flows at March 31 $1.177 $17 $2,543 $1,625 $4,185
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